Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are summoned to attend a virtual meeting of
the Council
on Tuesday, 15 December 2020, at 6.30 p.m.
Please note that this meeting will be conducted remotely through Microsoft Teams Live
Events and in accordance with Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020. Access details will
be provided to Council Members prior to the meeting. Members of the public will be able to
access a live broadcast of the meeting here.
For those using an Apple Device to access the meeting, please note that Safari is not
compatible with Microsoft Teams, so you will not be able to watch the meeting using this
web browser. If you wish to watch a virtual meeting on any Apple device (iPad, iPhone or
Mac) you will need to download the Microsoft Teams App from the App Store, then click the
link on the relevant SLDC webpage or Agenda and follow the instructions on screen.
Agendas are divided into two parts, with Part I items being considered in the presence of
the press and public. Part II Items, if any, will be considered in the absence of the press
and public for the reasons indicated on the Agenda and relevant reports.
It should be noted that discussions held in Part I are recorded and that the recordings are
uploaded to the Council’s Website.
Note – Those Members who wish to attend Prayers should join the Microsoft Teams meeting at 5.55 p.m., as this will
take place at 6.00 p.m. All other Members should join the Microsoft Teams meeting following Prayers, at 6.10 p.m., in
order to ensure that their technology is operational prior to the commencement of the Council meeting at 6.30 p.m.

Membership
Councillors
Caroline Airey
Giles Archibald
Robin Ashcroft
Rupert Audland
Pat Bell
Ben Berry
Roger Bingham
Jonathan Brook
Helen Chaffey
Stephen Coleman (Chairman)
Brian Cooper
Michael Cornah
Tracy Coward
Philip Dixon
Judy Filmore
Alvin Finch

Gill Gardner
Tom Harvey
Eamonn Hennessy
Hazel Hodgson
Chris Hogg
Rachael Hogg
John Holmes
Kevin Holmes
Vicky Hughes
Helen Irving
Andrew Jarvis
Janette Jenkinson
Dyan Jones
Dave Khan
Helen Ladhams
Malcolm Lamb

Kevin Lancaster
Susanne Long
Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman)
Ian Mitchell
Jon Owen
Suzie Pye
Doug Rathbone
Brian Rendell
Matt Severn
Peter Thornton
David Webster
Ian Wharton
Janet Willis
Mark Wilson
Shirley-Anne Wilson

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Monday, 7 December 2020

Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer)

For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Inge Booth
Telephone:
01539 793190
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

Roll Call : Apologies
AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

EMERGENCY NON-EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
To receive the following Emergency Non-Executive Decision taken by the Chief
Executive in accordance with Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution 3. (B 1) (1.1)
and to note any spending outside any budgetary provision:-

a
2

016 13-11-20 Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the
meeting. Information on how to make the application can be obtained by
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.
(1)

Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received
from members of the public.

(2)

Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda and to consider any dispensations.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be
considered in the presence of the press and public.

7 - 24

5

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

25 - 26

To receive announcements by the Chairman (a list of official engagements
attended by the Chairman is attached).

6

REPORT FROM THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR
2021/2022 TO 2024/2025

27 - 64

To consider the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel for
2021/2022 to 2024/2025.

7

CORPORATE FINANCIAL UPDATE QUARTER 2, 2020/21

65 - 94

To consider the corporate financial update for Quarter 2, 2020/21.

8

REQUEST FOR AUTHORISED ABSENCE FROM COUNCIL AND COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MEETINGS – COUNCILLOR D KHAN

95 - 98

To consider a request from Councillor D Khan for his absence from Council and
Committee meetings.

9

LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CABINET QUESTION TIME,
INCLUDING THE COMPOSITE REPORT OF THE CABINET (1 HOUR
MAXIMUM)

99 - 146

Council is asked to receive the Executive Reports from the Leader and Cabinet
and to deal with any questions raised by Members to the appropriate Cabinet
Members on the contents of the reports.
To receive announcements from the Leader and, in accordance with
Paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, to deal with any
questions to the Leader and/or Portfolio Holders on any topic which is within the
jurisdiction or influence of the Council and is relevant to their Portfolio. Any
Member who poses a question will be entitled to ask one supplementary
question on the same topic.
Members are encouraged to give 24 hours’ written notice of questions to the
Monitoring Officer of questions to be raised under the Agenda Item. If no notice
is received, then the Portfolio Holder can reserve the right to give a written
answer. Where written notice of questions has been given, these will be taken
first. Should a Member wish to ask more than one question, questions should
be listed in order of priority. If more than one Member sends in a question,
these will be taken in alphabetical order of Members’ names, alternated from
meeting to meeting. Each question and each response is restricted to three
minutes.

10

MINUTES OF MEETINGS
To receive Chairmen’s comments (if any notified) in respect of the minutes of
the Committee meetings held between 13 July and 9 October 2020.

11

QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE
To deal with any questions under Rule 10.6 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure,
of which due notice has been given and/or the Chairman allows as a matter of
urgent business and which are in relation to any matter over which the Council
has powers or duties or which affect the area.

12

URGENT DECISIONS
In accordance with the Constitution, to receive details of any urgent Executive
Decisions taken since the last scheduled meeting of Council on 6 October 2020,
and to consider any urgent non-executive decisions, if necessary.

147 - 148

13

EMERGENCY DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
To note the following Emergency Delegated Executive Decisions taken by the
Chief Executive in accordance with the Leader’s decision noted by Cabinet at
CEX/104 (2019/20):-

a

010 09-10-20 Test and Trace Support Payment Schemes

149 - 190

b

011 13-11-20 Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)

191 - 206

PART II
Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)
There are no items in this Part of the Agenda.

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Item No.1a

EMERGENCY DELEGATED NON EXECUTIVE DECISION
To the Chief Executive to take such action on behalf of the Council as appears to him/her necessary in
circumstances that prevent obtaining the necessary authority from an appropriate committee following
consultation with the Leader of the Council or the Chairman of the committee concerned. Where the
Chief Executive is acting in an emergency and it involves spending outside any budgetary provision,
then any expenditure must be reported to Full Council at the first available opportunity. (In accordance
with Part 3 of the Councils Constitution 3. (B 1) (1.1) Scheme of Delegation to Officers specific
delegation to the Chief Executive.)

South Lakeland District Council Emergency
Non-Executive Decision

Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)
Date: 13/11/2020

Reference: 016

Reason for emergency
The announcement of the Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) and the time
line expected by Government in the delivery of that grant do now allow the Council
to delay a decision until the next Full Council. It is therefore considered necessary
in these circumstances and following consultation with the Leader of the Council
or the Chairman of the committee concerned.
Where the Chief Executive is acting in an emergency and it involves spending
outside any budgetary provision, then any expenditure must be reported to Full
Council at the first available opportunity (in accordance with Part 3 of the Councils
Constitution 3. (B 1) (1.1) Scheme of Delegation to Officers specific delegation to
the Chief Executive.)
The decision is required to be taken due to the Government’s recent
announcement for a new package of financial support grants for businesses that
will be administered by local authorities to pay the grants in response to the
second national lockdown. Funding will be provided by the Government for the
new grants. The Government have requested the grants are processed and paid
as soon as possible, with the funding expected to be paid in early November 2020.
The reasons for this urgent decision are outlined in the Emergency Executive
th
Portfolio:
and Resources
Portfolio Holder
Decision taken on 13Finance
November
2020 (attached).

Decision Maker:

Chief Executive

Report Author:

Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead (Specialist Services)

Ruth Leahy – Specialist (Economy and Culture)
Wards:

All

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

The South Lakeland business community will be supported at this time through the
administering of grants for eligible businesses.

Page 7

1.2

Please see Appendix A and associated Delegated Executive Decision for full details
of these schemes.

2.0

Proposed Decision

2.1

It is recommended that the Chief Executive approves:
(1)

Appropriate budgets be established outside the approved budget and
policy framework to receive the monies and distribute funds to
businesses as per Government guidance relating to the Local
Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

A

Emergency Delegated Executive Decision: Local Restrictions
Support Grants (Closed) and Additional Restrictions Grant [insert
date] November 2020

Approved by:
Chief Executive
In consultation with
The Chairman of the Council

Signature and Date
13/11/2020
13/11/2020

Page 8

APPENDIX A
EMERGENCY DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISION
In accordance with the Leaders decision and noted by Cabinet on 25/03/2020 to delegate to the Chief
Executive any executive decision in this COVID 19 Global pandemic emergency or that is urgent or
that would be necessary or expedient, or which would otherwise protect the Council’s interests,
including key decisions.

South Lakeland District Council Emergency
Delegated Executive Decision

Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)
Date: 13/11/2020

Reference: 011

Reason for emergency
The Chief Executive received emergency delegated executive decision making
powers on the 25th March 2020. It is considered that this decision is necessary or
arises from the global COVID-19 pandemic.
The matter is urgent, necessary and expedient and is needed to protect the
Council’s interests.
The decision is required to be taken due to the Government’s recent announcement
for a new package of financial support grants for businesses that will be
administered by local authorities. Funding will be provided by the Government for the
new support grants for businesses due the announcement of a second national
lockdown. The Government have requested the grants are processed and paid as
soon as possible, with the funding expected to be paid to the Council by 13th
November 2020. It is expected that the payment of grants will ease financial
pressures for eligible businesses.
Due to the timing of the receipt of the Government Guidance (announced 30 th
October 2020) and the date of the next Cabinet meeting being on 25th November
2020, we require an emergency decision.
Portfolio:

Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder
This is a Key Decision:
Yes

Decision Maker:

Chief Executive

Report Author:

Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead (Specialist Services)

Ruth Leahy – Specialist (Economy and Culture)
Wards:

All

Forward Plan:
Exemption from publication requirements / Forward Plan (key
decision) requirements and call in obtained

1.0

Reasons for Proposed Decision and Expected Outcome

1.1

Due to the second national lockdown announced on 30th October 2020 and planned
between 5th November 2020 and 2nd December 2020 with the possibility of the UK

Page 9

Government extending the lockdown beyond this date dependent on the Coronavirus
infection rate. We require a process and policy regarding the administration of the grants.
1.2

Many businesses have been mandated to close which will have a severe impact on
businesses who will see a significant reduction in income as a result of new national
restrictions.

1.3

The Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed) LRSG (C) has been announced by
Government to businesses who have had to close or who will be significantly
impacted by the lockdown (supply chain businesses etc)

1.4

South Lakeland District Council has been granted £6,746,544 for Local Restrictions
Support Grants (Closed) from Government to distribute to eligible businesses under
this scheme.

1.5

The LRSG grant scheme follows the Government-funded Small Business Grant Fund
(SBGF) Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund, (RHLGF), Local Authority
Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF) that were administered by local authorities
following the first national lockdown in March 2020.

1.6

SLDC will distribute grant funding to eligible businesses through an online
application and validation process, used in the aforementioned grant schemes.
There will be a fasttrack process for businesses that applied last time.

1.7

It is expected that the payment of grants will ease financial pressures for eligible
businesses. This decision will contribute significantly in assisting businesses during
COVID-19, helping with job retention and business viability in difficult circumstances
and avoiding economic collapse by giving additional resources to businesses with
properties within the district.

2.0

Proposed Decision

2.1

It is recommended that the Chief Executive:(1)

Approve the Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)

(2)
That a non-executive emergency decision is taken to confirm
appropriate budgets be established outside the approved budget and policy
framework to receive the grant funding and distribute funds as per
Government guidance; and
(3)
Agree to delegate the identification, determination and payment of the
grants in accordance with the scheme (see Appendix 1) to qualifying
businesses to the Operational Lead for Specialist Services.
(4)
Delegates to the Operational Lead for Specialist Services, in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources, authority to
make any amends to the LRSG(C) to reflect future changes in Government
guidance.

Review Date: 31 March 2021
3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The government has announced Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed) LRSG
(C) to be targeted at businesses with rateable values that have been forced to close
for the duration of the national lockdown.

Page 10

The grant levels apply to LRSG (Closed) as follows:
 Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on the date of the commencement
of the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment of £1,334 per
28-day qualifying restriction period.
 Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value over £15,000 and less than £51,000 on the date of the
commencement of the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment
of £2,000 per 28-day qualifying restriction period.
 Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £51,000 or above on the commencement date of the
widespread national restrictions, will receive £3,000 per 28-day qualifying
restriction period.

During the lockdown, a single grant to cover the four-week period will be paid to each
eligible business. The grant amounts will be fixed. Businesses with more than one
qualifying property will receive more than one grant.
3.2

Please see Appendix 1 for the South Lakeland LRSG(C)

4.0

Consultation

4.1

A common and consistent approach has been agreed by all District Councils in
Cumbria, allowing for specific references to business sectors within districts to
support their own local economic make up.

4.2

A working group of officers including specialists and case managers have agreed the
process for collecting information and administering payment of grants.

4.3

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources, the Leader of the Council and
Cabinet have been consulted on the detail of this decision and appended guidance.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

SLDC do not accept this funding: this would not comply with the request from
Government and would not give critical support to businesses operating within South
Lakeland, and therefore this is not a recommended option.

5.2

SLDC administer grants beyond the scheme set out by Government: this is not
affordable for the Council, and therefore is not the recommended option.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Supporting our Economy: To aid job retention and business viability in difficult
circumstances; avoiding economic collapse and enhancing the culture of the district
by giving additional resources to businesses, including eligible cultural organisations,
with properties within the district.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The Government has made it clear that Councils can recover the additional cost
incurred by the Council in administering this scheme.

7.2

The Government are funding the entirety of the scheme.

Page 11

Human Resources
7.2

There are no direct human resources implications of this report. Staff from around the
Council will assist in the processing of grant claims.

Legal
7.3

The Council has powers under the Localism Act 2011 to make these payments.
Legal advice has been provided on the grants application form and the state aid
implications. A separate non-executive decision will be taken to address the changes
to the Budget and Policy Framework.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4
Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No
7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
has not been deemed as necessary in this instance. The impact of the scheme
applies to businesses which are eligible within the district and is vital to prevent many
small businesses becoming insolvent following Government required closure.

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: n/a

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
has not been deemed as necessary in this instance, this applies to all those with
businesses which are entitled within the district.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: n/a

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Grants are not given in
accordance with Government
guidance

Government will not
reimburse the Council for
payments made outside
the Government schemes

Grant applications will be
verified to be compliant with
Government guidance and
business eligibility

Grants are given to fraudulent
claimants

Grants are given to
businesses or individuals
that are not eligible

Grants are not issued
promptly

Businesses will not receive
financial assistance as set
out by Government

Online application and
verification processes to
manage a multi-million pound
scheme in just a few days in
order to get grants paid to
businesses with minimal delay

Reputational impact to the
Council and delays to the
processing of payments

Verification has been built
into the grant process
including requesting
sufficient evidence and
using Government tools to
avoid fraudulent claims
Online portal developed for
efficient application of
grants, resource trained
and in place to review and
approve
Learning from previous
scheme will significantly
reduce risk. Robust
process in place to
expedite payments.

Page 12

Contact Officers
Gareth Candlin, Operational Lead (Specialist Services)
01539 793382, gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

SLDC Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) LRSG(C) Scheme

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Local Restrictions Support Grants
(Closed) (LRSG(C) guidance for
local authorities

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localrestrictions-support-grants-lrsg-and-additionalrestrictions-grant-arg-guidance-for-local-authorities

Approved by:
Chief Executive
Or such person as delegated by
the Chief Executive in writing
In consultation with
The Leader of the Council
And Relevant Portfolio Holder
CMT Directors
The following interests were
declared – disclosable pecuniary
interest or other or none

Signature and Date (or email confirmation)
13/11/2020
n/a

13/11/2020
13/11/2020
n/a

Due to COVID 19 and Government announcements, it has not been possible
for this Key decision to be included in a Forward Plan at least 28 clear days
before the decision was to be made. It is not possible to comply with the
General Exemption procedure.

13/11/2020

In accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution - Rules of Procedure – Access to
Information Rules – Paragraph 16, the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (Cllr Hughes) has agreed that the taking of the decision is urgent
and could not reasonably be deferred because for the reasons outlined in this
report and the timescales required to protect the public/business interest and to
comply with Government advice.
This being “special urgency”
In accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution – Rules of Procedure – Overview 13/11/2020
and Scrutiny Procedure Rules - paragraph 16(j), the Chairman of the Council
(Cllr Coleman) agrees that this decision is reasonable in all the circumstances
and that it is treated as urgent for the reasons outlined above and, therefore, the
decision is exempt from call-in.

Page 13

Appendix 1

South Lakeland District Council
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed)
Scheme

Page 14

Contents
Definitions .......................................................................................................................... 3
1.0

Purpose of the Scheme and background ............................................................... 5

1.7

Grants under this scheme will be available for the 2020/21 financial year only ...... 5

2.0

Funding .................................................................................................................. 5

3.0

Eligibility criteria and awards .................................................................................. 6

Local restrictions awards and frequency of payment.......................................................... 6
National restrictions awards and frequency of payment ..................................................... 7
Businesses that are not shown in the local rating list ......................................................... 7
Excluded businesses – both local and national restrictions ................................................ 7
The Effective Date.............................................................................................................. 8
The Ratepayer ................................................................................................................... 8
4.0

How will grants be provided to Businesses? .......................................................... 9

5.0

EU State Aid requirements .................................................................................... 9

6.0

Scheme of Delegation............................................................................................ 9

7.0

Notification of Decisions ........................................................................................10

8.0

Reviews of Decisions ............................................................................................10

9.0

Complaints ............................................................................................................10

10.0 Taxation and the provision of information to Her Majesty’s Revenues and
Customs (HMRC)
10
11.0

Managing the risk of fraud ....................................................................................11

12.0

Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid ...................................................................11

13.0

Data Protection and use of data ...........................................................................11

Page 15

Definitions
The following definitions are used within this document:
‘Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG)’ means the additional funding provided by
Government. Funding will be made available to eligible Local Authorities at the point that
national restrictions are imposed or at the point the Local Authority first entered LCAL 3
local restrictions;
‘COVID-19’ (coronavirus) means the infectious disease caused by the most recently
discovered coronavirus;
‘Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS)’ means the Government
department responsible for the scheme and guidance;
‘Effective date’ means, for eligibility of the grant, the date of the local restrictions or the
date of widespread national restrictions. For the purpose of this scheme the date cannot
be before 9th September 2020;
‘Hereditament(s)’ means the assessment defined within Section 64 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988;
‘In-person services’ means services which are wholly or mainly provided by the business
to their customers face to face and which cannot be provided by other means such as
online or remotely by telephone, email, video link, or written communication;
‘Local Covid Alert Level’ (LCAL) means the level of alert determined by Government and
Local Authorities for the area. LCALs have three Tiers. Tier 1 (Medium): Tier 2 (High) and
Tier 3 (Very High). For the purposes of these schemes the definitions used are LCAL1,
LCAL2 and LCAL3.
‘Local lockdown’ means the same as ‘Local restrictions’;
‘Local rating list’ means the list as defined by Section 41 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988
‘Local restrictions’; and ‘Localised restrictions’ means legally binding restrictions imposed
on specific Local Authority areas or multiple Local Authority areas, where the Secretary of
State for Health and Social Care requires the closure of businesses in a local area under
regulations made using powers in Part 2A of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984
in response to the threat posed by coronavirus and commonly as part of a wider set of
measures;
‘Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed)’ means the grant scheme developed by
the Council in response to an announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 9th September 2020, amended on 9th October 2020
and which is applicable to businesses forced to close under either LCAL3 or where
national restrictions are in place;
‘Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed) Addendum’ means the changes made to
the Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed) due to widespread nationwide
restrictions;
Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Open)’ means the grant scheme developed by
the Council in response to an announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 22nd October 2020 and which is applicable to
businesses that are still open but severely impacted by the restrictions imposed by LCAL2
and LCAL3;

Page 16

Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Sector)’ means the grant scheme developed by
the Council in response to an announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 9th October 2020 (effective from 1st November) and
which is applicable to businesses that have been required to close on a national basis
since 23rd March 2020 due to restrictions being put in place to manage coronavirus;
‘Rateable value’ means the rateable value for the hereditament shown in the Council’s
local rating list at the date of the local restrictions;
‘Ratepayer’ means the person who will receive the grant will be the person who,
according to the Council’s records, was the ratepayer liable for occupied rates in respect
of the hereditament at the date of the local restrictions;
‘State Aid Framework’ means the Temporary Framework for State aid measures to support
the economy in the current COVID-19 outbreak published on 19 March 2020; and
‘Temporary Framework for State aid’ means the same as the ‘State Aid Framework’.

Page 17

1.0

Purpose of the Scheme and background.

1.1

The purpose of this document is to determine eligibility for a payment under the
Council’s Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed). It also includes
details of changes to that scheme where a widespread national lockdown is declared
(Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed) Addendum).

1.2

The grant scheme has been developed by the Council in response to an
announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial
Strategy made on 9th September 2020 (and subsequently amended in October 2020
and November 2020) which sets out circumstances whereby a grant payment may
be made by the Council to a business which has to close due to localised or
widespread national restrictions being put in place to manage coronavirus and save
lives.

1.3

Whilst the awarding of grants will be the Council’s responsibility, the Department
for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has set down criteria which must
be met by each business making an application. The Department has also indicated
the types of business which should be given the grant.

1.4

The scheme applies where local restrictions are put in place or where a widespread
national lockdown is announced.

1.5

Localised restrictions are legally binding restrictions imposed on specific Local
Authority areas or multiple Local Authority areas, where the Secretary of State for
Health and Social Care requires the closure of businesses in a local area under
regulations made using powers in Part 2A of the Public Health (Control of Disease)
Act 1984 in response to the threat posed by coronavirus and commonly as part of
a wider set of measures.

1.6

National restrictions are nationally binding restrictions imposed by Parliament under
legislation. The current national restrictions are made under the Health Protection
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 4) Regulations 2020.

1.7

Grants under this scheme will be available for the 2020/21 financial year only

1.8

No grant shall be paid for any period where the localised restrictions were in place
prior to 9th September 2020. Where there is no local restriction, grants shall only be
paid where there is a widespread national restriction.

1.9

Where any area enters either a localised restriction or where a widespread national
restriction applies, additional assistance may be given to businesses under the
Council’s Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) Scheme.

2.0

Funding

2.1

Local Authorities, subject to local eligibility, will receive funding to meet the cost of
payments to businesses within the business rates system based on an assessment
of the number of eligible business hereditaments.

Page 18

3.0

Eligibility criteria and awards

3.1

Government, whilst wanting Councils to exercise their local knowledge and
discretion, has set national criteria for the funds. In all cases, the Council will only
consider businesses for grants where all of the criteria are met. Businesses will only
be eligible where they are trading on the date of the announcement of either the
local restriction or widespread national restrictions.

3.2

The Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has stated that
businesses that were open as usual and providing in-person services to customers
from their business premises and then required to close for a consecutive period of
no less than 14 days as a result of regulations made under the Public Health
(Control of Disease) Act 1984 will be eligible for this funding.

3.3

Where there is a widespread national restriction, business premises will be required
to close for the entirety of the national restriction period.

3.4

Guidance from the Department states that this could include, non-essential retail,
leisure, personal care, sports facilities and hospitality businesses that operate
primarily as an in- person venue but have been forced to close these services.

Local restrictions awards and frequency of payment
3.5

Businesses which are forced to close in a localised restriction (LCAL3) that is
implemented for less than two weeks and businesses that are closed for less than
two weeks are not eligible for grant funding.

3.6

The amount of grant and the frequency of awards in respect of local restrictions are
fixed as follows:
(a) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on the date of the commencement of
the local restrictions will receive a payment of £667 per 14-day qualifying
restriction period;
(b) Businesses occupying hereditaments with a rateable value of over £15,000 and
less than £51,000 will receive a payment of £1,000 per 14-day qualifying
restriction period; and
(c) Businesses occupying hereditaments with a rateable value of £51,000 or over
will receive a payment of £1,500 per 14-day qualifying restriction period.

3.7

It should be noted that, in the case of local restrictions, grants will be paid every two
weeks.

3.8

Any business failing to meet the criteria will not be awarded a grant.

Page 19

National restrictions awards and frequency of payment
3.9

Where there are widespread national restrictions, the Local Restrictions Support
Grant (Closed) scheme will move from a 14-day payment cycle to an alternative
payment cycle.

3.10

For the national restriction from 5th November 2020 to 2nd December 2020, a 28day payment cycle will be applied.

3.11

The amount of grant and the frequency of awards in respect of the national
restriction are fixed as follows:

(a) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on the date of the commencement of
the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment of £1,334 per 28-day
qualifying restriction period;
(b) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value over £15,000 and less than £51,000 on the date of the
commencement of the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment of
£2,000 per 28-day qualifying restriction period; and
(c) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £51,000 or above on the commencement date of the
widespread national restrictions, will receive £3,000 per 28-day qualifying
restriction period.
3.12

At the end of any widespread national restriction, businesses may qualify for further
grants depending on the LCAL that applies to the area at that time and the schemes
in operation by the Council.

Businesses that are not shown in the local rating list
3.13

Businesses which are not shown in the local rating list may be able to apply for an
award under the Council’s Additional Restrictions Grants (ARG) Scheme.

Excluded businesses – both local and national restrictions
3.14

The following businesses will not be eligible for an award:
(a) Businesses that are able to continue to trade because they do not depend on
providing direct in-person services from premises and can operate their
services effectively remotely (e.g. accountants, solicitors);
(b) Businesses in areas outside the scope of the localised restrictions, as defined
by Government (and not subject to a widespread national restriction);
(c) Businesses that have chosen to close but not been required to, will not be eligible;
(d) Businesses which have already received grant payments that equal the maximum
levels of State aid permitted under the de minimis and the COVID-19 Temporary
State Aid Framework;
(e) Businesses that were in administration, are insolvent or where a striking-off notice
has

Page 20

been made at the date of the local restriction or national restriction; and
(f) Specific businesses subject to national closures since 23 rd March 2020 will not
be eligible for this funding. They will be provided support through the strand of
the Local Restrictions Support Grant (Sector) for nationally mandated business
closures. However, In the event of renewed widespread national ‘lockdown’
restrictions being imposed, the Local Restrictions Support Grant (Sector) will
cease to apply, as relevant businesses will receive funding from the Local
Restriction Support Grant (Closed) Scheme.

The Effective Date
3.15

The effective date for eligibility is determined as follows:
(a) In the case of local restrictions, the date of the local restrictions; and
(b) In the case of widespread national restrictions, the date of the commencement
of the widespread national restrictions.

3.16

In all cases, the following must have existed at the effective date:
 The hereditament MUSTbe shown in the local rating list as at the effective date;
 Any changes to the local rating List (Rateable Value or to the hereditament)
after that date, including changes which have been backdated to this date, will
be ignored for the purposes of eligibility;
 The Council is not required to adjust, pay or recover grants where the local rating
list is subsequently amended retrospectively to the effective date;
 In cases where it was factually clear to the Council that, at the effective date, the
local rating List was inaccurate on that date, the Council may withhold the grant
and/or award the grant based on their view of who would have been entitled to
the grant had the list been accurate. (The Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has stated that this provision is entirely at the
discretion of the Council and is only intended to prevent manifest errors. It is
not intended for ratepayers who subsequently challenge their Rateable Value);
and
 Where a hereditament is exempt from rating as at the effective date, no grant
shall be payable.

The Ratepayer
3.17

In all cases the following shall apply:
 The person who will receive the grant will be the person who, according to the
Council’s records, was the ratepayer in respect of the hereditament at the
effective date;
 The ratepayer must be liable to occupied property rates at that date. It should be
noted that grants will not be awarded where the hereditament is unoccupied;
 Where the Council has reason to believe that the information it holds about the
ratepayer at the effective date is inaccurate, it may withhold or recover the grant
and take reasonable steps to identify the correct ratepayer;
 Where, it is subsequently determined that the records held are incorrect, the
Council reserves the right to recover any grant incorrectly paid; and
 Where any ratepayer misrepresents information or contrives to take advantage
of the scheme, the Council will look to recover any grant paid and take
appropriate legal

Page 21

action. Likewise, if any ratepayer is found to have falsified records in order to obtain a
grant.

4.0

How will grants be provided to Businesses?

4.1

The Council is fully aware of the importance of these grants to assist businesses
and support the local community and economy. The Local Restrictions Support
Grant (Closed) scheme together with the Council’s Additional Restrictions Grant
(ARG) scheme will offer a lifeline to businesses who are struggling to survive during
to the COVID-19 crisis.

4.2

Details of how to obtain grants are available on the Council’s website:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/business-and-trade/business-supportcoronavirus- covid-19/

4.3

In all cases businesses will be required to confirm that they are eligible to receive
the grants. This includes where the Council already has bank details for the
business and are in a position to send out funding immediately. Businesses are
under an obligation to notify the Council should they no longer meet the eligibility
criteria for any additional grants.

4.4

The Council reserves the right request any supplementary information from
businesses, and they should look to provide this, where requested, as soon as
possible.

4.5

An application for a Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) is deemed to have
been made when a duly completed application form is received via the Council’s
online procedure.

4.6

All monies paid under this scheme will be funded by Government and paid to the
Council under S31 of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.0

EU State Aid requirements

5.1

All State aid requirements must be met and complied with under this grant scheme,
including, where required, compliance with all relevant conditions of the EU State
aid De-Minimis Regulation, the EU Commission Temporary Framework for State
aid measures to support the economy in the current COVID-19 outbreak, the
approved Covid-19 Temporary Framework for UK Authorities, and any relevant
reporting requirements to the EU Commission.

5.2

Recipients will be asked to complete a declaration to confirm the position in relation
to State Aid.

6.0

Scheme of Delegation

6.1

The Council has approved this scheme.

Page 22

6.2

7.0

Officers of the Council will administer the scheme and the Operational Lead for
Specialist Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Assets
is authorised to make technical scheme amendments to ensure it meets the criteria
set by the Council and, in line with Government guidance.

Notification of Decisions

7.1

Applications will be considered on behalf of the Council by the Specialist Services
(Economy and Culture, and Revenues and Benefits)

7.2

All decisions made by the Council shall be notified to the applicant either in writing
or by email. A decision shall be made as soon as practicable after an application is
received.

.

8.0

Reviews of Decisions

8.1

The Council will operate an internal review process and will accept an applicant’s
request for a review of its decision.

8.2

All such, requests must be made in writing to the Council within 14 days of the
Council’s decision and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with
the decision of the Council. New information may be submitted at this stage to
support the applicant’s appeal.

8.3

The application will be reconsidered by a senior officer, as soon as practicable and
the applicant informed in writing or by email of the decision.

9.0
9.1

Complaints
The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Councils website) will be
applied in the event of any complaint received about this scheme.

10.0 Taxation and the provision of information to Her Majesty’s
Revenues and Customs (HMRC)
10.1

The Council has been informed by Government that all payments under the scheme
are taxable.

10.2

The Council does not accept any responsibility in relation to an applicant’s tax
liabilities and all applicants should make their own enquiries to establish any tax
position.

10.3

All applicants should note that the Council is required to inform Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) of all payments made to businesses.

Page 23

11.0 Managing the risk of fraud
11.1 Neither the Council, nor Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the
schemes or fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain grant money
or failing to declare entitlement to any of the specified grants will face prosecution
and any funding issued will be recovered from them.
11.2 Applicants should note that, where a grant is paid by the Council, details of each
individual grant may be passed to Government.

12.0 Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid
12.1

If it is established that any award has been made incorrectly due to error,
misrepresentation or incorrect information provided to the Council by an
applicant or their representative(s), the Council will look to recover the amount
in full.

13.0 Data Protection and use of data
13.1

All information and data provided by applicants shall be dealt with in accordance
with the Council’s Data Protection policy and Privacy Notices which are
available on the Council’s website.

Page 24

Item No.5

7 October to 15 December 2020
Official engagements undertaken by the Chairman

Date

Engagement

8 November 2020

Remembrance Sunday, Kendal Market Place & Kendal Parish
Church Service

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Item No.6
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020
Report from the Independent Remuneration Panel
For 2021/2022 to 2024/2025
Portfolio:

Not Applicable

Report from:

Helen Smith - Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
Linda Fisher - Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Report Author:

Helen Smith - Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Not Applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

That Members consider the recommendations of a Report received from the
Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) for Members’ Allowances.

2.0

Recommendation
2.1

Council is asked to consider and approve the recommendations of the
Independent Remuneration Panel for Members’ Allowances to be
adopted with effect from 1 April 2021.

2.2

For Council to approve a four year Term of the Members Allowances
Scheme (the Scheme) subject to any request to review the Scheme as
outlined in the Scheme.

2.3

For the period from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2025, Council agree that the
uplift for Basic Allowances be in line with the agreed public sector staff
pay award for each year of the Scheme.

2.4.

A detailed review and report by the Independent Remuneration Panel will
be presented to the Council meeting in December 2024 for
implementation for the next 4 years effective from 1 April 2025.

2.5.

To reduce the number of Independent Remuneration Panel members
from 5 to 4 effective from 01 April 2021 and that the Chairman of the Panel
be given power to exercise the casting vote if ever required; the
Independent Remuneration Panel Terms of Reference are amended
accordingly.

2.6

Co-optees Allowance is uplifted in line with the agreed public sector staff
pay award for each year of the Scheme.

2.7

Planning Committee Substitutes Members continue to receive £250
allowance.

Page 27

2.8.

To agree the draft advert and job description for recruiting IRP members.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Council considered a Report from the Independent Remuneration Panel at its
meeting on 25 February 2020. Since that meeting, intervening events such as the
Coronavirus Pandemic has meant that it has now been considered necessary for
amendment to be made by the Independent Remuneration Panel to the Council’s
Members’ Allowance Scheme (‘the Scheme’).

3.2

A copy of the Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel, together with a revised
Members’ Allowance Scheme that is being put forward as part of the Panel’s
recommendations, is attached to this report at Appendix 1. A copy of the current
Members’ Allowances Scheme is set out in the Council’s Constitution.
Proposed 4 year Members Allowances Scheme

3.3

The difference between the Scheme which was approved by Council at its meeting on
25 February 2020 and the revised Scheme contained in this Report is that the Council’s
Members’ Allowance Scheme moving forward, would be in place for a four (4) years
period. During the four (4) years period, Members’ Allowances will be uplifted annually
in line with the agreed public sector staff pay award for each year. The next full review
of the Council’s Scheme for Members’ Allowances would be conducted in the year
2024/2025 for another four (4) years’ term.

3.4

During the four years term of the revised Scheme, the IRP Panel will continue to meet
at least once a year to review the index levels used in calculating the Scheme in each
year. Council Members, Officers and IRP Panel will be able to request a review of the
Scheme during the four years term if there are reasonable grounds for doing so.
Reasonable grounds would include changes to Member’s roles, creation of new roles,
revision or additional Member’s Portfolio roles or, due to Local Government Reorganisation.

3.5

Under the Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (“the
Regulations”), before making or amending its allowance scheme, the Council has a
duty to have regard to the recommendations made in relation to it by the Independent
Remuneration Panel. Once the report is received, the Council is also required to
ensure that copies are available for inspection by the public, and a notice published in
a local newspaper advising of the Council’s receipt of the Report from the Independent
Remuneration Panel. This is to be done and a notice is due to be published in the
Westmorland Gazette on 03 December 2020.

3.6

If Members resolve to amend the Members’ Allowance Scheme, officers will place an
advertisement in the Westmorland Gazette setting out the details of the revised
scheme that will be in effect from 1 April 2021.
Proposed Basic Members Allowances for 2021/2022 to 2024/2025

3.7

For the period from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2025 that Council agree that the uplift
for Basic Allowances be in line with the agreed public sector staff pay award for each
year of the Scheme.
Recruitment of Independent Remuneration Members Terms of Office

3.8

Two of the Independent Remuneration Panel members’ terms of offices are due to end
on 31 March 2021 and 02 July 2021 respectively. An advert will be placed using the
various communication media available to the Council to advertise the vacancy of
these positions as set out in Appendix 2.

Page 28

3.9

The Panel considered representations from Council Members. Members were not in
favour of the proposal to reduce the Panel members from 5 to 3. As a result of
Members’ feedback, the Panel recommends that there be a reduction from 5 to 4
members instead.

3.10

The successful candidate would be expected to commence his/her role on the
Independent Remuneration Panel shortly after appointment. This recommendation is
considered a more prudent and costs effective means of undertaking the work of the
IRP.
Special Responsibility Allowance

3.11

Subject to any request to review as outlined in the Scheme, substitute Planning
Committee Members be entitled to an allowance of £250.00

3.12

All other aspect of Members’ Allowances to be the subject to a full review in
2024/2025 year and as detailed within the Report and Scheme.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The Appendix 1 of the IRP report, at paragraphs 7 to 10 sets out the research and
consultations that have been carried out as preparatory work in guiding its
recommendations. In summary, the IRP proposals were sent to all South Lakeland
District Council Group Leaders, Councillors and Parish Council for their views.

4.2.1

Appendix C of the IRP report provides an anonymised summary of comments from
Members. In particular, Members were in support of the IRP’s proposal to conduct a
light touch review for the 2021/2022 Members Allowances. Members were also in
support of the move to 4 yearly reviews for Members’ Allowances and the index to be
used in calculating Members’ Allowances. Members were also happy with the ability
to request a review of Members’ Allowances Scheme during the Term of the Scheme.
However, Members commented that a detailed investigation be conducted to review
Basic Allowances for Members as they felt that the current thresholds were acting as
a barrier to those on lower incomes, younger people, women, BAME and working
people from taking part in the democratic process. It was felt by some Members that
the Special Responsibility Allowances for Members should be reconsidered.

4.3

The majority of Members were not in favour of the IRP’s proposal to reduce its Panel
from 5 to 3. Members were concerned that such drastic reduction in members would
affect the work of the IRP and there was a need to have diverse experiences on the
Panel.

4.5

Members raised other comments which they considered had impact on their workload;
the IRP would like the Council to consider how best to address these comments which
were outside IRP’s remit. Some of the comments raised by Members are as follows:
4.5.1
4.5.2

the 3 member wards altered the dynamic and workload for Councillors; and
Impact of working at home for Members on broadband use and electricity.

4.6

As part of the consultation, all parish clerks were informed of the proposals. One
comment was received from one of the Parish Councils. As a result, and in accordance
with the Regulations, no recommendations has been made for Parish Councils in the
IRP’s role as the Parish Remuneration Panel.

4.7

Research was also carried out with other local authorities to understand and assist the
IRP in the four (4) yearly review of its Scheme based on an agreed index (agreed
public sector staff pay award).

4.8

The attached Report has been considered by the Independent Remuneration Panel
as a prudent and cost effective way of reviewing Members’ Allowance Scheme in light
of the Coronavirus Pandemic and going forward.

Page 29

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The Regulations afford the Council discretion as to whether or not it accepts any of the
recommendations proposed in the Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel.

5.2

To continue to conduct annual reviews is an available option. However, this is
considered not to be an effective use of the Council’s resources going forward.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Having an appropriate Members’ Allowances Scheme will serve to strengthen the
Council’s priorities and objectives and is relevant to the Council’s vision of “Working
together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore”.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1.1

The recommended allowance scheme is estimated to cost up to a maximum of
£327,632 for 2020/21 rising to £347,895 by 2024/25 based on the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP) estimate of a 2% annual pay award for this period. If the pay
award is lower projected then the total cost will reduce accordingly.

7.1.2

The total cost of the scheme is compared to the total Budget Requirement for the
Council (defined as the total to be met from the General Government Grants, Business
Rates and Council Tax). Since this income is projected to fall over this period the
projected cost of the scheme increases from 2.17% for 2020/21 to 2.77% by 2024/25.
If the Budget Requirement were to stay at the level for 2020/21 then the cost would
increase to 2.31% of the Budget Requirement.

Human Resources
7.2.1

If approved, the Finance Team will be required to implement the new Members’
Allowances Scheme.

Legal
7.3.1

Under the Regulations the Council is required to establish and maintain an
Independent Remuneration Panel. The purpose of the Panel is to review the existing
Scheme of Allowances, including the Special Responsibility Allowances paid to
Members and to make recommendations to the Council on the appropriate level of
payments to be made in the future.

7.3.2

The Panel also acts as the Parish Remuneration Panel for all Parish and Town
Councils within the district, making recommendations as to the level of Basic and
Chairman’s allowances and expenses for Parish and Town Councillors.

7.3.2

The Panel recommend that the Council adopts a 4 yearly review of members’
allowances and this is permitted under the Regulations.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4.1

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.4.2

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
The proposals are limited in scope and therefore have no substantial social, economic
or environmental considerations.

Equality and Diversity
7.5.1

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.5.2

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:

Page 30

The proposals are considered to have a neutral impact in terms of equality issues. The
current Members’ Allowance Scheme has provision for double journeys to be carried
out by spouses/partners for members with a disability who need to be driven to
meetings. This provision avoids the need for the spouse /partner to wait for the duration
of the meeting.
Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

That Members fail to properly
give due regard to the report of
the Independent Remuneration
Panel

Potential reputational issue
to the Council in the event
that Members’ decision as
to remuneration appears
not to have regard to the
report of the Independent
Remuneration Panel

Whilst
Council
has
discretion to resolve to
make alterations to the
Members’
Allowance
Scheme over and above
those recommended by
the Panel, it has a duty to
have
regard
to
the
recommendations of the
Panel in doing so. This can
be achieved by Members
giving
thorough
consideration
of
the
recommendations of the
Panel in full Council.

Contact Officers
Report Author:
Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer), 01539
793370 linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Helen

Smith – Finance Lead
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk

Specialist

(151

Officer),

01539

793147,

(Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Report from the Independent Remuneration Panel for 2021/2022 –
2024/2025 which include the following Appendices:

2

-

Appendix A – Proposed Scheme;

-

Appendix B – 4 years Comparator Information; and

-

Appendix C – Summarised Members’ Feedback

IRP Recruitment Pack.

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
12.11.2020
24.11.2020
17.11.2020

Page 31

Date Signed off
01.12.2020
25.11.2020
19.11.2020

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
30.11.2020

Page 32

Appendix 1

REPORT TO SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL FROM THE
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COUNCILLORS’ ALLOWANCES FOR
THE 2021/2022 to 2024/2025 YEARS

Page 33

1

Page 34

2

LIST OF CONTENTS
Summary

Page 4

Background

Page 4/5

Scope of the Report

Page 6

Methodology

Page 6

Term of the Scheme

Page 6/7

Index of the Scheme

Page 7

Basic Allowance

Page 7

Special Responsibility Allowances

Page 8

Childcare/Dependants Allowances

Page 8

Travel and Subsistence

Page 9

Co-optees’ Allowance

Page 9/10

Members’ Allowance Scheme

Appendix A

4 Yearly review comparison

Appendix B

Summarised Members Feedback

Appendix C

Page 35

3

Summary
The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) gave due consideration to the current economic
conditions for local authorities, representations made by Members, the allowances paid by
comparator authorities, the work undertaken by Members, the recent pay settlements for
SLDC employees and the recent impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on Council’s resources.
The IRP recommends the changes outlined in bold:

















A four year Term of the Members’ Allowances Scheme (the Scheme) subject
to any request to review as outlined in the Scheme.
For the period from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2025 that uplift for Basic
Allowances be in line with the agreed public sector staff pay award for each
year of the Scheme.
A detailed review and report by the Independent Remuneration Panel will be
presented to the Council meeting in December 2024 for implementation for
the next 4 years effective from 1 April 2025.
To reduce the number of Independent Remuneration Panel members from 5
to 4 effective from 01 April 2021 and that the Chairman of the Panel be given
power to exercise the casting vote if ever required; the Independent
Remuneration Panel Terms of Reference are amended accordingly.
Co-optees Allowance is uplifted in line with the agreed public sector staff pay
award for each year of the Scheme.
Planning Committee Substitute Members continue to receive £250
allowance.
To agree the draft advert and job description for recruiting IRP members.
The IRP Panel will continue to meet at least once each year to review the
index levels used in calculating the Scheme in each year. Council Members,
Officers and IRP Panel members will be able to request a review of the
Scheme during the Term of the Scheme if there are reasonable grounds for
doing so. Reasonable grounds include changes to Member’s roles, creation
of additional Member’s Portfolio roles or external factors such as Local
Government re-organisation.
No amendments to current Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs)
(however, planning substitute to continue to receive £250.00);
Other than the Group Leaders’ Allowance, Members should receive no more than
one SRA;
Out of County Mileage Allowance to remain as part of the single travel allowance
scheme as per the previous year;
Travel expenses to be in accordance with the maximum rates set by HMRC without
attracting a tax charge (currently 45p per mile), this to apply to the first 150 miles
of a return journey regardless of the destination and 25p per mile thereafter;
Subsistence expenses to increase by RPI as at 1 April 2021 and each year as
applicable;
No change to Childcare/Dependant Carers’ Allowance. Payments to remain at a
maximum allowance of £15 per hour. The Allowance to be paid from the time the
recipient leaves home to time of return.

Background
1. The membership of the IRP comprises:

Page 36

4

Michael Duff Former senior manager in high tech and communications
companies and former Parish Councillor. Appointed to the IRP with effect
from 1 August 2013 until 31 March 2021;
Colin Jones Retired Financial Director and Chief Executive of various PLC
Companies. Former County, District and Town Councillor. Appointed to the
IRP with effect from 3 July 2017 until 2 July 2021;
Sally Parnaby (Chairman) Former NHS Board Director. Appointed to the
IRP with effect from 1 July 2015 until 3 July 2023; and
Alex Rocke Former Senior Local Government Officer and consultant to local
authorities and housing associations. Appointed to the IRP with effect from
11 July 2019 to 10 July 2023.
2. The IRP’s primary task in considering Members allowances is to review the remuneration
for Members in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003 (“the Regulations”). Under the terms of the Regulations and the
associated guidance the following should be noted:
a) The amount of Basic Allowance payable must be the same for all Members unless any
have relinquished all or part of their entitlement;
b) To be eligible for an SRA the post must have “significant additional responsibilities over
and above the generally accepted responsibilities of a Councillor.” The number of
SRAs should not exceed 50% of the total number of council Members; and
c) An element of voluntary service is expected and accepted.
Financial Implications
3. The recommended allowance scheme cost is shown in the table below based on current
allowance rates for 2020/21 and based on an assumed staff pay award of 2% per annum.
The actual amount will reduce if the staff pay award is lower.
4. The total costs is compared to the total of South Lakeland District Council’s 2021/22
budget based on the Medium Term Financial Plan approved by Council in July 2020. The
cost as a percentage of budget is estimated to increase from 2.17% in 2020/21 to 2.77%
by 2024/25. This increase is partially due to an increase in the projected allowances
payable (from 2.17% to 2.31%) and partially due to a reduction in the Council’s estimated
budgets due to cuts in Government assistance (from 2.31% to 2.77%).
5. The estimated costs are:
Current
Year
2020/21

Year 1
2021/22

Year 2
2022/23

Year 3
2023/24

Year 4
2024/25

£4,210.14

£4,294.34

£4,380.23

£4,467.83

£4,557.19

Estimated costs:
Basic Allowances
Special Responsibility Allowances
Travel and Subsistence Allowances

£214,717.14
£81,815.50
£31,100.00

£219,011.34
£81,815.50
£31,722.00

£223,391.73
£81,815.50
£32,356.00

£227,859.33
£81,815.50
£33,003.00

£232,416.69
£81,815.50
£33,663.00

Total Estimated cost of scheme:

£327,632.64

£332,548.84

£337,563.23

£342,677.83

£347,895.19

SLDC Budget Projection
Cost of scheme as % of Budget Projection

£15,067,200
2.17%

£13,789,200
2.41%

£12,210,400
2.76%

£12,395,900
2.76%

£12,557,300
2.77%

Year
Basic Allowance (based on budgeted staff pay
award of 2%: to be adjusted to actual staff pay
increase up to a maximum of 2%.)

Page 37

5

Scope of the Report
6. This Report gives the IRP’s recommendations for the financial years 2021/2022,
2022/2023, 2023/2024 and 2024/2025 commencing on 1 April 2021.

Methodology
The IRP met on 29 September 2020 and considered how best to proceed with its deliberations
for the year 2021/2022. The Panel was mindful of the current COVID -19 pandemic and the
additional challenges and workload which this was producing for officers and agreed that it
was most appropriate to undertake a light touch review for this year. The Panel also gave
consideration to the issues highlighted by the Chair in her presentation to Council in February
2020 namely that the Panel would seek to address how it could become more efficient in its
deliberations whilst maintaining its current level of independence, challenge and scrutiny.
7. The IRP applied the following principles to its deliberations:
 Allowances should reflect the responsibilities, accountability, time and effort
expected of Members but be set at levels which recognise the well-established
principle of voluntary unpaid public service;





Any scheme of remuneration should not discourage people from becoming
Councillors for financial reasons;
Any scheme of remuneration should be easy to understand and administer;
Recommendations on remuneration should be arrived at following logical and
consistent analysis of relevant information; and
Expenses for travel, childcare/dependants and subsistence should not contain
any element of “profit”.

8. The Panel recognises that it has always encouraged and valued input from the Group
Leaders and Members and agreed to ascertain their views this year by way of a letter
inviting written responses rather than inviting Members to meet with them. A similar letter
was also sent to all Parish Councils inviting comment.
9. The following Members provided response to the IRP proposal:







Councillor Peter Thornton;
Councillor Pete McSweeney;
Councillor Tom Harvey;
Councillor Ben Berry;
Councillor Jonathan Brook;
Councillor Mark Wilson; and
Cllr Judy Filmore.

10. The current arrangements in place with other local authorities were also taken into account
in deciding the new Term of the Scheme.

Term of the Scheme

Page 38

6

11. The new Term of the Scheme will be for four (4) years period. This new Scheme will be
from 01 April 2021 and will cover 2021/2022, 2022/2023, 2023/2024 and 2024/2025 years.
11.1. During the Term of the Scheme, the IRP Panel will continue to meet at least once a
year to review the index levels used in calculating the Scheme.
11.2. Council Members, Officers and IRP Panel members will be able to request a review
of the Scheme during the Term of the Scheme if there are reasonable grounds for doing
so. Reasonable grounds include changes to Member’s roles, creation of additional
Member’s Portfolio roles or external factors such as Local Government re-organisation.

Index of the Scheme
12. An annual increase of the Scheme will be in line with the agreed public sector staff pay
award during the Term of the Scheme.
Review
13. The IRP Panel found that a number of other local authorities had moved to a four year
scheme and that they use the agreed staff pay award to determine the level of annual
increase for the Basic Members’ Allowance.
Recommendation
A four year Term of Members’ Allowances Scheme subject to any request to review as outlined
in the Scheme.
For the period from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2025 the index to be in line with the agreed
public sector staff pay award for each year of the Scheme.

The Basic Allowance
Current Arrangements
14. A Basic Allowance of £4,201.14 per annum is currently paid to Members. The Basic
Allowance covers all the roles and activities of Members other than those that involve
significant additional responsibility. Attendance at training is part of the work of Members
for which they receive the Basic Allowance. The role recognises an element of voluntary
service in arriving at the allowance.
Review
15. The review of the Scheme undertaken by the IRP indicates that, in comparison with other
peer group authorities, the methodology used is a satisfactory basis for determining the
remuneration of District Councillors and is consistent with the IRP’s remuneration
principles.
16. The IRP Panel gave due consideration to the following points:


The current economic conditions for local authorities;



The public sector pay award for SLDC employees. It was considered not appropriate to
support an increase higher than that which SLDC employees will receive;



Representations made by Members;



Current economic position and the impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on the Council’s
resources;



Comparative practices of other local authorities; and

Page 39

7



The fact that, whilst a number of Members have multiple roles across different authorities,
the IRP only considered evidence in respect of this Council.

Therefore, the recommendation of the IRP is as follows:
Recommendation
17. For the period from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2025, the uplift for Basic Allowances be in
line the agreed public sector staff pay award for each year of the Scheme.
SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE
Review
18. The IRP did not undertake a detailed review of all Special Responsibility Allowances this
year. However, it did discuss the extension of the existing SRA for Planning Committee
Members to agreed substitutes.
Recommendation
19. The IRP does not propose to make any recommendations for change in respect of Special
Responsibility Allowances but would recommend that the payment of £250 to members of the
Planning Committee is formally extended to agreed substitutes.

Childcare/Dependants Allowances
Current arrangements
20. The current arrangement is a minimum of £3.00 and a maximum of £15.00 per hour, upon
production of proof of payment. The rate is payable from the time of leaving home to returning
home.
The
duties
to
which
it
applies
are
listed
in
Schedule
2
(Part 1) of the current Scheme of Allowances. There is no requirement for carers to be formally
registered. The IRP considered that there was no requirement for a further review of this
allowance. The allowance is considered sufficiently flexible to make adequate arrangements
for the care of children and dependents.
Review
21. The Allowance was reviewed by the IRP.
Recommendation
22. That the upper limit of the allowance remains at £15 per hour, payable on production of
receipts/invoices from carer(s) to the satisfaction of the Finance Lead Specialist and S151
Officer. The IRP recommends that the allowance continues to be payable from the time the
recipient leaves home to the time of return.
23. This recommendation to remain for the duration of the Term of the Scheme. A detailed
review to be conducted in the 2023/2024 financial year (subject to any request to review as
outlined in the Scheme.)

Page 40

8

Travel and Subsistence Expenses
Current Arrangements
24. The recommended travel rates are based on Members receiving recompense for
expenses necessarily incurred in carrying out their Approved Duties whilst providing no
element of profit. The level of payment in respect of mileage is commensurate with the
guidelines set by Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC).
25. The current mileage rate for travel outside Cumbria is the cheapest rail fare available for
the journey or at a public transport rate of 50% of the car mileage allowance, giving a current
rate of 22.5p per mile, whichever is the least amount. The preferred mode of travel is by public
transport (if by rail at standard class rates) but where this is not feasible and Members use
their own vehicles then mileage will be paid in accordance with the rates set by HMRC without
attracting a tax charge (currently 45p per mile), this to apply to the first 150 miles of a return
journey regardless of the destination and 25p per mile thereafter.
26. The subsistence rate is reviewed in line with the percentage annual increases in the Retail
Price Index at 1 April each year, which is the method used for reviewing the subsistence rates
paid to SLDC employees.
Review
27. Having previously reviewed comparative information from Peer Authorities on this
allowance, the IRP found that there was and continue to be a very low level of claims for
subsistence from Members. It is considered that no further comparative information from Peer
Authorities is required. This being subject to the subsistence rates being increased by RPI at,
01 April 2021, 01 April 2022, 01 April 2023 and 01 April 2024.
Recommendations
28. That the list of Approved Duties for travel and subsistence as shown in Schedule 2 Part 1
of the recommended Scheme be continued.
29. The current arrangements remain the same as last year and will continue for 2021/2022,
2022/2023, 2023/2024 and 2024/2025 financial years.
30. Should the maximum Mileage allowance be increased by HMRC during the fiscal year
then the Mileage Allowance will be increased to that maximum and backdated to the date of
the increase by HRMC in that fiscal year.

Co-optees’ Allowance
Current Arrangements
31. Co-optees’ are currently permitted to claim an allowance of £38.38 per meeting.
Review
32. The IRP received no representations on this issue however considered it appropriate to
increase this allowance in line with the agreed public sector staff pay award.
Recommendation

Page 41

9

33. The IRP recommends that during the Term of the Scheme, the Co-optees’ Allowance be
increased in line with the agreed public sector staff pay award.

Amendment of Scheme
34. In the event that the Scheme is amended then any revised allowances shall apply from
the date specified.

Scheme
35. The Scheme, as attached as Appendix A to this Report, is recommended for Council’s
approval.

Acknowledgements
36. The IRP would like to express its gratitude to Linda Fisher (Legal, Governance and
Democracy Lead Specialist), Courage Aiguobasinmwin (Solicitor – Legal, Governance and
Democracy Specialist) Una Bell (Case Management Team Leader) and Adam Moffatt (Case
Management Officer) for their assistance in providing guidance regarding the relevant
regulations, the collection of comparative data, collection of associated information regarding
Council services, operational issues and arrangement of accommodation and hospitality for
meetings.
37. In addition the IRP wishes to thank those Members who made representations to the
Panel.

SALLY PARNABY
CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL
22 November 2020

Page 42

10

Appendix 1: Appendix A

RECOMMENDED MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME FROM 01 APRIL 2021 to 31
MARCH 2025.

Page 43

Page 44

MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME FROM 01 APRIL 2021 – 31 MARCH 2025
The South Lakeland District Council, in exercise of the powers conferred by the Local Authorities
(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, hereby makes the following Scheme:1.

This Scheme may be cited as the South Lakeland District Council Members’ Allowances
Scheme (the Scheme), and shall apply to the year commencing on 1 April 2021 for the
2021/2022, 2022/2023, 2023/2024 and 2024/2025 years (Period of the Scheme). The Scheme
shall be reviewed in 2024/2025 financial year for another four years period and thereafter, on
a four yearly review (subject to any request to review as outlined in the Scheme).

2.

In this Scheme,
“Councillor” means a member of the South Lakeland District Council who is a Councillor;
“year” means the 12 months ending with 31 March
“co-opted member” means a person who is not a member of the Council but who is a member
of a committee or sub-committee of the Council.

Basic Allowance
3.

(1)
Subject to paragraphs 8 to12, for each year, a basic allowance of up to from £4,201.14
shall be paid to each Councillor and in line with the agreed public sector pay award increase.

Special Responsibility Allowance
4.

(1)
for each year a special responsibility allowance shall be paid to those Councillors who
hold the special responsibilities in relation to the authority that are specified in Schedule 1 of
this Scheme; and
(2)
subject to paragraphs 8 to 12, the amount of each such allowance shall be as specified
in the said Schedule 1.
(3)
with the exception of Group Leaders’ Allowance, where a Councillor carries out more
than one special responsibility, he/she will only be entitled to receive one allowance.

Child Carers’ Allowance
5.

(1)
An allowance in respect of the cost of child care for children up to the age of 14 shall
be paid to Councillors of a minimum of £3.00 per hour, up to a maximum of £15.00 per hour.
The allowance shall be payable from the time the recipient leaves home to the time of return.
There is no requirement for carers to be registered.
(2)
The allowance shall be payable when Councillors are required to arrange for child care
when undertaking duties as a Councillor, in accordance with Regulation 7 of the Local Authority
(Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, upon production of proof of payment to
the satisfaction of the Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources. A list of approved duties
is set out at Schedule 2 of the Scheme.

Dependant Carers’ Allowance
6.

(1)
An allowance in respect of the cost of a dependant carer shall be paid to Councillors of
a minimum of £3.00 per hour, up to a maximum of £15.00 per hour. The allowance shall be
payable from the time the recipient leaves home to the time of return. There is no requirement
for carers to be registered.
(2)
The allowance shall be payable when Councillors are required to arrange for
dependent care when undertaking duties as a Councillor in accordance with Regulation 7 of the
Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, upon production of proof
of payment to the satisfaction of the Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer. A list of
approved duties is set out at Schedule 2 of the Scheme.

Page 45

Renunciation
7.

A Councillor may by notice in writing given to the Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer
elect to forego his or her entitlement or any part of his or her entitlement to an allowance under
this Scheme.

Part-year Entitlements
8.

(1)
the provisions of this paragraph shall have effect to regulate the entitlements of a
Councillor to basic and special responsibility allowances where, in the course of a year, this
scheme is amended or that Councillor becomes, or ceases to be, a Councillor, or accepts or
relinquishes a special responsibility in respect of which a special responsibility allowance is
payable;
(2)
if an amendment to this Scheme changes, the amount to which a Councillor is entitled
by way of a basic allowance or a special responsibility allowance, then in relation to each of the
periods
(a)
beginning with the year and ending with the day before that on which the first
amendment in that year takes effect, or
(b)
beginning with the day on which an amendment takes effect and ending with the day
before that on which the next amendment takes effect, or (if none) with the year the entitlement
to such an allowance shall be to the payment of such part of the amount of the allowance under
this Scheme as it has effect during the relevant period as bears to the whole the same
proportion as the number of the days in the period bears to the number of days in the year;
(3)
where the term of office of a Councillor begins or ends otherwise than at the beginning
or end of a year, the entitlement of that Councillor to a basic allowance shall be to the payment
to such part of the basic allowance as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number
of days during which his or her term of office subsists bears to the number of days in that year;
(4)
where this Scheme is amended as mentioned in sub-paragraph (2), and the term of
office of a Councillor does not subsist throughout the period mentioned in sub-paragraph (2)
(a), the entitlement of any such Councillor to a basic allowance shall be to the payment of such
part of the basic allowance referable to each such period (ascertained in accordance with that
sub-paragraph) as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number of days during which
his or her term of office as a Councillor subsists bears to the number of days in that period;
(5)
where a Councillor has during part of, but not throughout, a year such special
responsibilities as entitle him or her to a special responsibility allowance, that Councillor’s
entitlement shall be to payment of such part of the special responsibility allowance as bears to
the whole the same proportion as the number of days during which he or she has such special
responsibilities bears to the number of days in that year; and
(6)
where this scheme is amended as mentioned in sub-paragraph (2), and a Councillor
has during part, but does not have throughout the whole, of any period mentioned in
sub-paragraph (2) (a) of that paragraph any such special responsibilities as entitle him or her
to a special responsibility allowance, that Councillor’s entitlement shall be to payment of such
part of the allowance referable to each such period (ascertained in accordance with that subparagraph) as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number of days in that period
during which he or she has such special responsibilities bears to the number of days in that
period.

Claims & Payments
9.

The Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances will be paid automatically on a monthly basis
unless the Councillor in question has renounced his entitlement to payment as set out in
paragraph 7 above. Claims will be met for a period of up to 12 months from the date of the
entitlement.

Page 46

10.

(1)
payments shall be made in respect of basic and special responsibility allowance in
instalments of one-twelfth of the amount specified in this scheme on the twentieth day of each
month.
(2)
where a payment of one-twelfth of the amount specified in this Scheme in respect of a
basic allowance or a special responsibility allowance would result in the Councillor receiving
more than the amount to which, by virtue of paragraph 8, he or she is entitled the payment shall
be restricted to such amount as will ensure that no more is paid than the amount to which he
or she is entitled.
(3)
All Councillors are reminded that the Council’s policy in respect of the submission of
receipts should be adhered to at all times in order that the Council may maximise the recovery
of VAT.

Repayment of Allowance
11.

Where payment of any allowance has already been made in respect of any period during which
the Councillor concerned
(a)

ceases to be a member of the Council, or

(b)

is in any other way not entitled to receive the allowance in respect of that period,

the Council may require that such part of the allowance as related to any such period be repaid
to the Council.
12.

Where a member of an authority is also a member of another authority, that member may not
receive allowances from more than one authority in respect of the same duties.

Other Allowances
13.

Travelling & Subsistence Expenses
(1) Councillors and co-opted members may claim travelling and subsistence expenses
undertaken in connection with or relating to those duties specified as an approved duty at
Schedule 2 Part I of the Scheme in accordance with Regulation 8 of the Local Authorities
(Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. The rate of travelling and subsistence are
set out in Part II of Schedule 2.

14.

Co-optees’ allowance
(1)
For each year an allowance shall be payable, if claimed, to a person who is not a
member of the Council but who is a member of a committee or sub-committee of the Council in
respect of attendance at conferences and meetings, in accordance with Regulation 9 of the
Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. This amount shall be
£40.22 per meeting. Co-optees to the Council will be paid their allowances on a monthly basis
subject to submitting a claim form.
(2)
Where the appointment of the co-opted member begins or ends otherwise than at the
beginning or end of a year, his or her entitlement shall be to payment of such part of the
Co-optees’ allowance as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number of days during
which his term of office as member subsists bears to the number of days in that year.
(3)
A co-opted member may by notice in writing given to the Finance Lead Specialist and
S151 Officer elect to forgo his or her entitlement or any part of his or her entitlement to
allowances.
(4)
Co-optees allowances will be uplifted annually in line with the agreed public sector staff
pay award during the Period of the Scheme.

15.

Period of the Scheme
In agreeing this Scheme the Council accepted the recommendation of the Independent
Remuneration Panel (IRP) that the Scheme should be in place for a period of four years from
01 April 2021 until 31 March 2025, subject to the agreed indexation and review: see section
16 below.

16.

Indexation and Review of Allowances

Page 47

In agreeing this Scheme, the Council accepted the recommendation of the IRP that the
allowances payable should be uplifted annually by the agreed public sector staff pay award for
the Period of the Scheme. The Council accept that a review of the Scheme will be conducted
during the Period of the Scheme if requested by Council Members, Officers and IRP Panel
members if there are reasonable grounds for doing so. Reasonable grounds includes; changes
to Member’s roles, creation of additional Member’s Portfolio roles or external factors such as
Local Government re-organisation.

Page 48

SCHEDULE 1
SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE
The following are specified as special responsibilities in respect of which special responsibility
allowances are claimable (in addition to the basic allowances) and the amounts of these allowances:-

Leader of the Council (With
Portfolio)
Deputy Leader of the Council (With
Portfolio)
Other Members of the Cabinet
Leader of the Opposition
Chairman of the Council
Chairman of the Planning
Committee
Chairman of the Audit, HR, Lake
Administration and Overview and
Scrutiny Committees
Chairman of the Licensing,
Licensing Regulatory and
Standards Committees
Group Leaders

£ p.a.
Up to
12,120.00
7,171.00
6,060.00
1,863.00
1,863.00
2,794.50
1,863.00

931.50

Number of Councillors
in the Group at the
preceding Annual
Council meeting

2–5

6 – 10
11 – 15
16 – 20
21 – 26
27 +
Members of the Shadow Cabinet
(with the exception of the Leader of
the Opposition)
Members of the Planning
Committee (plus substitutes)

372.00

496.00
621.00
742.00
871.00
1,245.00
505.00

250.00

‘Group’ is as defined in the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990,
and comprises of at least two Members.

Page 49

SCHEDULE 2
Part I
List of Approved Duties where travel and subsistence, and child care and dependants’ carers’ expenses
may be claimed.
(Note – Approved duty only applicable to Members of the relevant Committee, Sub-Committee, etc.)
List of Approved Duties
(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)
(g)
(h)

(i)

(j)

the attendance at a meeting of the authority or of any committee or sub-committee of the
authority, or any other body to which the authority makes appointments or nominations, or of
any committee or sub-committee of such a body;
the attendance at any other meeting, the holding of which is authorised by the authority, or a
committee or sub-committee of the authority, or a joint committee of the authority and at least
one other local authority within the meaning of section 270(1) of the Local Government Act
1972, or a sub-committee of such a joint committee, provided that:(i)
where the authority is divided into two or more political groups it is a meeting to which
members of at least two such groups have been invited; or
(ii)
if the authority is not so divided, it is a meeting to which at least two members of the
authority have been invited;
the attendance at a meeting of any association of authorities of which the authority is a member;
the attendance at a meeting of the Cabinet or a meeting of any of its committees, where the
authority is operating executive arrangements; (To include:(1) Informal meetings of Cabinet Members called by the Leader;
(2) Leader and Portfolio Holders’ briefings with officers;
(3) Portfolio Holders’ attendance on site visits and meetings with other organisation in
connection with their responsibilities; and
(4) Attendance by Portfolio Holders and their nominated Councillors at advisory and focus
group);
travel and subsistence expenses are to be paid to those Members of the Shadow Executive
attending formal meetings of the Cabinet, and other formal Council meetings to which they are
invited in their role as Shadow Cabinet Members, and the attendance at up to 12 informal
meetings of the Shadow Executive per Council year;
travel expenses are to be paid those members who attend a Parish or Town Council Meeting
for their Ward save where they are also a member of that Parish or Town Council;
travel and subsistence expenses are to be paid to Members in respect of attendance at Local
Area Partnerships and in connection with their duties;
the performance of any duty in pursuance of any standing order made under section 135 of the
Local Government Act 1972 requiring a member or members to be present while tender
documents are opened;
the performance of any duty in connection with the discharge of any function of the authority
conferred by or under any enactment and empowering or requiring the authority to inspect or
authorise the inspection of premises;
the carrying out of any other duty approved by the authority, or any duty of a class so approved,
for the purpose of, or in connection with, the discharge of the functions of the authority or any
of its committees or sub-committees. (These currently include the following):(1) The attendance by Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the Council/Committee at agenda briefing
meetings with officers where this is held on a day other than the day of the relevant meeting;
(2) Council-run seminars and training events;
(3) Civic duties undertaken by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council;
(4) Site visits organised by Officers in respect of matters under consideration; and
(5) Visits to other authorities/ organisations where specifically authorised by Council/
Committee.

Page 50

Part II
Travel
Public Transport will be paid at ordinary fare, standard class or cheapest fare for the journey whichever
is the least amount.
The mileage rate for travel by car to be in accordance with the maximum rates set by HMRC without
attracting a tax charge (currently 45p per mile), this to apply to the first 150 miles of a return journey
regardless of the destination and 25p per mile thereafter.
Where the use of a taxi is unavoidable, the Council will reimburse the actual cost.
If because of a disability Members are driven to a meeting by their spouse/ partner it is appropriate for
them to claim for double journeys in cases of long meetings. This will avoid the need for their
spouse/partner to wait for the duration of the meeting.
The mileage rate for travel by bicycle and motorcycle to be in accordance with the maximum rates set
by HMRC without attracting a tax charge (currently 20p and 24p per mile respectively).
When members car share to an Approved Duty the Mileage Allowance be increased by 5p per mile per
passenger (maximum 4 passengers). Passengers may include Members and Officers of the Council
Appropriate incidental expenses, e.g. car parking charges, will be reimbursed on the production of
receipts.
Subsistence
The Council will reimburse actual expenses incurred by Members on subsistence on the production of
receipts, subject to a maximum of:
Period of Absence

Maximum Allowance

4 to 8 Hours

£9.91

Over 8 but less than 12 Hours

£14.17

Over 12 but less than 24 Hours

£26.70

Overnight Stay

Reasonable Actual Expenses

Bed & Breakfast

Reasonable Actual Expenses

Note – the rates for travel expenses may change from 1 April 2021, in accordance with the rates issued
by H.M. Revenue and Customs and subsistence in line with the increase in the Retail Price Index for
the period from April 2021 to March 2024.

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52

Appendix 1: Appendix B
Appendix B: Research conducted: Table 1 set out other local authorities who uses fixed
period for reviewing their schemes.
Local Authority
Blackburn
with
Borough Council

Scheme Period
Darwen 4 years

Blackpool Council
Cumbria County Council
Chichester District Council

Eden District Council
Lancaster City Council

North Devon Council

West Devon Borough Council

Wyre Council

Index Used
up rated annually in line with the pay award
for local authority NJC staff with each
annual increase
uprated annually in line with the National
3 years
Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government
Service pay award
4 years
Increased in accordance with NJCfLGS1 pay
award
4 years
Not indexed linked during the 4 years period.
As such, no uplift in place between reviews.
Their Scheme allows review and backdating
of re-assessments. Members Allowances
continues under next reviewed after 4 years
4 years
Index linked to local government staff pay
award i.e. NJCfLGS
4 years
Index linked to “principal local government
pay settlement” which is the same as
NJCfLGS
4 years
Based on index which is linked to “increase
in staff remuneration” same as NJC Local
Government Staff. Recommendations still
considered by Council annually. The Panel
contains three members.
4 years
Last reviewed in 2016 and due a review in
November 2020. When last reviewed, not
linked to particular index however,
considered in line with staff pay award.
Light-touch
review The IRP reviews the scheme annually –
every year and full undertaking a full review every 3 years and a
review every three “light-touch” interim review in other years.”
years.
Index linked to staff salary increases.

Research Conducted: Table 2 set out other local authority using schemes other than
the four years review.
Allerdale Borough Council

Yearly

Carlisle City Council

Yearly

Copeland Borough Council

Yearly

Fylde Borough Council

Yearly

1

Agreement reached in 2015 by their Panel to
uplift Member’s Allowances by £100.00. This
is confirmed by their Panel meeting every
year.
Increase is index linked based on annual
staff salary increase and submitted annually
for Council.
The Panel has three members and Members
Allowances are reviewed annually.
Reviewed every and submitted for approval
by Council.

National Joint Council for Local Government Services pay award

Page 53

Appendix 1: Appendix B

Page 54

Appendix 1: Appendix C
Appendix C: Summary of Responses to Independent Remuneration Panel Proposal Letter.
Summary of Responses to Independent Remuneration Panel Proposal Letter.
Comments Relating to
Summary
Light Touch Review of 2021/2022 Members’ Agreement in all responses on a light touch for 2021/22
Allowances
Basic Allowance annual increase proposal
Broad support but comments made requesting a detailed
investigation into the basic allowance acting as a barrier to
those on lower incomes.
Proposal of 4 yearly review of the Council’s Full support in all responses on four year term, particularly
Member’s Allowance Scheme
considering the option to undertake a review at any point
within the 4 years.
Reduction in Independent Remuneration Some support but concerns raised about the impact of
Panel Members
reducing the panel to 3 members particularly when bearing in
mind the contentious issues that are considered by the panel.
Parish Remuneration Panel
“No comments”
Additional comments made
 3 member wards altering the dynamic and workload for
Councillors.
 Impact of working at home for Members.
 Request for far reaching investigation of member
allowances restricting younger people, women, BAME
and working people from taking part in the democratic
process.
 Re-setting the levels of remuneration for Members.
 Reconsideration of Special Responsibility Allowances for
Members.

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Appendix 2

South Lakeland District Council – Independent Remuneration Panel Recruitment Pack
2021/2022

Contents

Independent Remuneration Panel Recruitment Leaflet 2021/22 with proposed amendments

Recruitment contacts table

Person Specification – With proposed amendments to be approved by Council

Draft Timeline for recruitment 2021/22

Page 57

Independent Remuneration Panel opportunities
EXCITING AND UNIQUE OPPORTUNITY
DO YOU WANT SOME ORIGINAL WORK EXPERIENCE FOR YOUR CV?
DO YOU WANT TO EARN A SMALL ADDITIONAL INCOME?
Deadline 12 March 2021
South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) are looking for members of the community to join an
Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) to help review its Members’ Allowances Scheme (the Scheme).
SLDC is required, by law, to operate an IRP to consider what allowances and expenses it’s elected
Councillors (Members) should receive. Councilors are paid allowances and expenses to ensure that all
members of the community are afforded the opportunity to act as elected members of the local people
and there are no financial barriers in doing so.
The IRP comprises of four (4) independent, impartial people who are not employed by SLDC but do
receive a small payment for each meeting that they attend.
What the role entails
The IRP’s main role is to review the Members Allowances Scheme in an independent, transparent and
accountable way to ensure that Members receive fair allowances/expenses in line with other
comparable local authorities whilst recognising that public money is spent in the appropriate way.
The IRP will meet at least once a year to review the Scheme and the index used. The IRP will be
provided with comparative information from other local authorities, receive information from Councillors
(orally or written) to enable them to make well founded recommendations in an independent and
informed way. The recommendations from the IRP will be presented to Council in order for the levels
of allowances to Members to be voted on. Panel members are appointed for an initial term of four years.
In exceptional circumstances, a minimum 2 year term may be considered.
Benefits of involvement
-

Gain a wide range of experience and skills including an understanding of local government
structure, range of careers within local government and the role of a Councilor;
Receive training and support;
Unique experience to include on your CV;
A unique way of contributing to your local community;
Support from officers to ensure IRP members are confident in the role they carry out;
Payment of an allowance of £70.00 per meeting (IRP Chairman)/£50.00 per meeting (IRP
Member) plus travel allowance in accordance with rates determined by SLDC.

This would be an ideal opportunity for students, and in particular those who are interested in a
career in law, politics or other environments in which the ability to analyse evidence and reach
reasoned conclusions is critical.

Page 58

Requirements
-

Aged 18 or above
Be able to understand a range of information and ask questions, make recommendations and
present findings.
Be independent and objective
Have an interest in the local area
Live in the South Lakeland district
Not be an elected member/officer of any local authority
Not have a close relationship (immediate blood relative, spouse/partner) with a member or
officer SLDC or any parish or town council within the district.
Must not be a member of any political party.

HOW TO APPLY
If you are interested in making an application to be on the IRP, please apply in writing to Legal,
Governance and Democracy, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal LA9 4DQ or to
legalcasemanagement@southlakeland.gov.uk by 12 March 2021.
If you have any questions on the above or would like to have an informal discussion prior to making an
application, please contact Courage Aiguobasinmwin on 01539 793229.
All applications will be reviewed in line with the Person Specification for an Independent member
(available upon request from Legal, Governance and Democracy).

Page 59

Recruitment contacts table

Page 60


The Legal, Governance and Democracy Team have been provided with a copy of the South Lakeland Strategic Employers list from Economic
Development colleagues which will be utilised in the IRP recruitment in addition to contacting the organisations/employers above.



SLDC Human Resources department will inform those leaving the employment of the Council of the opportunities in relation to the IRP.

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL
PERSON SPECIFICATION FOR INDEPENDENT MEMBER
General
To be eligible for appointment, a person must not be disqualified from holding office as a member of
the Local Authority. Accordingly, any person who is recommended for appointment will be required to
confirm that he/she is not disqualified. Details of the disqualifications are set out overleaf.
The Council reserves the right to remove a discredited member from the Panel. For example a
member of the panel may become discredited due to being found guilty of a criminal offence. The
Council will also remove a panel member from the Panel if he/she becomes disqualified for
appointment having regard to the grounds for disqualification set out below.
Selection Criteria
Prospective members should:1.

Live in the South Lakeland District.

2.

Have an interest in Local Government (training will be provided) and broader community issues.

3.

Have the ability to act impartially, consider evidence with an open mind and debate issues with
other panel members with a view to reaching a decision.

4.

Be aged 18 or over.

5.

Not be a Councillor or Co-opted Member of any Local Authority [including Town/Parish
Councils] for which the IRP makes recommendations.

6.

Not be directly related to, or a close friend of, a South Lakeland District Councillor or Officer of
the Council.

7.

Not be employed by South Lakeland District Council or any district council, county council,
unitary council, national park authority or fire and rescue authority or any other public authority
with members (other than a Parish/Town Council) whose allowances are governed by the Local
Authorities (Members’ Allowances) England Regulations 2003 within the County of Cumbria.
For the avoidance of doubt, this prohibition does not apply to employees of Parish/Town
Councils.

8.

Not be a member of any political party, or be politically active to the extent that a reasonable
person would conclude that this activity would influence your judgment.

9.

Not have committed to a position regarding Member allowances and/or expenses publically to
the extent that a reasonable person would conclude that this activity would influence your
judgment.

10.

Be able to analyse information, ask pertinent questions and maintain confidentiality.

11.

Be able to commit to a 4 year term of office with a limit of up to two consecutive terms. In
exceptional circumstances, a minimum 2 year term may be considered. Previous members of
the IRP may reapply after a period of 4 years or more has elapsed since they last served on
the Panel. Previous members who did not complete a previous 4 year term may reapply at any
time providing that the initial term does not exceed the term remaining on that unexpired 4 year
period.

Page 61

Essential (“E) /Desirable (“D”)

Knowledge, Skills & Experience
Ability to








Read and assess information and identify key points/issues
Listen to information and identify key points and issues
Ask questions in order to obtain information and open up discussion
Analyse information and use it to form opinions and conclusions
Work as part of a team
Communicate effectively and with a wide range of people
Ability to consider detailed information about the roles of councillors
the operation of the Authority and the discharge of its functions and
other relevant information from other authorities and independent
remuneration panels

E
E
E
E
E
E

E

Understanding of



Local Government
The role and work of a District Council
(including a knowledge of the decision making process)
 The roles of councillors
 The regulations and guidance which apply to members’ allowances
 The importance of being seen to be working independently
of the Council

D
D
D
D
E

DISQUALIFICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL
Summary of Sections 80 and 81 of the Local Government Act 1972

1.

A person shall be disqualified from being appointed if he/she:a) Holds any paid office or employment with the Authority;
b) Is a person who has been adjudged bankrupt or made a composition or arrangement
with his/her creditors;
c) Has, within five years from the day of his/her appointment, been convicted of any
offence and had passed upon him/her a sentence of imprisonment (whether suspended
or not) for a period of not less than three months without the option of a fine;
d) Has been convicted of a corrupt or illegal practice under Part III of the Representation
of the People Act 1983;
e) Is disqualified for membership for a specified period by order of the Court because of
his/her involvement in expenditure contrary to law, and
f)

2.

Is disqualified from membership for five years following an Auditor’s certificate that a
loss or deficiency has been caused by his/her wilful misconduct while a member of a
Local Authority.

The disqualification attaching to a person by reason of having been adjudged bankrupt ceases:
a) On his/her discharge from bankruptcy unless the bankruptcy order made against the
person is previously annulled; and
b) If the bankruptcy order is so annulled, on the date of the annulment.

3.

The disqualification attaching to a person by reason of his/her having made a composition or
arrangement him/her ceases:a) On the date on which payment is completed if he/she pays the debt in full; or
b) In any case, on the expiration of five years from the date on which the terms of the
deed of composition or arrangement are fulfilled.

Page 62

Draft Timeline for Independent Remuneration Panel recruitment for 2021/22
Please note this draft timeline is an estimate only and the dates involved may change.
W/C 11 January 2021
Independent Remuneration Panel recruitment begins.
Initial contact made by telephone to the larger employers/organisations to request contact details of
who to send details of the vacancies to.
W/C 25 January 2021
Contact made, initially in writing by sending the recruitment leaflet, to the distribution list made up
from SLDC Strategic Employer’s database, local employers, local community groups and sixth form
colleges within the District to request a meeting to discuss opportunity further with staff and/or
students, if appropriate.
Advertisement placed on SLDC website.
Throughout January and February 2021
Follow up contact (including meetings if appropriate) carried out with the various
organisations/colleges/community groups.
Attendance at career/recruitment fairs, if appropriate.
12 March 2021
Independent Remuneration Panel application deadline.
W/C 22 March 2021
Interview Panel meets to consider applications and short list applicants.
W/C 5 April 2021
Independent Remuneration Panel interviews.
W/C 19 April 2021
Obtain references for successful applicants & notification of decision sent.
June 2021
Training and Scoping meeting of the Independent Remuneration Panel.

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64

Item No.7
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday 15th December 2020

Corporate Financial Update Quarter 2, 2020/21
Portfolio:

Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Section 151 Officer

Report Author:

Claire Read – Finance Specialist, Claire Chouchoulas – Finance
Specialist

Wards:

All Wards

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

It is expected that Members note the projected year end position based on
performance to the end of Quarter 2 2020/21 and officers planned actions to ensure
a balanced budget by the end of the financial year.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Council:(1) Note the contents of the report and Appendices 1-4;
(2) Approve the re-profiling of the Capital Programme as shown in 3.2.3 and
Appendix 3;
(3) Subject to the approval of Cabinet on 08 December, approve the carry
forward of unspent estimates as set out in section 3.1.2 and Appendix 5;
and
(4) Subject to the approval of Cabinet on 08 December approve the virement of
£92,800 from the Community Housing Fund in section 3.1.3.
(5) Subject to the approval of Cabinet on 08 December approve the use of
£150,000 from the NNDR Pooling Reserve, £135,294 from the Kendal Town
Centre Masterplan and up to £246,000 of s106 funding, as set out in section
3.1.4
3.0

Background and Proposals

3.0.1 Revenue – Appendix 1 sets out the revenue variances to date.
a)

Covid-19 - As part of the 2019/20 Revenue and Capital Outturn report, a revised
budget was approved for 2020/21. Included in this was £2,026.5k from reserves
and £1,080.5K in government grant to cover additional costs (£827k) and the
loss of income (£2,280k).

b)

Looking forward additional costs and loss of income for the remaining year is
expected to be £826k making the total expected service cost of the pandemic

Page 65

£2.898m. These are the costs before assessing the impact of the second
lockdown.
Under the Government Sales Fees and Charges Support Scheme we made our
first claim in October for £963k for the period April to July 2020. We expect we
will need to claim a further £263k for the remainder of 2020/21. Together this will
bring in additional income of £1.226m to the Council reducing the total service
cost of the pandemic to £1.672m. This has increased slightly from the £1.623m
cost projected in the Medium Term Financial Plan approved in July 2020.
c)

Business as Usual (BAU) – in order to fully understand the underlying position
the business as usual position has been separately identified–excluding the
impact of Covid-19. The approved net revenue budget for 2020/21 set by
Council in February 2020 was £10.9m which included a vacancy factor savings
target of £439.6k. Additionally, carry forward requests of £1.2m were approved
by Council on 30 June 2020. Expenditure budgets have been increased in
accordance with those approved carry forwards along with the matching funding
from reserves. Carry forwards are now requested to 2021/22.

Overall, at the end of Quarter 2, budget monitoring has identified a forecast business
as usual year-end overspend of £216k.
3.0.2 Capital – Appendix 2 sets out the position on the capital programme. The capital
budget for 2020/21 approved by Council in February was £22.083m. The working
budget has increased slightly from the approved budget to £22.320m following a £237k
transfer from reserves for the Community Housing Fund approved in Quarter 1
Monitoring Report.
Due to Covid-19 expenditure against some schemes in the capital programme has
been significantly delayed and was £1.993m at the end of Quarter 2. Refurbishment of
Kendal Town Hall/South Lakeland House is now ongoing.
3.0.3 Capital Programme Update – Appendix 3
The capital programme update includes re-profiling of £9.4m to future years following
a review with Portfolio Holders and Leads over the deliverability of the programme in
the current climate.
Cabinet and Council are requested to approve the re-profiling as set out in 3.2.3.
3.0.4 Treasury – Appendix 4 provides an update on Treasury management for the quarter.
3.1

Business as Usual Revenue Variances by Leadership Team

3.1.1 Appendix 1 provides the detail of the 2020/21 Quarter 2 (Q2) revenue variances for
service area grouped by lead officer. The projected out-turn is for a net overspend of
c£216k for business as usual. Further detail is provided below in Table 1 and
paragraphs a. to f. below. The projected overspend at the same position last year
(2019/20) was c£264k.

Page 66

Table 1: Summary by Service Area (after initial adjustment for Covid-19)
Current
Working
Budget Full
Year
£000
6,707

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£000

Income
Variance
to Date
£000

Overall
Variance
to Date
£000

Out-turn
projection
BAU*
£000

Out-Turn
projection
Covid-19
£000

(261)

157

(104)

(115)

(204)

2,205

(22)

7

(15)

0

0

Specialist Services (c)

10,141

125

151

276

471

343

Case Management (d)

1,859

(17)

19

2

(25)

10

Delivery and Commercial Services (e)

5,281

(25)

244

219

97

677

(26,193)

0

0

0

(212)

0

0

(200)

578

378

216

826

Strategy, Innovation and Resources (a)
Customer and Locality Services (b)

Corporate Items (f)
Total GF

*BAU = Business as usual

The Covid-19 out-turn projection of £826k is for service Covid-19 variances over and
above the specific allocated amounts already agreed to be funded from reserves. We
are currently working though the interaction between the lost income, government
funding offer and use of reserves, and this will be updated in future versions. Initial
projections, made in June, suggest £1.226M of grant towards lost income will be
claimable, reducing the additional projection from a net cost of £826k to a net reduction
of £400k.
a.

Strategy Innovation and Resources– the current projection is for a £115k saving
against budget, due to:


£75k is due to the PCC and district elections being postponed as a result of Covid19, this is expected to be carried forward into 2021/22. This would normally be a
fallow year but district elections will now need to take place and it is requested that
this is carried-forward to 2021/22;



£55k surplus on New Homes Bonus income; and



£15k vacancy saving which will not be achieved due to being fully staffed.

b.

Customer and Locality Services – currently there are no projected variances within
this service.

c.

Specialist Services – The current projection is for a £563k overspend. The main
reasons for the projected overspend are:

d.



£250k overspend on salaries within planning, revenues and benefits, housing
standards and environment, due to the use of agency staff to fill vacant posts we
are currently recruiting to;



£212k adjustment following audit of Housing Benefit Subsidy Claims for 2017/18
and 2018/19 to be offset by use of reserves;



£20k overspend on salaries for Tech Team Leader in Land Charges due to post
being extended to assist with transition following implementation of Customer
Connect programme; and



£10.8k surplus on Council Tax admin grant income received.

Case Management – the current projection is for an underspend of £25k of the printer
leases following an extension to the current contract.

Page 67

e.

Delivery and Commercial Services - the current projection is for a £97k overspend.
This is made up of a number of variances across the service and these are:

f.



A £20K demand led shortfall anticipated for moorings, in addition to the shortfall
anticipated as a result of Covid-19;



A £25k overspend on salaries due to the delay with the market tender;



A 16k projected underspend on fuel for the Street Cleansing Service;



A 29k overspend on repairs and maintenance of vehicles due to ongoing problems
with sweepers and Romaquips which are now outside their warranty;



A 16k demand led shortfall in transport income for contract and private vehicles, in
addition to the shortfall anticipated as a result of Covid-19;



A £105k shortfall in the sale of materials due to current market prices;



Reduced by a £20k underspend on Fuel, due market prices; and



A business as usual projected surplus of £62k on kerbside recycling credits.

Corporate – currently there are no projected variances within this service, but this is
made up of the 2 large variances that offset each other, they are:


A £150k estimated shortfall in investment income. While quarter 1 is in line with
expectations this will not continue as all new deals are at much lower interest rate
following emergency cuts to the Bank Rate in March 2020; and



A £150k saving on borrowing costs, due to not needing to borrow for the capital
programme in 2019/20.



A £212k use of reserves to cover adjustment following audit of Housing Benefit
Subsidy Claims for 2017/18 and 2018/19.

3.1.2 Carry Forwards – two service areas have identified underspends as part of the
preparation of budgets for 2021/22 onwards, one of which is included as a carryforward in Appendix 1 to this report (Elections £75k) and one not identified when this
report was originally prepared for Cabinet relating to Customer Connect for £553k.
These requests were considered by Cabinet on 8th December 2020 as part of the draft
budget report. More details are included in Appendix 5.
3.1.3 Virement - A request has been received from the Operational Lead – Specialist
Services to transfer a further £92,800 from the Community Housing Fund reserve to
the 2020/21 revenue budget to fund requests for capacity reports and other studies at
potential sites. A virement has already been approved by Cabinet for £47,000 for the
same purpose as part of the Q1 Corporate Financial Update report bringing the total
requests for additional use of the reserve to £139,800. The Finance Procedure Rules
require requests over £100,000 to be approved by Council. This request was
received after the Q2 Corporate Financial Update had been approved by Cabinet so
this request has been considered by Cabinet on 8th December 2020: approval
through this report will give officers permission to spend the monies without waiting
for the next Corporate Financial Update to be approved by Council in February 2021.
3.1.4 Grant Approvals - Cabinet on 8th December 2020 were requested to approve
funding for Kendal Futures CIC comprising £150,000 for the employment of a Vision
Manager and establishment of associated delivery groups spread equally between
2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23, use of £135,294 from its Kendal Town Centre
Masterplan (now referred to as ‘Strategy’) growth bid budget as project development
funding and the use of £246,000 of S106 developer contributions, received by the

Page 68

Council from the Sainsbury’s supermarket development in Kendal, for a Kendal
Station Gateway public realm improvement scheme to enhance the immediate
pedestrian route into the town centre with SLDC procuring and contracting for the
project against its delivery in partnership with Kendal Futures CIC. This request was
received after the Q2 Corporate Financial Update had been approved by Cabinet so
this request has been considered by Cabinet on 8th December 2020: subject to
approval by Cabinet on 8th December, approval of the use of these monies through
this report will give officers permission to spend these amounts without waiting for the
next Corporate Financial Update to be approved by Council in February 2021.
Analysis of employee budgets
3.1.5

The position on employee costs at Quarter 2 is summarised in Table 2 below

3.1.6 The total variance is an underspend of £56k, 0.8% of the year to date budget. This
includes the 4% vacancy saving built in to all direct employee cost budgets.
Table 2: Employee costs
Full year
budget

Profiled
budget

Actual to
date

Variance

Variance

£000

£000

£000

£000

%

14,141

7,322

7,266

(56)

(0.8)%

3.1.7 Although table 3 highlights an underspend YTD we are not expecting it to continue for
the full year. In August 2020 an administrative decision was made to employ additional
staff, to assist the Council with its Covid-19 response, this totals 9.13 FTE during 20/21,
10.78 FTE during 21/22 and 4.35 FTE during 22/23,. This was reported in detail in
3.1.6 of the Corporate Finance Update Quarter 1 reported to Cabinet on 9 September
2020 and Council on 6th October 2020.
3.1.8 The underspends to date would be higher than £56k quoted in table 3 if not for the
overspend in contract and agency staff mainly within specialist services as per
comment in 3.1.1.c
3.1.9 Included in table 3 above is expenditure on contract and agency staff. The total spend
on this element of employee costs was £615k against a profiled budget of £257k. This
expenditure on contract and agency staff equates to 8.46% of the total spend on
employee costs in Quarter 2. The majority of this relates to:


Specialist-Place (£181k) which is for development control specialists;



Specialist-People (£168k) which is for revenue & benefits and housing
standards specialists;



Case Management overall (£78k) mainly to cover additional benefit claims as
a result of Covid-19, along with maternity cover for service critical post and
Affordable Housing cover; and



Specialists Environment (£54k) which is for environmental protection
specialists.

These mainly cover the use of agency while we carry out recruitment to vacant posts.
3.2

Capital programme

3.2.1 The 2020/21 capital programmed is valued at £22.32m. Spend at the end of quarter 2
was £1.99m, with a further £1.95m committed expenditure through purchase orders.

Page 69

Table 3: Summary of capital programme and expenditure
Expenditure
£000

Budget
Remaining
£000

0

0

0

516

55

(461)

Specialist Services

10,754

311

(10,443)

Delivery and Commercial
Services
Strategy

10,557

1,347

(9,210)

261

107

(154)

232

173

(59)

22,320

1,993

(20,327)

Lead
Support Services
Digital

Customer and Locality Services
Grand Total

Full Year
Budget
£000

3.2.2 Appendix 2 contains further comments and updates on all capital schemes.
3.2.3 A revised Capital Programme is attached as Appendix 3. Table 4 below shows a
summary of the re-profiling required following a review with Portfolio Holders and
Leads. Cabinet and Council are requested to approve the amendments below.

Page 70

Table 4: Summary of Capital Programme re-profiling
Capital Programme

ERDF funded flood defence works
Energy saving building enhancements
Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extension
Play Areas
South Lakeland House car park works
New Ulverston Leisure Centre
Coronation Hall alterations
Abbot Hall redevelopment
Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail
Affordable and empty homes town centre properties
Cross-a-moor Junction improvements
S106 funded affordable home purchase
Homeless accommodation for families
Coastal Community Fund
Housing Investment Fund
Grange Regeneration
Grange Promenade structural works
Grange LIDO
Structural repair works to Westmorland Shopping
Centre car park
Refurbishment of Ellerthwaite Depot to create office
accommodation to rent
Extension and refurbishment to Rothay Park toilets
(incl. Changing Places toilet)
Kendal car parking improvements
Total capital budgets to be re-profiled
3.3

Re-profiling
amount
£000
(2,146.9)
(10.0)
33.5
(94.8)
(13.5)
(250.0)
(39.9)
(100.0)
(120.0)
(349.0)
(300.0)
(56.0)
(10.0)
(1,151.2)
(3,000.0)
(157.3)
(716.0)
(1,890.0)
43.0
10.0
15.5
6.5
(10,296.1)

Treasury Management

3.3.1 Appendix 4 contains an overview of the Council’s position against the agreed
indicators and limits.
3.3.2 To date the Council’s investments have performed well against market expectations,
with all investments performing in excess of their benchmarks. This has been primarily
been achieved due to a number of investments made before the crisis hit at nearer the
budgeted rate. New investments however are only commanding rates between 0.01%
and 0.24%. Therefore there has been no change in the expected outturn position
reported in quarter 1 of £150k reduction in interest receivable offset by a budget saving
of £150k on interest payable as a result of not borrowing in 2019/20.
3.4

Collection Fund

3.4.1 Table 5 below sets out the performance on local tax collection. The Council Tax
Collection rate at 30 September 2020 is 56.74%, which is 1.51% below the level seen

Page 71

at a similar time last year. This is an improvement on the Q1 difference of 0.10%. We
now have in post a recovery specialist who will be working on bringing this down further
within the constraints of lockdown. The Council expects to collect £85.5M of Council
tax in 2020/21 so the SLSC share (12.42%) of the total fall in collection at the end of
Q2 is £160k.
3.4.2 The hardship scheme, which increases the discounts under the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (CTRS), has now been processed. Overall 1,128 Council Tax accounts have
been reduced by £261k. It is estimated that by the end of the year the Council can
expect to have made additional payments of between £59k and £159k. This would
bring the total paid between £320k and £420k out of a Government grant of £487k.
3.4.3 The Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) collection rate figure is 49.76% which is 6.29% below
the level seen at a similar time last year. While the difference has increased from Q1’s
total of 4.37%, the restarting of arrears actions has seen a number of business contact
us and make payment agreements which start from October, we also now have in post
a recovery specialist who will begin work on tackling these debts. The Council expected
to collect £16.5m of business rates during 2020/21 and retains 40% of the income so
the total value of the reduction is £415k.
3.4.4 The full impact of the shortfall in collection will affect future year’s accounts due to the
nature of the collection fund where any surplus or deficit is recovered in future years.
Table 5: Local Taxation Collection rate
Percentage
Collected
Quarter 1

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

%

%

%

%

%

%

Council Tax

58.64

58.20

58.31

58.23

58.25

56.74

Business
Rates

57.73

56.07

55.93

55.73

56.06

49.76

3.4.5

Recovery action has now restarted across the board and in general collection rates,
while still lower than previous years are beginning to pick up as arrangements to pay
are established.

3.5

Sundry Debts

3.5.1 The aim of this section is to describe the current debt position and to provide assurance
over collection performance. Table 6 below summarises the current collection rate on
sundry debts:
Table 6: Summary of collection

Debt outstanding
Total value of invoices
/ credit notes raised
Collection Rate (%)

2015/16
and
earlier
£000
87

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21
to date

£000
21

£000
26

£000
88

£000
151

£000
1,365

28,620

5,028

5,086

5,696

6,165

3,199

99.70

99.58

99.49

98.46

97.55

57.33

3.5.2 An analysis of outstanding sundry debts reveals that over 99% of debts have been
recovered in years up to 2017/18.

Page 72

3.5.3 In the current year to date, 57.33% of debt has been recovered this is down from
66.68% at the same time in 2019/20. The table below splits down in more detail the
age profile of the current outstanding debts.
Table 7: Age profile of 2020/21 invoices
2020/21 Invoices

£000

6 months overdue

71.5

5 months overdue

105.9

4 months overdue

16.3

3 months overdue

64.4

2 months overdue

31.7

1 month overdue

56.9

Not yet due

1,018.9

Total end of Quarter 1

1,365.6

Due to Covid-19 and the financial hardship this has caused to many, no reminder
letters were sent to customers from March 2020. Recovery action re-commenced in
July 2020 with a Covid-19 specific letter to ask customers to contact the Council if
they are experiencing difficulties in making payment. The standard debt recovery
procedures were re-implemented in August 2020.
4.0

Consultation

4.1

Senior management, budget holders and the Finance Portfolio Holder have been
consulted.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options for Appendices 1-3

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Regular budget monitoring forms part of the corporate governance arrangements that
support all Council priorities.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Finance and resource information is contained within the report.

Human Resources
7.2

There are no direct Human Resources Implications of the report.

Legal
7.3

There are no direct legal implications of the report

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report is an historic view of Q1 financial performance. The overall impact assessment
of the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is undertaken at
budget setting time.

7.6

There are no additional health, social, economic and environmental impacts as a
result of the report

Page 73

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
report is an historic view of Q1 financial performance. The overall impact assessment
of the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is undertaken at
budget setting time.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: There are no additional equality impacts
as a result of the report

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Not effectively managing
budgets could lead to
overspending.

Possible legal challenge,
audit qualification and ultra
vires expenditure.

Scrutiny of budgets
through review of
monitoring reports.

Recurring pressures or savings
are not identified

Medium Term Financial
Planning may not reflect
the future impact of current
issues.

Regular monitoring of
budgets in year to inform
the MTFP and annual
budget setting process.

Contact Officers
Claire Chouchoulas, Finance Specialist, c.chouchoulas@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539
793154
Claire Read, Finance Specialist, Claire.Read@southalkeland.gov.uk, 01539 793152
Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk,
01539 793147
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Detailed Revenue Budget Monitoring

2

Detailed Capital Budget Monitoring

3

Capital Programme

4

Treasury Management Update

5

Carry Forward Requests 2020/21

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

2020/21 Budget Book including MTFP projections

https://tinyurl.com/y56kswxu

Budget Setting Report

https://tinyurl.com/y48tb9or

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21-2024/25

https://tinyurl.com/y3lz82yr

Corporate Financial Update Quarter 1, 2020-21

https://tinyurl.com/y36s7mtp

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer

Date sent
05/11/2020
Report from S151 Officer

Page 74

Date Signed off
09/11/2020

Signed off by
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
05/11/2020
20/10/2020

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
05/11/2020
N/A
N/A

Page 75

Date Signed off
03/12/2020
N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

Appendix 1
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget variance projections based on data up to 30/09/2020 Quarter 2
BAU = Business as usual

Service

Portfolio

Original Full
Year Budgets &
C/fwds
£

Covid-19
Budget
Adjustments
£

Current Full
Year Working
Budget
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
projection
Further Covid- Covid-19
less Carry
19
Outturn
Forward
Variances
Projections
Requests >
£
£
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

BAU Commentary

COVID-19 Commentary

Strategy, Innovation and Resources

GLP

Development Plans

Promoting South
Lakeland

84,775

0

84,775

-18,603

0

0

0

0

Possible £24.5k underspend re.
Neighbourhood Planning Consultancy.
Dependent on progress of various
0 Neighbourhood plans - not controllable. If
underspent will be transferred to reserve at
year end and drawn down as and when
required in future years

GEL

Elections

Climate Emergency
and Localism

91,173

0

91,173

-20,663

-75,000

75,000

0

0

0

PCC and District Elections postponed to next
year due to Covid-19. Carry Forward District
Election £75k expenditure; PCC Election
£170k Expenditure and £170k Income.

0

DXC

Management Team

Promoting South
Lakeland

366,205

0

366,205

4,374

15,000

0

15,000

0

0

Due to being fully staffed the vacancy saving
allowance will not be achieved for this area

0

New Homes

Finance and
Resources

-338,000

0

-338,000

-27,553

-55,000

0

-55,000

0

0 £55k surplus New Homes Bonus

GNH

Page 77

GTH

Other Items

Finance and
Resources

GMM

Members

ECU

Customer Services

158,700

6,542

-1

0

0

0

-204,000

Customer Comm
Serv and People

391,838

0

391,838

-22,354

0

0

0

0

£30k potential underspend on unclaimed
0 Member's Allowance, to be transferred to
Financial Resilience Reserve

Customer Comm
Serv and People

582,999

0

582,999

805

0

0

0

0

0

5,521,588

0

5,521,588

-20,384

0

0

0

0

Total Strategy, Innovation and Resources

6,548,420

158,700

6,707,120

-104,378

-115,000

75,000

-40,000

-204,000

2,204,703
2,204,703

0
0

2,204,703
2,204,703

-15,146
-15,146

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
This includes £1.239m of income and
expenditure budget adjustments which have
not yet been applied to services until we can
0
see the full impact of Covid-19 in these areas,
less £1.080m grant received from government
for Covid-19.

-152,158

Other Strategy, Innovation and Resources

0

-45,300

0

Customer Connect potential carry forward
required, reviewing plan to confirm amount.

0

0 Individual variances <£10k
-45,300

Customer and Commercial Services
Operational Lead Customer and Locality Services
Other Customer and Locality Services
Total Operational Lead Customer and Locality Serv

0 Individual variances <£10k
0

Operational Lead Specialist Services

DCS

Specialist Services

Customer Comm
Serv and People

EUR

AD Cummunity Invest and
Dev

Customer Comm
Serv and People

2,326,413

75,000

2,401,413

125,991

250,000

0

250,000

12,800

29,496

0

29,496

23,068

20,000

0

20,000

0

£250k projected overspend on salaries due to
Phase 2 posts not yet recruited into - mostly
filled by agency staff to continue service
87,800
delivery. Projection to be reviewed monthly may change depending on recruitment
outcomes.
£20k projected overspend on salaries - Tech
0 Team Leader post extended to end of
September.

GBC

Building Control

Housing and
Innovation

-303,408

0

-303,408

18,455

0

0

0

40,000

40,000

GBN

Council Tax Benefits

Finance and
Resources

-65,826

0

-65,826

-8,706

-10,800

0

-10,800

0

0

GDC

Development Control

Housing and
Innovation

-468,193

0

-468,193

57,332

0

0

0

100,000

£75k of additional cost for temporary staff due
to delays recuriting as a result of Covid-19
offset by Covid-19 budget changes from
reserves approved at Council 30.06.20
£12.8K projected overspend on software, due
to the impact of Covid-19 on the service.

100,000

0
£40k projected shortfall on Building Control
income, due to the impact of Covid-19 on the
service. Offset in GTH by Covid-19 budget
0
changes funded from reserves still to be
applied once we can determine the actual
impact of Covid-19 in this service.

£10.8k surplus re. admin grant income
received.

0
£100k projected shortfall on Development
Control income, due to the impact of Covid-19
on the service. Offset in GTH by Covid-19
0
budget changes funded from reserves still to
be applied once we can determine the actual
impact of Covid-19 in this service.

Service

GFN

NNDR Collection

Portfolio

Original Full
Year Budgets &
C/fwds
£

Finance and
Resources

-323,143

Covid-19
Budget
Adjustments
£

Current Full
Year Working
Budget
£

0

-323,143

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

0

0

BAU Out-turn
Further Covid- Covid-19
projection
19
Outturn
less Carry
Variances
Projections
Forward
Requests >
£
£
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

0

0

11,000

BAU Commentary

COVID-19 Commentary

11,000

£11k projected shortfall, due to court
suspension / catch up following Covid-19.
Uncertain whether court dates will resume in
0
second half of the year - to review.
(consists of £12k income shortfall vs £1k
expenditure underspend)

GFT

Council Tax Collection

Finance and
Resources

-145,988

0

-145,988

0

0

0

0

82,000

82,000

£82k projected net shortfall, due to court
suspension / catch up following Covid-19.
Uncertain whether court dates will resume in
0
second half of the year - to review.
(consists of £90k income shortfall vs £8k
expenditure underspend)

GHT

Housing Standards

Housing and
Innovation

614,504

0

614,504

28,810

0

0

0

36,000

36,000

0

GLC

Local Land Charges

Housing and
Innovation

-158,115

0

-158,115

2,280

0

0

0

6,000

GRA

Rent Allowances

Finance and
Resources

-342,723

0

-342,723

0

212,000

0

212,000

0

Page 78

GWS

Water Sampling

Climate Emergency
and Localism

Other Specialist Services
Total Operational Lead Specialist Services

£36k projected shorfall on DFG Levy Income,
due to the impact of Covid-19 on the service.

£25k projected shortfall on Local Land Charge
income; offset by £19k projected underspend
on related expenditure, both due to the impact
of Covid-19 on the service. The overall £6k
0
shortfall is offset in GTH by Covid-19 budget
changes funded from reserves still to be
applied once we can determine the actual
impact of Covid-19 in this service.

6,000

£212k adjustments following audit of Housing
0 Benefit Subsidy Claims for 2017/18 and
2018/19 to be offset by use of reserves

-51,034

0

-51,034

31,960

0

0

0

55,000

55,000

8,954,187
10,066,170

0
75,000

8,954,187
10,141,170

-2,691
276,499

0
471,200

0
0

0
471,200

0
342,800

0
417,800

0
£100k projected shortfall on Water Sampling
income; offset by £45k projected underspend
on related expenditure; both due to the impact
of Covid-19 on the service. Staffing shortages
will increase this going forward. The overall
0
£55k shortfall is part offset by £18k in GTH by
Covid-19 budget changes funded from
reserves still to be applied once we can
determine the actual impact of Covid-19 in this
service.
Individual variances <£10k

Operational Lead Case Management
DCM

Case Management

Customer Comm
Serv and People

1,770,922

60,000

1,830,922

-19,444

-25,000

0

-25,000

0

60,000

GCM

Cemeteries

Customer Comm
Serv and People

24,189

50,000

74,189

1,495

0

0

0

0

50,000

GHM

Homelessness

Housing and
Innovation

75,972

150,000

225,972

1,087

0

0

0

0

150,000

GMD

Licensing Act

Economy Culture
and Leisure

-201,862

0

-201,862

7,046

0

0

0

10,000

10,000

-70,391
1,598,830

0
260,000

-70,391
1,858,830

12,169
2,353

0
-25,000

0
0

0
-25,000

0
10,000

0
270,000

Other Case Management
Total Operational Lead Case Management
Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services

£60k of additional costs as a result of
processing additional claims as a result of
Covid-19 offset by Covid-19 budget changes
from reserves approved at Council 30.06.20.

£25k underspend on printers lease payments
following extension to contract

0

£50k of additional costs in bereavement
services as a result of Covid-19, offset by
Covid-19 budget changes from reserves
approved at Council 30.06.20

£150k of additional costs relating to homeless
accomodation due to Covid-19 restictions,
offest by Covid-19 budget changes from
reserves approved at Council.
Projected £10k shortfall for Temporary Event
Licences due to Covid-19, offset in GTH by
Covid-19 budget changes funded from
0
reserves still to be applied once we can
determine the actual impact of Covid-19 in this
service.
Individual variances <£10k
0

Service

Portfolio

Original Full
Year Budgets &
C/fwds
£

Covid-19
Budget
Adjustments
£

Current Full
Year Working
Budget
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
Further Covid- Covid-19
projection
19
Outturn
less Carry
Variances
Projections
Forward
Requests >
£
£
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

BAU Commentary

COVID-19 Commentary

£1,670k projected shortfall in income due to
Covid-19 offset by £1,152 reduction in budget
from reserves as approved at Council
30.06.20. This projection reflects the better
0 than anticipated summer season especially
within the National Park area, however
allowance has still been made for the impact
on parking receipts for the remainder of the
year

Page 79

GCK

Car Parks

Customer Comm
Serv and People

-2,123,383

1,152,000

-971,383

161,026

0

0

0

518,000

1,670,000

GCS

Caravan Site

Customer Comm
Serv and People

-312,866

130,000

-182,866

-5,749

0

0

0

113,000

243,000

0

£243k shortfall projected for the Caravan Site
due to Covid-19, offset by £130k reduction in
budget following Covid-19 budget changes
from reserves approved at Council 30.06.20

GLE

Leisure Centres (incl
Pools)

Economy Culture
and Leisure

834,446

120,000

954,446

-1,167

0

0

0

0

120,000

0

Negotiations ongoing re level of support
required.

GLW

Lake Windermere

Economy Culture
and Leisure

-971,533

0

-971,533

24,997

20,000

0

20,000

20,000

GMK

Markets

Economy Culture
and Leisure

-50,541

33,000

-17,541

13,895

25,000

0

25,000

0

GPH

Public Halls

Economy Culture
and Leisure

145,173

24,000

169,173

-6,939

0

0

0

0

GTG

Street Cleansing Client

Customer Comm
Serv and People

1,139,464

0

1,139,464

-6,557

-16,000

0

-16,000

0

GTS

Transport

Customer Comm
Serv and People

GWK

Kerbside Coll Recycling
Client

Customer Comm
Serv and People

Waste Recycling

Customer Comm
Serv and People

GWR

Other Delivery and Commercial Services
Total Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Se
Total Customer and Commercial Services

-5,924

3,244,807

0

73,800

-5,924

3,318,607

43,448

15,690

45,000

23,000

0

0

45,000

23,000

16,000

0

and a further £20k shortfall projected for
Mooring Fees due to Covid-19, offset in GTH
by Covid-19 budget changes funded from
reserves still to be applied once we can
determine the actual impact of Covid-19 in this
service.
£33k shortfall projected for Market income
£25k overspend on salaries due to delay with due to Covid-19, offset by £33k reduction in
33,000
tender of Kendal Market;
budget following Covid-19 budget changes
from reserves approved at Council 30.06.20

£20k demand led shortfall anticipated for
20,000
moorings

Shortfall of £24k in income due to Covid-19,
0 offset by £24k Covid-19 budget changes from
reserves approved at Council 30.06.20

24,000
0 £16k projected underspend on fuel

0

£29k projected overspend on repairs and
maintenance of vehicles due to ongoing
problems with vehicles (sweepers and
Romaquips) which have now fallen outside
16,000
their warranty however are not due for
replacement.
In addition there is a shortfall in projected
transport income which is partly demand led

The remaining £16k shortfall in income is as a
result of delays with MOT's due to Covid-19.
For the purposes of this report it has been split
equally between the two however further
investigation will be done to determine the
actual split.

£20k projected underspend on fuel due to
lower fuel prices; £105k shortfall anticipated
73,800 for sale of materials, this is a high level
estimate and will be investigated further; £62k
projected surplus on recycling credits.

£65k shortfall projected for the recycling
credits due to Covid-19 and £8,8k extra costs
relating to emergency staff and protective
equiment, offset by £73.8k reduction in budget
following Covid-19 budget changes from
reserves approved at Council 30.06.20

£10k shortfall projected for the recycling
credits due to Covid-19, offset in GTH by
Covid-19 budget changes funded from
0
reserves still to be applied once we can
determine the actual impact of Covid-19 in this
service.
Individual variances <£10k

23,960

0

23,960

5,727

0

0

0

10,000

10,000

1,824,178
3,747,781

0
1,532,800

1,824,178
5,280,581

-25,668
218,701

0
97,000

0
0

0
97,000

0
677,000

0
2,209,800

17,617,484

1,867,800

19,485,284

482,407

543,200

0

543,200

1,029,800

2,897,600

-230,890

0

-230,890

0

150,000

0

150,000

0

0

817,719

0

817,719

0

-150,000

0

-150,000

0

Due to not needing to borrow for the Capital
0 Programme in 19/20 we currently estimate a
saving on borrowing costs of £150k

-1,986,312

-2,026,500

-4,012,812

0

-212,000

0

-212,000

0

-22,767,029
-24,166,512

0
-2,026,500

-22,767,029
-26,193,012

1
1

0
-212,000

0
0

0
-212,000

0
0

Corporate items
VGR26 Investment Interest

VGR27 Interest on borrowings

VGS34

Transfer from Reserves
Other Funds/Reserves

Other Corporate Items
Total Corporate items

Following emergency cuts to the Bank Rate in
March 2020, we have seen a fall in the return
on our investments, which will result in an
estimated shortfall of £150k

£212k adjustments following audit of Housing
-2,026,500 Benefit Subsidy Claims for 2017/18 and
2018/19 to be offset by use of reserves
0
-2,026,500

0

0
Use of Reserves agreed at Council 30.06.20 decision reference C/9. To assit with the costs
of the Covid-19 pandemic

Service

Portfolio

Total Corporate Items

Original Full
Year Budgets &
C/fwds
£

Covid-19
Budget
Adjustments
£

Current Full
Year Working
Budget
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

BAU Out-turn
projection
>£10k

BAU Out-turn
Further Covid- Covid-19
projection
19
Outturn
less Carry
Variances
Projections
Forward
Requests >
£
£
£10k

BAU Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

-24,166,512

-2,026,500

-26,193,012

1

-212,000

0

-212,000

0

-2,026,500

-608

0

-608

378,030

216,200

75,000

291,200

825,800

825,800

MHCLG Grant
Claimed but not yet rececived for April - July 2020 lost fees and charges

-963,000

-963,000

Estimate for August 2020 - March 2021

-263,000

-263,000

Potential Net GF deficit if grant received

-400,200

-400,200

Total GF
Net GF

BAU Commentary

COVID-19 Commentary

Claim to be submitted every four months and
next claim will be December for August November 2020

Page 80

SLDC 2020/21 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£

Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Appendix 2
Changes
required to
2020/21
£

Re-profiling
required to
future years
£

Commentary

Digital
KIT27

Mobile Working for
Streetscene

Housing and Innovation

120,000

0

-120,000

Specification and integration with new digital platform to be
assessed before project can begin.

KIT30

Digital Innovation Project

Housing and Innovation

307,296

0

-307,296

Part of this will be used to fund the new Development
Management Suite.

KIT90

IT Replacement Fund

Housing and Innovation

88,670

55,355

-33,315

515,966

55,355

-460,611

Specialist Services
KDE06
ERDF Funded Flood Defence Climate Emergency and
Works
Localism

2,670,000

224,649

-2,445,351

2,146,900 Planning permission granted and EA Internal Business Case in
place. Grant and partnership agreements signed. Some delay
expected to works programme - extension to funding deadline
requested from MHCLG. Updated programme of spend from EA
in September and re-profiling required into 2021/22..

KDE07

Coastal Communities Fund

Climate Emergency and
Localism

2,351,210

0

-2,351,210

1,151,210 CCF project started 1 May 2019, funded by MHCLG. Scheme is
over two years. Funding for SLDC and Morecambe Bay
Partnership (MBP), then we will pay over to MBP their share.
SLDC is accountable body. Scheme is for works at Grange
promenade which is currently being procured and will start on
site early 2021. Funding agreement to be complete with MHCLG
by end of September, which will enable funds to be distributed to
partners. £1.2m expected to be spent in 2020/21, remainder to
require carry forward.

KAH10

Affordable Homes TC Prop
Empty

Housing and Innovation

691,000

0

-691,000

349,000 Awaiting completion certificate so that the Cabinet-approved
grant of £282k to SL Housing for purchase of houses at Station
Cottages, Newby Bridge can be paid. £60k Town Centre and
Renovation grants also to be made from this budget but no
suitable applications yet.Balance of £349k will require reprofiling.

Total Digital

On track with replacement programme, but additional
expenditure (£27k) has been incurred in response to Covid19 some of this additional expenditure may be recovered by
government grant.
0

0

Page 81

SLDC 2020/21 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Full Year
Budget
£

Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Appendix 2
Changes
required to
2020/21
£
625,000

Re-profiling
required to
Commentary
future years
£
925,000 Highways England leading scheme to build a roundabout to
enable delivery of 1000 homes. July 2020 Highways England
revised their costed risk assessment of the scheme leading to
potential funding shortfall of £2.69m. Cabinet approved additional
funding 09/09/20 to underwrite SLDC proportion of shortfall
(£925k), CCC to cover the balance.

Page 82

Lead/code

Scheme

KAH11

Other Housing Schemes
(Cross-a-Moor junction
improvements)

Housing and Innovation

300,000

0

-300,000

KAH13

Commuted Sums Affordable
Housing

Housing and Innovation

86,000

0

-86,000

KGD21

Mand Disabled Fac Grants

Housing and Innovation

727,300

64,724

-662,576

Some schemes delayed because of coronavirus. Service
resuming June after period of being suspended - contractors now
working again. Four months work lost so likely underspend of
approximately 30% expected in year.

KRT10

Right To Buy Replacement

Housing and Innovation

247,500

0

-247,500

Budget covers payment of second instalment of £495k grant to
SLH to be made on receipt of completion certificate.

KCH01

Community Housing Fund

Housing and Innovation

561,000

21,834

-539,167

Projects progressing. Schemes coming to fruition in the autumn.
Anticipated spend in year £561k made up Gatesbield (£18k),
Levens (£543k) so transfer from CHF reserve of £235k done to
increase budget.

KIF01

Housing Investment Fund

Housing and Innovation

3,000,000

0

-3,000,000

3,000,000 Discussion ongoing between SLDC/ SLH regarding use of
funds..Agreement to be signed. Revise in light of development
programmes moving forward post lockdown. Scheme currently
paused subject to further negotiation.

KPE18

Towpath Trail KendalLancaster

Economy Culture and
Leisure

120,000

0

-120,000

120,000 Remaining £120k payment to CCC to be made. Delay due to
new land agent and requirement for agent to deliver a report
following land owner consultation. Funding agreement awaiting
outcome of the report. Likely to require reprofiling to next year.

10,754,010

311,207

-10,442,803

Total Specialist Services

Portfolio

56,000 £30k for Parkside Road scheme to be spent in this year,
remainder will require reprofiling to next year.

625,000

7,748,110

SLDC 2020/21 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

Delivery and Commerical Services
KCD01
Castle Dairy

Portfolio

Economy Culture and
Leisure

Full Year
Budget
£

Appendix 2
Changes
required to
2020/21
£

Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

4,000

0

-4,000

0

0

0

40,000

0

-40,000

0

0

0

Re-profiling
required to
future years
£

Commentary

Contractor in administration and sorting with administrators.

Page 83

KDP03

Ellerthwaite Depot conversion Customer Comm Serv and
People

KEP52

Disabled Toilet
Improvements

KEP53

Rothay Park toilets
refurbishment

KAH14

Homeless Accommodation

Housing and Innovation

444,400

136,080

-308,320

KAH15

Next Steps Accommodation
Programme

Housing and Innovation

0

0

0

KFL01

Footway Lighting

Customer Comm Serv and
People

86,200

330

-85,870

Spend dependant on Electricity North West and Cumbria CC
programming works.

KLC03

Ulverston Leisure Centre

Economy Culture and
Leisure

250,000

0

-250,000

250,000 Scheme on hold, will recommence when a clearer view of the
impact of Covid-19 on leisure provision is available.

KLH02

Ulverston Asset Transfer
programme

Economy Culture and
Leisure

39,883

0

-39,883

KLH07

SL House & KTH
reconfiguration

Finance and Resources

3,752,888

12,542

-3,740,346

Health Wellbeing and
Financial Resilience

10,000

Meeting with Windermere Town Council on 29 Oct to seek
approval of project prior to planning being submitted. Once
approved, planning will be submitted and tender issued. Scheme
originally planned for 2021/22 but £10k of works to take place in
2020/21.
Budget covers payments for Millerground (£20k) and Cartmel
(£20k). Windermere Town Council now approached regarding
Millerground changing places scheme - Cartmel commencement
date yet to be determined.

15,500

Scheme originally programmed for 2021/22. Design work to take
place in 2020/21 (£15.5k) for scheme to begin 2021/22.
Budget originally intended for work to convert facilities at 14
Peppercorn Lane, Kendal and Hampsfell Depot,Grange for family
accommodation. Peppercorn Lane no longer going ahead as
planning refused due to flood risk. Hampsfell will complete w/c 19
October. Further proposal for Kendal being put forward as part of
capital bid process. Likely to offer £175k of savings back into pot.

237,000

Council has approved a £237k budget reflecting government
funding towards the cost of finding suitable accommodation for
those sleeping rough or unsafe during the Covid-19 pandemic.

39,883 UCE now developing a business case for long-term use of funds,
so payment will be delayed until completed - likely to be 3-5
years before payment made, so budget will require re-profiling.
439,000

Work started 27 July 2020. Budget to be increased for funding
received from Cumbria LEP (£439k).

SLDC 2020/21 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

KLH08

Abbot Hall redevelopment

Economy Culture and
Leisure

KMR21

Kendal Museum alterations

KMR33

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£

Appendix 2
Changes
required to
2020/21
£

Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Re-profiling
required to
Commentary
future years
£
100,000 Scheme has been paused as various prerequisites need to be in
place (lease extension, flood alleviation project) and agreed by
Arts Council before their funding can be released. This scheme
will require reprofiling to 2021/22.

Page 84

100,000

0

-100,000

Customer Comm Serv and
People

85,000

0

-85,000

Braithwaite Fold

Customer Comm Serv and
People

33,500

32,567

-933

KMR34

Kendal Castle

Customer Comm Serv and
People

41,000

1,870

-39,130

Footpaths work tenders have been evaluated. Work to take
place in Jan - Feb 2021.

KMR36

Monument Kirkby Lonsdale

Customer Comm Serv and
People

27,000

234

-26,766

Listed building application in. Tenders back and evaluation taking
place ready for work to begin.

KPY38

WSC Car Park refurbishment Customer Comm Serv and
People

0

0

0

KPY42

Car Park machines update

Customer Comm Serv and
People

84,199

0

-84,199

KPY44

Town and Car Park/public
information Signs
SLH Car Park - structural
repair and re-surfacing works

Customer Comm Serv and
People
Customer Comm Serv and
People

11,700

2,743

-8,957

Works agreed, to take place in year.

1,730

0

-1,730

Retention outstanding.

KPY46

Car Park Resurfacing

Customer Comm Serv and
People

92,400

18,503

-73,898

KPY48

Parkside Rd Car Park

Customer Comm Serv and
People

145,298

1,155

-144,143

KPY51

Kendal Parking Study Actions Customer Comm Serv and
People

0

0

0

KRE04

Grange Regeneration
Programme

Economy Culture and
Leisure

157,300

0

-157,300

157,300 Delayed - tender submissions being reviewed, so expected to be
late 2020 before works can begin.

KRE66

Grange Promenade structural Economy Culture and
works
Leisure

721,925

5,800

-716,125

716,000 Delayed - tender submissions being reviewed, so expected to be
late 2020 before works can begin.

KPY45

Museum agreement between Kendal Town Council and Kendal
College to be signed imminently and then payment will be made.
Work to upgrade the electricity supply that was delayed due to
original contractor going into administration.

43,000

Scheme originally programmed for 2021/22. £43k of work to take
place in 2020/21.
Payment of first half of project cost agreed and paid in 2019/20.
Remainder pending resolution of outstanding issues.

Works at Grasmere starts 2nd November 2020, will finish before
Christmas.

Tenders back and Cabinet report issued ready for approval in
October. If approved work will start in January.
6500

Main scheme 2021/22. Preparatory work of £6.5k to update the
parking review post Covid-19 to take place in year.

SLDC 2020/21 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

KRE67

Grange LIDO

Economy Culture and
Leisure

KSC91

Refurb Replace Recycled
Bins

KSC91

KXB27

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£

Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Appendix 2
Changes
required to
2020/21
£

Re-profiling
required to
Commentary
future years
£
1,890,000 Delayed - tender submissions being reviewed, so expected to be
late 2020 before works can begin.

Page 85

1,960,000

20,832

-1,939,168

Customer Comm Serv and
People

143,620

94,247

-49,373

Vehicle Purchase

Customer Comm Serv and
People

2,215,880

991,856

-1,224,024

Five 26t Dennis Eagle vehicles £180k each and one 12t RCV
£122k now delivered. Ten 3.5t Isuzu vans £37k each ordered.
One 26t vehicle tender and one 24t tender returned and
evaluated and report complete for approval. Four 7.5t vehicles
and one 12.5t due to be approved 5 Nov by DED and then
orders will be placed.

Energy Saving Building
Enhancement

Climate Emergency and
Localism

119,100

28,280

-90,820

Work at Town View Fields, Mintworks and Ferry Nab. TVF and
Mintworks now complete. Ferry Nab to be tendered in 2021.

10,557,023

1,347,038

-9,209,985

136,200

0

-136,200

0

92,367

92,367

Neighbourhood funding paid to Parish and Town Councils for CIL
receipts received Oct 2019 to March 2020.

124,996

15,000

-109,996

Work has stalled on some projects payable in instalments due to
coronavirus and public consultations have not been able to take
place. Contacting of applicants to assess situation re other
schemes.

261,196

107,367

-153,829

Total Delivery and Commercial Services

Procurement has taken place and bins ordered for delivery in
phases throughout the year.

751,000

3,153,183

Strategy

KMR35

Burton Heritage Grant
Scheme

Customer Comm Serv and
People

KIL01

Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL)

Housing and Innovation

KIP01

Locally Important Projects

Economy Culture and
Leisure

Total Strategy
Customer and Locality Services

Public realm work in the square complete, subject to final
remedial work on defects. Grant aided repair work to the Royal
Hotel commenced on 28 September – the Royal Hotel is the
main priority building for repairs in the Burton-in-Kendal PSiCA
scheme and a payment of £50,818 will be due from the PSiCA
fund when works are complete. The completion of the Square
scheme may be contributing to a current rise in interest in grantaid for building repairs, with five expressions of interest at
present. It is hoped that the current schemes underway will
promote further interest.

0

0

SLDC 2020/21 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 6

Lead/code

Scheme

KLL18

Cockshott Point entrance
improvements

Economy Culture and
Leisure

KNM51

Play Areas

KNM55

Portfolio

Full Year
Budget
£

Appendix 2
Changes
required to
2020/21
£

Variance
to Date
£

Expenditure
£

Re-profiling
required to
future years
£

Commentary

Page 86

1,400

0

-1,400

Working with National Trust - delayed due to covid but exepcted
to start soon, to be finished by the Autumn.

Customer Comm Serv and
People

0

0

0

0 £65k budget vired to Queens Park (£40k) and North Lons Road
(£25k) to complete those projects - spend will be in 2020/21.

Hallgarth Phase 2

Customer Comm Serv and
People

15,500

14,155

-1,345

Main work completed 2019/20, final jobs being done.
Outstanding order to be paid shortly. Remaining budget to be
used for replacement gate.

KNM56

Millerground Play Project

Customer Comm Serv and
People

17,000

12,113

-4,887

Main work completed 2019/20, contractor has done final repairs,
awaiting invoice.

KNM58

Kendal Parks playground

Customer Comm Serv and
People

22,400

16,504

-5,896

Scheme at Hayclose Crescent - total cost £20k. Install to take
place in November.

KNM59

Lightburn Park MUGA &
playground

Customer Comm Serv and
People

47,700

120,409

72,709

Scheme complete. £60k of grant funding due imminently and
£10k S106 outstanding.

KNM63

Queens Park play area

Customer Comm Serv and
People

50,000

0

-50,000

KNM64

Broadgate Meadow
Grasmere

Customer Comm Serv and
People

12,800

9,500

-3,300

KNM66

Rayrigg Meadow Play Area

Customer Comm Serv and
People

12,800

339

-12,461

KNM68

North Lonsdale Road Play
Area

Customer Comm Serv and
People

44,800

0

-44,800

KNM70

HMCLG funded schemes

Customer Comm Serv and
People

3,300

0

-3,300

Budget reflects balance of HMCLG funding received March
2019. Work at Lightburn Park skate ramp (£2k) and other
community projects to be done.

KLR31

Nobles Rest park
improvements

Economy Culture and
Leisure

4,300

0

-4,300

Bog garden project expected to take place autumn 2020 and
further planting into 2020/21.

232,000

173,020

-58,980

0

94,800

22,320,195

1,993,986

-20,326,209

1,376,000

10,996,093

Total Customer and Locality Services

GRAND TOTAL

50,000 Total scheme cost will be £200k. Major fundraising taking place £130k funding currently assured and £40k vired from general
play areas budget above. Major bids made, awaiting decisions.
Tender to be prepared over the winter and installation to take
place Spring 2021.

Main work completed 2019/20, final jobs and snagging being
done.
Playground installed 2019/20. Remaining budget due to be used
for changing places (disabled toilets) at Millerground, but this
work uncertain at the moment - potentially vire the balance to
Queens Park.
44,800 Total scheme cost £80k, £40k funding currently assured, £25k
vired from general play areas budget above and other funding
being sought. Tenders close 9 Oct, and install early next year
(Feb/ March), payment on completion in April.

Appendix 3

Capital Programme 2020/21-2024/25
GL
Code

Programme Spending by Project

2020/21
Approved
Feb 2020

Carryforwards
approved
June 2020

Q2
monitoring
amendments
2020/21

2020/21
Latest

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total
2020/21 to
2024/25

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

2,670.0

0.0

-2,146.9

523.1

2,163.0

2,273.0

381.0

0.0

5,340.1

0.0

129.1

-10.0

119.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

119.1

65.7

20.5

0.0

86.2

25.0

25.0

25.0

0.0

161.2

KLR31 Nobles Rest

0.0

4.3

0.0

4.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.3

KMR33 Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention

0.0

0.0

33.5

33.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

33.5

KNM56 Millerground Public Open Space, Access and
Play Project
KNMxx Play Areas (including community funded
schemes and schemes arising from the Play
Space Audit)
KPY42 Car Parking Machines

0.0

17.0

0.0

17.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

17.0

65.0

142.3

-92.8

114.5

159.8

65.0

65.0

65.0

469.3

0.0

84.2

0.0

84.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

84.2

KPY44 Town and Car Park signing

0.0

11.7

0.0

11.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

11.7

KPY45 South Lakeland House carpark works

0.0

15.2

-13.5

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.7

KPY46 Car park re-surfacing

0.0

92.4

0.0

92.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

92.4

KPY48 Parkside Road, Kendal car park

0.0

145.3

0.0

145.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

145.3

KPY49 Windermere Road car park, Grange

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

KPY50 Purchase of Car Park Dowker Lane

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,281.0

13.5

0.0

2,294.5

499.0

820.0

2,049.0

2,235.0

7,897.5

KDE06 ERDF funded flood defence works
KXB27 Energy-saving building enhancements
KFL01 Footway Lighting

KSC91 Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes)
KCD01 Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement

0.0

4.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.0

KIP01 LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property
included under individual properties)
KLC03 New Ulverston Leisure Centre

0.0

125.0

0.0

125.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

125.0

250.0

0.0

-250.0

0.0

250.0

6,000.0

2,950.0

0.0

9,200.0

KLH02 Coronation Hall alterations

39.9

0.0

-39.9

0.0

79.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

79.8

KLH08 Abbot Hall redevelopment

100.0

50.0

50.0

-100.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

KLL18 Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements

0.0

1.4

0.0

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

KMR21 Kendal Museum contribution

0.0

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

85.0

KMR31 Festival Infrastructure

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

KMR34 Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS)

0.0

41.0

0.0

41.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

41.0

75.0

61.2

0.0

136.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

136.2
120.0

KMR35 Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from
LIPS)
KPE18 Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail
KRE53 Kendal Town Centre Public Realm
KLH07 Kendal Town Hall/South Lakeland House
KEP52 Disabled Toilet improvements

0.0

120.0

-120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3,789.9

-37.0

439.0

4,191.9

947.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

5,139.4

0.0

40.0

0.0

40.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

40.0

KAH10 Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre
Properties.
KAH11 Cross-a-Moor junction improvement

260.0

431.0

-349.0

342.0

609.0

260.0

0.0

0.0

1,211.0

0.0

300.0

-300.0

0.0

4,531.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

4,531.7

KAH13 S106 funded affordable homes purchase

0.0

86.0

-56.0

30.0

56.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

86.0

230.7

223.7

-10.0

444.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

444.4

KAH14 Homeless Accommodation for Families
KAH15 Next Steps Accommodation Programme

0.0

0.0

237.0

237.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

237.0

KCH01 Community Housing Fund

0.0

325.8

235.2

561.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

561.0

2,351.2

0.0

-1,151.2

1,200.0

1,151.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,351.2

KDE07 Coastal Communities Fund (includes £1.1 million
for Grande Promenade)

KGD21 Disabled Facilities Grants
KIF01 Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing
Associations
KIT27 Mobile Working
KIT30 Customer Connect
KIT90 IT Replacements

661.0

66.3

0.0

727.3

661.0

603.0

603.0

603.0

3,197.3

3,000.0

0.0

-3,000.0

0.0

3,000.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

6,000.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

307.3

0.0

307.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

307.3

80.0

8.6

0.0

88.6

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

408.6

KRE04 Grange Regeneration

157.3

0.0

-157.3

0.0

157.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

157.3

KRE66 Grange Promenade Structural works

796.0

-74.0

-716.0

6.0

1,091.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1,097.0

1,960.0

0.0

-1,890.0

70.0

1,890.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1,960.0

0.0

247.5

0.0

247.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

247.5

KRE67 Grange Lido
KRT10 Right to buy replacement scheme

Page 87

Appendix 3

Capital Programme 2020/21-2024/25
GL
Code

Programme Spending by Project

CAP A Environment Agency lead Flood Relief Scheme
Improvements
CAP B Purchase of Bins and Boxes for Waste Service
CAP C Structural Repair works to Westmorland
Shopping Centre MSCP
CAP D Refurbishment of Ellerthwaite Depot to create
office accommodation for rent
CAP E Extension and refurbishment to Rothay Park
toilets (incl Changing Places toilet)
CAP G Kendal Car Parking improvements including
potential purchase of site, machine upgrades
and signage
CAP H Roofing repairs to The Monument, Kirkby
Lonsdale

2020/21
Approved
Feb 2020

Carryforwards
approved
June 2020

Q2
monitoring
amendments
2020/21

2020/21
Latest

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Total
2020/21 to
2024/25

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

550.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

550.0

65.0

0.0

0.0

65.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

65.0

0.0

0.0

43.0

43.0

197.0

240.0

0.0

0.0

480.0

0.0

0.0

10.0

10.0

80.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

90.0

0.0

0.0

15.5

15.5

59.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

75.0

0.0

0.0

6.5

6.5

493.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

500.0

27.0

0.0

0.0

27.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

27.0

Bids subject to further assessment:
Car park investments*

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Employment site land acquisition

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Depot review

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

18,874.7

3,208.3

-9,382.9

12,700.1

18,951.3

13,366.0

6,153.0

2,983.0

54,153.4

0.0
Total

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks, reconfiguration options on existing car parks and electric charging
points
2020/21

Reconciliation:

£000

Capital Programme approved July 2020
Reprofiling
Q1 monitoring approvals approved Council Sept
2020
Additional external funding - play areas
Additional funding - Cross-a-Moor approved
Council Sept 2020
Proposed Programme October 19

Page 88

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

£000

Total
2019/20 to
2023/24

£000

£000

£000

22,083.0

15,951.4

5,169.1

2,822.0

2,983.0

£000

-10,296.1

-1,231.8

8,196.9

3,331.0

0.0

0.0

911.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

911.2

2.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.0

0.0

4,231.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

4,231.7

12,700.1

18,951.3

13,366.0

6,153.0

2,983.0

54,153.4

49,008.5

Appendix 4
2020/21 Quarter 2 Treasury Management Update
This appendix reviews treasury performance for the period 01/04/2020 – 30/09/2020 against
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, which was approved by Council on
25th February 2020.
The Councils Treasury Management operation ensures cash flows are adequately planned,
with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity
initially, before considering optimising investment return.
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, this
is the element of the capital programme that is not financed from external grants, capital
receipts or other contributions. Which when added to the Council’s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) shows the underlying borrowing need of the Council. This underlying
borrowing need is managed by the treasury team through short and long term borrowing
arrangements and the use of longer term cash flow surpluses.
Borrowing
No new borrowing has been undertaken in the year to date, therefore the Council has maintained
external borrowing at £12.8 million. As a result, gross and net borrowing are below the capital
financing requirement (CFR). This is a key indicator as it shows that the Council is not borrowing
to fund revenue activities or borrowing to lend-on.
Table 1: Borrowing Limits

Actual borrowing
Authorised limit
Operational boundary
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

£m
12.800
30.415
24.200
24.142

Table 1 also shows that the Council hasn’t breached its operational boundary and authorised limit
(which must not be breached) on external debt.
The current premium on the Councils borrowing is circa 112% (i.e. £1.12m per £1m repaid), which
would take around 27½ years to repay. This is not low enough to consider making an early
repayment, however we will keep this under review.
Our current internal borrowing position, is estimated to be £11.342million or 47% of the CFR at year
end, this has risen from 32% of CFR in 2019/20. This position will be carefully monitored against
changes to reserves to ensure that the position is sustainable.
Previously the Council’s position has been to wait until the end of a financial year before borrowing
for that years capital plans. Due to the unpresented times and the impact this has had on cash
flows coupled with the uncertainty of capital cash flows we may need to borrow in year in 2020/21.
This should not impact negatively on the budget as it was set assuming we would borrow for
2019/20’s capital programme which due to re-profiling we did not need to do. In fact because of
this we are expecting to make a saving here which once you take into account the likely mid-year
borrowing is estimated to be £150,000.

Page 89

Appendix 4
Investments
Graph 1 below shows the movement on the Councils investment portfolio between 01/04/20
and 30/09/2020.

The Council held £34.898m of investments as at 30 September 2020. Table 2 shows the
outstanding investments by type.
Table 2 Investment Summary
Counterparty
Call Operational
CCLA
Federated
Fixed Operational
Ashford Borough Council
Coventry Building Society
Leeds Building Society
Nottingham Building Society
Principality Building Society
Skipton Building Society
Standard Chartered
West Bromwich Building Society
Fixed Core
Aberdeen City Council
City of Liverpool
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
Newcastle Building Society
Standard Chartered

Value (£m)
2.848
7.050
2.000
3.000
2.000
1.000
2.000
2.000
1.000
2.000
2.000
1.000
3.000
2.000
2,000
34,898

Graph 2 below shows the maturity profile of the Councils investment portfolio split between
operational and core investment types

Page 90

Appendix 4

Table 3 below summarised the performance to date, benchmarked against the London
Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) that best matches the duration of the investments. For example,
Call investments can be called back the same day and so the overnight LIBID rate is the bench
mark.
Table 3 Performance

Call Operational
Fixed Operational
Fixed Core (Long Term)
Overall Average

Average
Return
0.20%
0.39%
0.65%
0.38%

Benchmark
Rate
-0.07%
0.09%
0.18%

Variance
0.27%
0.30%
0.47%

All of the councils investments are performed in excess of their benchmarks, with the overall
average outperforming the 6-month benchmark rate used for the Fixed Core (long term)
investments.
Budget v Estimated Outturn
On March 2020 the Bank of England made two emergency cuts to the Bank Rate first to 0.25%
and then to 0.10% in response to the Covid-19 crisis affecting world economies. Since them we
have seen market rates follow suit with return on investments for new investments falling from
around 0.70-0.80% in January 2020 to 0.01-0.24% by September 2020.
It is currently thought that the Bank of England will not go as far as to cut the Bank Rate into negative
territory before the end of the year although they have accessing the readiness of financial intuitions
to cope with negative rates.
Our advisors are not expecting a rate cut and have provided us with the following interest rate
forecast, which is broadly in line with what we are seeing when we go to the market

Page 91

Appendix 4

Link Group Interest Rate View

11.8.20

Dec-20

Mar-21

Jun-21

Sep-21

Dec-21

Mar-22

Jun-22

Sep-22

Dec-22

Mar-23

Bank Rate View

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

3 month average earnings

0.05

0.05

0.05

0.05

0.05

-

-

-

-

-

6 month average earnings

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

-

-

-

-

-

12 month average earnings

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

-

-

-

-

-

5yr PWLB Rate

1.90

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.10

2.10

2.10

2.10

Following
this we revisited
estimates
income
and
for
there
10yr PWLB Rate
2.10 our 2.10
2.10for interest
2.10
2.20
2.20 expenses
2.20
2.30the year
2.30 and 2.30
is
no
significant
change
in
the
outturn
position
of
a
£150k
shortfall
in
interest
receivable
covered
25yr PWLB Rate
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.60
2.60
2.60
2.70
2.70
2.70
2.70 by
a50yr
£150k
underspend
on
the
interest
payable.
PWLB Rate
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.40
2.40
2.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
Despite shortfalls in income across the board during the first half of 2020/21, the Council has not
had any cash flow shortfalls and this is expected to remain so for the whole of 2020/21. However
depending on how income recovers we may have to use core cash funds to meet day to day cash
flows in 2021/22.
Economic Forecast
The fall in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for the first half of 2020 was revised down to -21.8%,
which is one of the largest falls in output of any developed nations. However this is only to be
expected as the UK Economy is heavily skewed towards consumer-facing services, an area which
is particularly vulnerable to the being damaged by lockdown. A sharp recovery in June through to
August left the economy 11.7% smaller than in February. Growth is unlikely to increase in the last
three months of 2020 as a new wave of local lockdowns come in place combined with the
uncertainty over the outcome of the UK/EU trade negotiations concluding Brexit at the end of the
year.
The annual Consumer Price Inflations was 0.2% in August down from 1.0% in July and could reach
zero by the end of the year. Inflation is not projected to rise above 2% until late 2022 at the earliest
according to the Bank of England forecasts. Unemployment continues to rise and is expected to
be down to 7.5% by the end of the year.
Conclusion
While the Council Investments have continue to perform well against benchmarks and borrowing
has been maintained at £12.8 million within the debt indicators. 2020/21 will be a challenging year
as a result of the fall in rates and the current market conditions, with a predicted budget deficit of
£149k on interest receivable as a result. This is offset by a corresponding saving on interest
payable.

Page 92

Appendix 5
Carry forward of budgets requested

Name

Portfolio

Lead

Customer Connect

Housing and
Innovation

Head of Shared ICT Reprofiling of spend to reflect procurment
and Lead Specialist exercises completed to date
for Digital
Innovation

Elections

Climate Emergency
and Localism

Operational Lead
Support Services

Total Carry forward of budgets requested

Description

The district council elections due to be held
in May 2020 have been postponed to May
2021 due to Covid-19.

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

2025/26
£000

Funding

(553.0)

553.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 Customer Connect reserve

(75.0)

75.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

628.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

(628.0)

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94

Item No.8
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Request for Authorised Absence from Council and
Council Committee Meetings
Councillor D Khan
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon - Portfolio Holder for Customer and Commercial
Services and People

Report from:

Linda Fisher – Monitoring Officer

Report Author:

Cat Brumwell – Case Management Officer

Wards:

Grange;

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

That Council considers a request from Councillor D Khan for his absence from
Council and Committee meetings to be authorised by the Council in accordance with
section 85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Council, in accordance with section 85 (1) of the
Local Government Act 1972, authorises Councillor Khan’s absence from
Council and Committee meetings until and including 27 July 2021 for the
reasons set out in this report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Section 85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 requires elected Members to have
attended a qualifying meeting (generally a Council, Committee or Sub-Committee
meeting) within 6 months of their last qualifying attendance. The Act makes
provision for leave of absence to be granted if approved by the Authority prior to the
expiration of the six month period.

3.2

Councillor Dave Khan is the elected member for Grange Ward. The reason for Cllr
Khan’s absence is due to caring for a family member who is ill and he is currently not
able to attend a Council or Committee period within 6 months of his last attendance
at Council on 28 July 2020.

3.3

Consequently, Councillor Khan has requested that, under section 85 (1) of the Local
Government Act 1972, Council approves a leave of absence up to and including 27
July 2021.

3.4

It is anticipated that Cllr Khan’s colleagues within the Grange area will be able to deal
with any matters that residents within the Grange ward may wish to raise without the
need to make any formal arrangements for temporary cover.

Page 95

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The Leader of the Council has been consulted and is supportive of the proposal and
agrees that, due to the circumstances, and the time constraints concerned, this
matter should be considered at this meeting of Council.

4.2

The Chairman of the Council has been consulted.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

Council could decide not to approve the leave of absence. In essence, if the Council
meeting on 15 December decides not to approve the leave of absence, Cllr Khan
would cease to be a member of the authority in accordance with the relevant
legislation should he fail throughout a period of six consecutive months from the date
of his last attendance (28 June 2020) to attend any meeting of the authority.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Not applicable.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Human Resources
7.2

There are no human resources implications arising out of this report.

Legal
7.3

The legal implications are set out earlier in this report.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: It is
considered that this report has a neutral health, social, economic and environmental
impact.

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: It is considered
that this report has a neutral health, social, economic and environmental impact.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: It is
considered that this report has a neutral equality and diversity impact.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: It is considered that this report has a
neutral equality and diversity impact.

Page 96

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Council could decide not to
approve the leave of absence.
In essence, if the Council
meeting on 15 December
decides not to approve the leave
of absence.

Cllr Khan would cease to
be a member of the
authority in accordance
with the relevant
legislation should he fail
throughout a period of six
consecutive months from
the date of his last
attendance (28 June 2020)
to attend any meeting of
the authority.

Council could grant the
leave of absence
requested.

Contact Officers
Cat Brumwell – Case Management Officer, 01539 793 441,
cat.brumwell@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Not applicable.
Background Documents Available
None.
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
25/11/2020
29/11/2020
25/11/2020
26/11/2020

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
25/11/2020
N/A
26/11/2020
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 97

Date Signed off
25/11/2020
29/11/2020
25/11/2020
27/11/2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98

Item No.9
South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Climate Emergency and Localism
Portfolio:

Cllr Dyan Jones

To lead on the Council’s policies around Climate change and sustainable growth, develop a
policy on bio-diversity, raise community awareness and work collaboratively on policy
objectives.
To take the lead on Strategic Waste Management/Recycling and relevant Council Plan
measures under the environment objectives.
To drive our Localism agenda.
Policies, Plans and Strategies





Waste Management Strategy (environmental impacts)
Air Quality Strategy and action plan
Active Travel Strategy and action plan
Council Policy on Climate Change











Waste Management and Recycling Strategy
Community micro-energy schemes
Carbon/Greenhouse gas reduction
Green agenda – carbon reduction
Active Travel
Localism
Devolution
Water Quality
Bio-Diversity

Key Areas

Page 99

Waste Management and Recycling Strategy
The Climate Emergency and Localism and Customer and Commercial Services Portfolios
together support the Waste Management and Street Scene department within this authority.
A communications plan was developed to promote recycling and waste minimisation,
supporting our green initiative. This included content in the recent edition of South Lakeland
News and various posts on social media platforms. Future on-going communications are
scheduled with regard to food waste and regular recycle and reuse messages.
The 2020/21 waste collection calendars were distributed in February 2020. They included
additional guidance to encourage and support householders to reduce waste and recycle
more effectively, as well as regular content relating to kerbside services.
Throughout 2019/20, Officers attended local events at Kendal, Ambleside and Grange-overSands. Unfortunately the Council was unable to attend any other Local events due to the
Covid-19 restrictions.
Council has been and will continue to work with partners to investigate useful ways to reduce
its carbon emissions and will continue to look at all areas of policy and delivery; as part of
the Council’s action plan designed to tackle climate change.
Clean Air posters were installed on litter bins across the district to encourage drivers to turn
off their engines when in stationary traffic.
We took part in a new campaign led by the Westmorland Gazette and Mail called the ‘Green
Mission’ between March and August across both titles, in print, on the websites and on
social media, promoting environmental, and climate change and sustainability issues.
(Covid-19 had caused some disruption to the publication of these campaigns). The Council
contributed content and shared ideas on key issues as part of our Climate Change Action
Plan commitment to highlight local actions, tackling biodiversity loss and the themes of
reducing our carbon footprint with information around what practical steps we can take
together.
As reported in the Customer and Commercial Services Portfolio Holder report monthly green
waste collections were introduced due to the Coronavirus outbreak in response to reduced
staffing levels and to ensure crews could work safety and comply with social distancing
guidelines. During the second Lockdown throughout November, the Council was able to
maintain regular green and grey waste collections.
Air Quality Strategy/ Action Plan and Carbon Reduction
The Council offers low emission parking permits at a reduced rate for cleaner vehicles. Since
January 2019 a total of 36 discounted permits have been registered.
Council is required to report on air quality management to Defra every year. Since 2011
Council has reduced the number of air quality management areas that do not meet quality
standards from 4 to 1. The Council is continuing to regularly monitor the remaining site at
Lowther Street, Kendal and continues to undertake promotional activities to reduce idling
and promotes cycle ways throughout the district, especially to schools. As outlined in the
Climate Change Action Plan to tackle climate change the Council will be investigating
further, ways to discourage vehicle idling.

Page 100

The Council has introduced a requirement for all developers in its Local Planning Authority
area to submit the appropriate information as part of their planning application in order for
the Council to assess the developments impact on air quality.
Council is continuing to support the LEAP and Cold to Cosy schemes which provides advice
and support with installation of low energy lightbulbs and other ways to help improve energy
efficiency in vulnerable residents’ homes.
Community micro-energy schemes and Carbon/Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Council’s Climate Change Policy provides focus on how South Lakeland District Council can
lead and encourage others to take action around climate change.
Following its adoption the policy recognises the significance of climate change whilst
identifying economic and other opportunities offered by addressing and adapting to meet the
challenges ahead. Council acknowledges the importance of climate change both in how we
manage ourselves as an organisation and how we work with partners at a local, regional and
national level, ensuring sustainable growth is a priority.
South Lakeland District Council has been investigating the installation of solar panels on
Council owned buildings where feasible. Panels have been installed on South Lakeland
House, Mintworks and Town View Fields Hostel and works are due to commence on the
installation at Ferry Nab.
Green Agenda – Activity
Throughout 2019/20 the Council has partnered with Cumbria Action for Sustainability (CAfS)
to provide support for communities across the district exploring and introducing renewable
energy schemes and other projects and topics. The Council will continue funding support
throughout 2020/21 to enable CAfS to continue to undertake a comprehensive programme
of low carbon initiatives targeted at communities across South Lakeland. The Council’s
support includes funding a zero carbon project in Ambleside, approval of the installation of
solar panels on council buildings and the Council has approached parish councils to identify
available land for enhanced tree planting.
In January 2020 a new role was created within the Council to co-ordinate actions identified
within the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan capturing information and ideas gathered
from previous Climate Conversations under categories of: inform, influence and implement.
Following the ‘Climate Conversations’ hosted by Cabinet members in July 2019 the Council
generated an action plan. Unfortunately due to Covid-19 the face to face ‘Climate
Conversations’ scheduled for March 2020 were cancelled, however virtual sessions were
held in July 2020 where attendees were provided with an update on the Councils progress in
relation to the action plan.
In June 2020 Council approved an amendment to the original Climate Change Policy that
was adopted in February 2019 to commit the Council to work towards achieving carbon
neutrality in 2030 and to support a district wide target of carbon neutrality by 2037.
Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committee approved the Climate Change Community
Fund. This fund, initially made up of £20,000 invited communities to apply for matched grant
funding to support carbon reduction projects. Open to applicants from August until the end of
September this year, we now have 10 successful projects ranging from action planning
generated by a Citizen’s Jury, to bike ability courses, help with energy efficiency measures
and peat bog restoration.

Page 101

With support from the Cumbria Leaders Board and Cumbria Chief Executives Group a
Climate Change Sub Group was established. Led by Lake District National Park Authority the aim of the Climate Change ‘Sub Group’ is to identify mitigating actions which can be
introduced across the county to reduce risks and impacts of climate change. Delegates from
Cumbria authorities support this group and the introduction and implementation of the
Climate Change Strategy.
SLDC are part of the Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership of 70 organisations across Cumbria
who are committed to lowering carbon emissions in Cumbria. This partnership
commissioned Small World Consultancy to write a report on Cumbria’s baseline carbon
emissions and a suggested target of 2037 for net zero emissions. SLDC were the first
authority to ratify that date. Cumbria Action for Sustainability have successfully bid for
National Lottery Funding of £2.5million to help support the Zero Carbon Cumbria
Partnership.
The project to install of EV Charging Points across the District continues to progress. Its
delivery has been impacted by Covid-19, therefore the project has been postponed. A total
of 14 SLDC managed sites were reviewed of which 6 currently meet all criteria for project.
The next steps will be review and consult the detailed plans and lease agreements once
received and seek Cabinet approval to procure equipment, a contractor and install the
charge points.
Green Agenda – Active Travel
The Active Travel Group has been engaging with key partners to introduce additional cycle
routes and safer routes to school. SLDC website now also includes cycling maps for routes
across the district (Click here).
Encouraging cycling is very important in any future reduction of carbon emissions and with
support from Defra, a Cycling Hub was installed in 2019 at the Westmorland Shopping
Centre. The popular hub provides cycle parking, a maintenance stand and lockers, all free
for public use. The facility provides space for 10 bikes and encourages commuters and
visitors to support the council’s initiative to reduce carbon emissions and has been well
received.
It was recognised that during the Coronavirus lockdown period in March 2020, the number of
vehicles on the roads reduced and more people are cycling. Therefore we have been
working in partnership with Cumbria County Council to introduce more cycle lanes and
routes where feasible and will work collaboratively to identify any future funding
opportunities.
Council will continue to actively monitor and trial new technologies where appropriate,
feasible and realistic, in a timely manner
Localism
Earlier in 2020 Cabinet Members held successful meetings with a number of town and
parish councils to discuss the benefits of localism and listen to their views. The Council was
then able to establish a comprehensive list of community development opportunities to
inform SLDC where support mechanisms could be put in place.
Since the Coronavirus outbreak, Council has been in regular contact with Town and Parish
Council virtually to understand the challenges communities have been facing during this time
and share guidance and support.

Page 102

Town and Parish Council have also been involved in the consultation surrounding The Bay
proposal following the invitation from Government for submissions towards Local
Government Reorganisation.
A number of Parish and Town Councils were invited to apply for grant funding through the
Police and Crime Commissioner towards the installation of CCTV cameras in communities.
Following successful approval towards grants the Council also provided financial
contributions towards installation to Kendal Town Council, Kirkby Lonsdale Town Council,
Milnthorpe Parish Council and Windermere Town Council.
Devolution
The Leader of the Council has been closely monitoring and engaging in discussions with
district and county authorities surrounding options for Local Government Reorganisation.
The Council has submitted a proposal to Government in partnership with Lancaster City
Council and Barrow Borough Council, to explore the opportunities for ‘The Bay’ to enhance
key relationships with other authorities in health, housing and economic growth.
Water Quality
For the fifth consecutive year, in the 2019 bathing season each designated bathing water
location in South Lakeland was rated as excellent. Due to Coronavirus the assessments for
2020 were not completed.
The Council undertakes a statutory function to carry out private water tests at various
locations across the district to ensure the safety of communities, implemented by the Private
Water Supplies Regulations 2016. Council has been continuing to undertake risk
assessments and monitoring across all private water supplies in accordance with Covid-19
regulations and safety precautions. Where required, the Council continues to investigate any
failure to meet standards and takes necessary enforcement action, always ensuring
communities are protected.
Bio-Diversity
Throughout 2019/20 Council has continued to raise the importance of biodiversity across the
district whilst supporting mitigating climate change actions. Representatives from Cabinet
met with the Lake District National Park authority to discuss how to increase biodiversity
across the district through partnership working.
The Biodiversity Policy was designed to recognise the Councils commitment to protecting
and enhancing local biodiversity, setting out a number actions as to how it will be achieved.
The policy recognised the importance of plant and insect species and works with contractors
to implement different forms of management for open spaces and areas of traditional parks,
supporting and enhancing biodiversity.
Principles behind the policy:



To reduce the carbon emissions created by regular grass cuttings, from
decomposition (both those collected and those left on-site) and emissions from
vehicles and machinery.
To increase the diversity of plant species found in green spaces, benefitting local
wildlife and the wider environment to diversify local landscape value.

To promote and enhance local and global biodiversity, South Lakeland will:-

Page 103

1.

Ensure where possible that products procured by the Council and its contractors
are from sustainable sources and encourage our community and partners to do
likewise.

2.

Through the implementation of its Climate Change Policy seek to minimise the
emissions of greenhouse gases which contribute to global warming and habitat
degradation by the Council’s own activities and by other stakeholders across the
County and sub-region.

3.

Through its policy of avoiding the use of single-use plastics, and through
encouraging other stakeholders to do the same to minimise pollution of rivers and
oceans.

4.

Encourage habitat creation, restoration and safeguarding through its planning
policies

Page 104

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Customer, Commercial Services and People
Portfolio
Portfolio:

Cllr Phillip Dixon

To work with all Members, the community and organisations in developing and implementing
locality working, case management, and specialist services as part of the Council’s
Customer connect programme.
Delivery of the Council Plan objectives in relation to quality of service and high performance
culture.
The organisation of the Authority relating to the Council’s central services, including
Employee relations.
Providing and maintaining parks infrastructure.
Polices, plans and strategies





Parks and Open Spaces Strategy
Customer Charter and Contact Strategy
Member Development and Training Plan
Workforce Plan (to be reviewed under customer connect programme)

Key Areas










Customer services (operational)
Car Parking (operations)
Waste Management (operations and service optimisation)
Street scene
Member Services
Member Training and Development
Legal and Committee Services and HR Services
Leisure, Public Realm, (Parks and Open Spaces (Including cemeteries, trees,
woodland and playground improvement)
Corporate Health and Safety

Page 105

Customer services (operational)
The transformation programme, Customer Connect, will deliver better access to services for
customers, 24 hours a day, seven days a week and is beginning to create more
opportunities to self-serve through improved digital options.
Customer Services are undergoing transition as part of phase 2 of the Customer Connect
project which was delayed due to Covid-19. The enhanced delivery of new capabilities within
the authority will improve the service and experience delivered to customers and staff.
Over 600 core service processes had been identified across the organisation and a
significant number of minor processes. The work of the service redesign is continuing to
focus on the areas where there is the biggest opportunity to improve, by prioritising the core
processes based on customer impact, volume and customer efficiency. The areas with the
biggest opportunities were identified as the main focus for the redesign process. This task is
ongoing and increased access to digitally enabled services will be rolled out during 2020,
including ‘My Account.’
There are now twenty one self-service process live on the council’s website and accessible
through ‘My Account’. These include locality forms for graffiti, abandoned vehicle and fly
tipping, case management forms for services such as bereavements, complaints and print
services and street scene forms for missed bins, assisted collection and requesting new
waste equipment. Business grant forms to support business affected by COVID-19 have
also been made available online.
Website accessibility
Our website is in a good place, it is highly rated by organisations that measure and
benchmark the accessibility of our site. Over the year, in line with government digital
services guidance, we have:








Conducted an independent accessibility audit
Published our accessibility statement
Implemented an internal ‘accessibility protocol’ – guidelines for managing
accessibility issues
Delivered training to help staff understand how to produce accessible documents and
web content.
Introduced processes and procedures to make it easy for staff to produce accessible
digital material
Completed the task of manually editing, or replacing with web content, the 1,500
PDF’s on our site so they meet legislative accessibility standards
Putting controls checks and measure in place to maintain our accessibility standards

Car parking (operations)
Working collaboratively with the Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio the Council is
seeking ways to increase car parking capacity within the areas of highest demand and
respond to the challenges brought to us by Covid-19.
The Council is offering free car parking in Council owned car parks every Sunday in
December to attract both visitors and residents into local towns supporting the local
economy.

Page 106

From 25 March until 15 June during the peak of Coronavirus, all SLDC operated car parks
were free to use to ensure key workers and volunteers involved in the emergency response
could access free parking and to minimise the risk of virus transmission. Following the
reintroduction of charging in SLDC operated car parks, safety measures have been installed
to slow the spread of the virus through social distancing and contactless card payments or
pay by phone are encouraged.
Waste Management (operations and service optimisation) and Street scene
Throughout 2019/20 the Customer and Commercial Services and Climate Emergency and
Localism portfolios have been working in partnership to support the waste management and
street scene functions.
Throughout the year there has been numerous social media messages to promote recycling
and waste minimisation during recent months, supporting the Councils green initiative. The
December edition South Lakeland News included significant content regarding waste and
recycling.
The street cleansing service trialled 2 electric vehicles, however in both cases the daily
operational mileage exceeded the range of the vehicle. The service is continuing to monitor
new vehicle technologies, particularly with regard to alternative fuels. Drivers are
encouraged to turn off their engines when in stalled traffic.
A decision was approved to extend suspension of green waste collections during January
and February 2021, as part of the Councils action to addressing Climate Change. Statistics
supported that the quantity of green waste collections is much lower compared to other
times of the year, and the Councils collection fleet use significant quantities of fuel to make
collections at each household every other week. During the January and early February
period the vehicles will be off the road every other week, as there will be alternate weekly
grey bin collections, this will therefore create a 50% reduction in the carbon footprint of
collection vehicles during this period. This period will also be used to ensure that training is
updated which will include Driver CPC training, driver/loader reversing vehicle training,
manual handling and managing violence/ aggression training.
In January 2020 the Council supported a joint operation with Cumbria Constabulary and the
DVLA to take enforcement action on untaxed and abandoned vehicles. Over the past year
over 300 reports of abandoned vehicles were received by the Council and the operation
supported enforcement actions to be taken against 30 vehicles in Kendal, Milnthorpe,
Staveley, Windermere and Ambleside.
In response to Coronavirus the Council introduced monthly collections of green waste across
the District throughout May and June 2020. This was undertaken in response to reduced
staffing levels due to Coronavirus and to ensure crews could work safety and comply with
social distancing guidelines. During the November 2020 Lockdown the Council was able to
maintain regular grey, green waste and recycling collections.
During the first Lockdown the Council made sure that all available vehicles were on the road
each day and loaned vehicles from other authorities to continue with the scheduled grey
waste and recycling collections. With the increased number of people working from home
the Council has seen a very significant increase in recycling tonnages collected.

Page 107

Member Services and Member Training and Development
The 2019/20 training plan had offered a variety of training opportunities available for
members. Examples of this training available include:









Social Media and Web skills
Digital Skills Workshop
Introduction to Your Ward
Committee Inductions
GDPR, FOI and Data Management
Chairing Committee Skills
Submitting Member Expenses Online
Carbon Literacy Training

Feedback on the training provided had been extremely positive. Member Services are
continuing to encourage members to receive committee papers electronically through the
use of corporate IT kit. Corporate kit allows members to access council used systems such
as Skype for Business, Mod Gov and SharePoint which support the Customer Connect
Programme and GDPR regulations. In total 42 out of 51 members now use SLDC corporate
kit (with use of a corporate email account). Non-essential training for members has been
postponed due to Coronavirus, however several virtual briefing session have been
undertaken focusing on Local Government Reorganisation, Understanding My Role and
Responsibilities as a Corporate Parent, United Utilities Haweswater Aqueduct Resilience
Programme and Covid-19 briefings.
The Member Support Steering Group (MSSG) had trialled the Local Government
Association Councillor E-Learning Package to allow Members to undertake training
remotely. The feedback received to date has been positive and it has been circulated to all
members with corporate kit. The MSSG are working towards achieving the Level 2 North
West Employers to coincide with the Customer Connect Programme.
The Coronavirus pandemic has explored the Councils capabilities to use technology to
conduct meetings and keep connected. All Councillors have been given access to new
equipment and training on Microsoft Teams. This new virtual platform has allowed members
to take part in virtual meetings internally and externally.
Legal and Committee Services and HR Services
The new report writing system has been fully embedded across the organisation. Officers
can write, share and submit reports digitally using the system and introduces a more
effective tracking method for all committees. Further training is being organised.
Legal Services are working effectively reducing debts and being proactive in taking the
appropriate action. Encroachment debts have been reduced by 25% since October 2019.
Work continues to prioritise the completion of S106 agreements. The service has been
instrumental in addressing the impasse on some outstanding s106 agreements, taking
reports recently to Cabinet and the Planning Committee. It is hoped that many of the
agreements will now progress to early conclusion.
Workloads on contracts, grants and funding agreements have significantly
increased together with property related work. Complex criminal and civil litigation is also
being carried out.

Page 108

The team has also supported the work required recently on Local Government Reform
organising additional meetings and providing legal advice.
The team have established and implemented the Councils Virtual Meetings supporting
effective decision making. The team have processed numerous emergency decisions both
executive and non-executive.
Introducing new ways of working to ensure the Council has been in a position to respond
quickly and effectively to Government policy, funding allocation and distribution. The team
have advised at numerous committee and council meetings. Training Councillors and
providing advice and guidance on the use of Microsoft Teams.
Work is commencing on revising the Councils constitution, meetings are being arranged and
reports will be brought to future council meetings. The team are also considering the Local
Government Associations recently issued Model Code of Conduct for members. Reports will
be taken to the standards committee and consultation with Group Leaders and councillors
will take place.
The HR team has continued to be heavily involved in supporting the organisation and its
employees through an incredibly challenging period, Wellbeing has been a major focus with
a wide range of activities delivered including;















The figures for 2020 are showing a significant improvement on sickness absence
figures in comparison to the previous year
Launching the new Mental Wellbeing at Work policy featuring lots of helpful hints and
tips including the Wellness Action Plan
Extensive use of our Employee Assistance Programme including counselling support
(more than 160 calls in the past year) The new Healthy app that will be launched and
information will be shared soon
Family friendly policies including Smart working, Flexible working, Flexi-Time and
Special Leave
Extensive use of Occupational Health to support those in work as well as those on
sickness leave
Stress and COVID risk assessments
Ongoing HR professional support
Regular ‘coffee mornings’ with Team Leaders to provide, support, advice and
directions to them and their teams and for them to share best practice
The COVID site on sharepoint #together we can, desk based exercises,
homeworking wellbeing etc.
New weekly updates from the leadership team on sharepoint
The new team talk sessions
The staff wellbeing survey and what our approach will be once we receive the
feedback
Smart Working
Resilience workshops

Training activities have resumed after the initial COVID lockdown with the following being
delivered:




Customer service training – ‘Connecting with our Customers’ – delivered to more
than 200 people this year via face-to-face and virtual means
Personal resilience training piloted for 20 people, with more planned in near future
Team Leader bitesize training sessions with HR have commenced. Four out of five
subjects delivered

Page 109






New starter meet and greet sessions with Chief Exec and Directors
Staff drop-in sessions with Leadership Team started in October 2020
Further leadership training planned with Leadership Team, supported by
development work with Council Members
Launch of an extensive catalogue of E-learning courses

The introduction of new a technology platform (Microsoft Teams) has enabled the Council to
continue with the recruitment process via virtual interviews during Covid-19.
Leisure, Public Realm, (Parks and Open Spaces (Including cemeteries, trees,
woodland and playground improvement)
The Parks and Open Spaces Strategy identifies the importance of good quality green spaces
throughout the district. The strategy is designed to providing clear direction for the
management of council owned parks and open spaces over ten years. The strategy is
reviewing the day to day maintenance and identifying improvements to parks and open
spaces through working in partnership with communities, local businesses and partners. The
strategy has incorporated a variety of different spaces including parks, sports fields, trees
and woodlands and cemeteries.
In 2019 Rayrigg Meadow Playground on the shores of Lake Windermere was accredited
with a Bronze award for its commitment to inclusivity. The playground met the minimum
requirements of good accessibility throughout the play space, provision for at least three
senses to be accessed from a seating or standing position and an opportunity for all children
to use their ‘whole bodies’ in dynamic play through sliding, climbing, spinning or swinging. As
the playground enhances progresses it is hope that a silver award will be achieved in 2020.
In May 2019 new playgrounds were opened at Millerground, Rayrigg Meadow, Yew Tree
Playing Fields and Maryfell, Sedbergh. All the works undertaken at each park were
completed by working in collaboration with community groups and have been designed to be
inclusive and provide capital investment for 20 years.
Following a £125,000 investment and funding raised with the Friends of Abbot Hall
Playground the Abbot Hall playground has been revamped. An opening ceremony took
place on 1 September 2019 for families and included activities such as face painting.
A new play area also opened at Castlefield and Greenbank in Ambleside where the Resident
Association had helped to raise £85,000. An opening ceremony took place at half term.
The Council has been working with Grasmere Village Society and we have now opened the
new playground at Broadgate Meadow. This was delayed firstly by wet conditions last winter
and a delay to the drainage work due to Covid 19 restrictions. The playground is receiving
great reviews and extra picnic benches are on order to finish this project.
The new playground at Lightburn Park also opened in September with a very low key
opening event. This should have been open for the summer so only a short delay. The
Friends of Lightburn Park worked alongside SLDC and the Town Council to raise £120,000
to replace the existing playground. The play area has a new footprint to allow park users to
walk around the park without going through the play area. The new site offers a great
variety of challenging equipment for all ages and abilities. Due to the close proximity of
Sandside School, Locality staff consulted with the staff and head teacher for advice on the
most appropriate equipment to make this playground inclusive. The feedback has been very
positive.

Page 110

The funding has now been achieved for North Lonsdale Road playground and procurement
has just been completed. The contracts are with Legal Case management and once
completed the order will be placed. The installation will start in February and be open for the
Easter break. Consultation has been challenging with this project due to Covid 19 but local
parents and the Town Council have been involved, the finished playground will offer a great
play experience for children up to the age of 14 and with all abilities
The Beckside Community Centre outdoor fitness trail was installed in March 2020 this
incorporates outdoor gym equipment in two locations to encourage healthier lifestyles. A
consultation with residents was completed in October 2019 and demonstrated support from
local residents for small groups of outdoor gym equipment in the large area of open space
close to the Beckside Community Centre.
The plans for the redevelopment at Queens Park Windermere are progressing well and the
project has now been split into two phases. Phase one will include the new playground and
a pump track. Phase two will be to replace the skate park. Funding has now been secured
for Phase one and the tender will be advertised in December for 8 weeks. Evaluation will be
carried out by the Locality Team, Windermere Park for All group, who have been
instrumental in fundraising, and Windermere and Bowness Town Council. The final
£30,000 of the National Lottery Grant is going towards this and will be the ninth project to
benefit from the original £200,000 award.
SLDC have also been working with the residents at Hayclose Crescent to add some play
facilities to this awkward play space. Goals and an astro turf kick-about area was installed in
June and extra play equipment, new fencing and a secure gate has been installed at the
end of November.
All Council owned playareas were re-opened in June 2020, following the end of the national
lockdown restrictions and remained open throughout the recent lockdown in November.
The project at Town View Fields has demonstrated a strong relationship with multiple
agencies with the Natural Flood management scheme. Working with the support of the
Friends of Nobles Rest, The Environment Agency, The South Cumbria Rivers Trust and
Cumbria County Council to create a scheme to slow the flow of floodwater during heavy rain.
Funding has come from SLDC and the EA’s DEFRA fund.
The project has opened up the Culvert to create a meandering stream running into a small
wetland area before re-joining the culvert downstream. Two leaky timber dams known as
“Ker Plunk” structures will store and slowly release the water. As well as naturally slowing
the flow of storm water, the newly created “bog garden” will hopefully attract a richer variety
of wildlife to Town View Field, such as dragonflies, voles, frogs and toads. After the culvert
work is completed, the field’s biodiversity will be further enriched by the planting of a
wildflower meadow and a small damson orchard to help attract pollinators such as bees and
butterflies. SLDC Locality team are working on some interpretation boards to explain the
scheme and the wildlife and planting we hope to encourage on this site.
In 2019 the Council contacted parish and town councils across the district to invite proposals
for tree planting sites. In total six parish council owned sites have been secured with a total
of 36 trees to be planted across the sites, planting which began in January 2020.
The Parish tree planting letter sent out also identified locations to plant 55 trees on SLDC
owned land, 8 trees on LDNPA owned land and 9 trees on private land adjacent to publically
accessible areas. In total the Parish Tree Planting Letter has identified 173 tree planting
locations. The scheme in Ford Park in Ulverston will create a new Arboretum and community
orchard when 65 trees are planted.

Page 111

In partnership with leisure providers GLL, the Council supporting the promotion of leisure
facilities available in Windermere, Ulverston and Kendal. These have included opportunities
such as outdoor swimming lessons for children, health check days for over 55’s and
workplace sport torments. Work is taking place with GLL to see how the Council can support
GLL through the Pandemic. The Council have entered into an open book process with GLL
to understand the deficit posed by the pandemic and to see how the Council can best
support the service.
Corporate Health and Safety
Throughout 2019/20 the Council has been using the Health and Safety Strategic
Improvement Plan to ensure that the health, safety and wellbeing of staff is continuously
improved. This plan is continuing to be regularly reviewed at the Councils Internal Health,
Safety and Wellbeing Board. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee meet on a
quarterly basis. Each quarter a safety summary is presented to the committee to outline the
accident data, what is affecting the Council, what the Council is doing well and methods to
improve.
Following consideration by the committee it was agreed to undertake a review of the
Councils Safety Management System. Usage showed that the reporting platform Safety
Cloud was not well used due to the difficulty navigating the system. Following a review a
new and improved, simplified system has been rolled out across the authority. The system
had been broken down into new areas containing appropriate sub sections in line with team
requirements which would support monthly checklists.
In partnership with the review of the reporting platform a review of generic policies and risk
assessments had taken place to reduce the high level of duplication. Generic risk
assessments relating to South Lakeland House are now available under a single sub section
of the system. Areas of specialism assessments such as Town Fields Hostel or Street scene
will be available in specific service area policies.
The authority has also reviewed the risk assessments associated with Town View Fields
Hostel. New working arrangements and rota have been introduced as well as violence and
aggression training to better support staff.
The Annual Health and Safety Report was approved by Cabinet in November 2020. The
report provided an overview of the Councils actions in relation to Health, Safety and
Wellbeing through 2019/20. A key highlight within the annual report is that a total of 23
injuries and incidents were recorded which supported the continuing the trend of a low
number of accidents.
As reported in the Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder Report, the Council closed its
assets to the Public during both the Coronavirus Lockdowns. The Council also installed
protective and preventative measures to reopen its assets which protect both staff and
communities. Measures include markings to adhere to social distancing, protective screens,
sanitising facilities and staff continuing to work from home where possible. The offices at
South Lakeland House has remained open for employees unable to work from home, with
the appropriate safety precautions installed.
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing of SLDC employees is key and all employees working
within the community have been provided with the appropriate PPE and guidance to slow
the spread of the virus i.e. Collection Crews, Locality Officers and Cash Collectors. The
organisation is continuing to share internal messages, using the hashtag #Togetherwecan,
to share home working experiences and helpful hints and tips. Cleaning regimes were

Page 112

upgraded and all mandatory compliance tests were completed when the buildings were
closed. A flushing regime was put into place to prevent the need for extensive flushing and
chlorination when the buildings were re-opened. Risk assessments were reviewed along
with policies and procedures and they were made Covid-compliant to ensure the safety of
staff and members of the South Lakeland community.

Page 113

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio
Portfolio:

Cllr Robin Ashcroft

The Council Plan objectives as they relate to the Portfolio area of work, and cross-cutting work
developed through the Local Plan and Economic Development Strategy, promoting Culture
leisure activities and the arts and developing strategy for cultural assets.
Working in partnership to ensure a thriving and prosperous District within the context of the
wider sub- region, through effective economic development, regeneration and transport
strategies.
Working in partnership to ensure thriving and prosperous town centres throughout the District.
Providing public realm infrastructure to promote the local economy.
Promoting small businesses in both towns and rural areas
The Council plan objectives in relation to promoting culture, leisure activities and the arts.
To work with our cultural organisations to attract investment and to promote South Lakeland
as a premier area for Arts and Events.
Policies, Plans and Strategies
•
•
•
•
•

Morecambe Bay Prosperity and Resilience Strategy
Economic Development Strategy
Arts and Events
Grants Strategy
Licensing and Statement of Gambling Policies

Key Areas:











Economic Inward Investment
Business Support and Sector Development
Visitor Economy
Town Centre Planning, Car Parks and Transportation Strategies
Markets
Arts and Culture
Grants
Public Halls
Use of community assets for the promotion of arts and culture
Heritage and Events

Page 115







Heritage Listed Buildings and built environment
Voluntary Sector Engagement in relation to Culture and Leisure
Leisure and Recreation
Licensing and Gambling
Cross Authority Economic initiatives

Covid Recovery Response
Grants
The Council has administered a number of emergency grant schemes for businesses in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This has helped businesses and individuals of all sizes
and sectors, safeguarding businesses and jobs throughout the district. £67m has been paid
to 5,850 businesses affected by the first national lockdown. SLDC is now administering the
Local Restrictions Support Grant for businesses that have been forced to close during the
second national lockdown, as well as the Additional Restrictions Grant, and to date 2,345
further grant payments have been made to the total of £3.4m.
The grant commitments to strategic cultural partners were reviewed at Cabinet in February
2020. The agreed strategic cultural partners demonstrate a high importance to the district’s
cultural offer and have been particularly adversely affected by the Covid-19 restrictions. It was
agreed that this support was invaluable and that they would continue to receive a grant
payment for this financial year. These commitments will again be reviewed in February 2021
in accordance with the Budget.
Business Support
The Council has continued to provide essential services over this period, with specialist teams
on hand to assist South Lakeland businesses. SLDC has worked with partners to provide
business support, making a significant financial contribution to delivering free support to startups and existing businesses in partnership with Cumbria Chamber of Commerce
The Council has also worked closely with Cumbria Tourism, as the Destination Management
Organisation for the area, to deliver key elements of the visitor economy recovery plan, as
well as helping to shape the wider recovery plans for the area being co-ordinated by Cumbria
LEP.
South Lakelands economy is heavily reliant on the Visitor Economy which has been drastically
impacted following the Coronavirus outbreak. The Council has been working closely with
businesses to support them in introducing measures that protect themselves and the public
from the spread of Coronavirus, but allows them to reopen and encourage visitors to visit
South Lakeland safely and respectfully.
Strategic partnerships with Cumbria Action for Sustainability, Future Fixers and Green Small
Business has also seen the funding of initiatives and support which enables businesses to
make the most of opportunities presented by the green economy, including grants to SMEs
towards improving their environmental credentials, increasing their profitability and reducing
their carbon footprint in the process.
In response to the pandemic, the Portfolio Holder for Economy, Culture and Leisure has now
established and chairs an Economic Renewal Strategy Group for South Lakeland which has
representation from MPs, major employers and partners from around the district.

Page 116

Economic Inward Investment
Despite the ongoing challenges presented by the Covid-19 pandemic, SLDC has played a
crucial role in contributing and attracting millions of pounds worth of inward investment into
the district, including:














Cross-a-moor roundabout – Contributions to the estimated £9.4m scheme include
amounts from SLDC and Cumbria County Council, with £3m secured from Highways
England Growth Housing Fund, £925k from CLEP through Growth Deal funding and
£2.4m from CLEP through Cumbria Infrastructure Fund.
Grange Lido and promenade – £2.2m towards Lido restoration, funded by SLDC.
£2.35m was secured from the Coastal Communities Fund for a joint Morecambe Bay
Partnership/SLDC Bay-wide programme, of which £1m is earmarked for the prom and
connectivity with the lido.
Kendal Flood Risk Management Scheme – Estimated construction cost for the three
phases is £72m. The first element in Kendal will cost around £18m, with £13m secured
from the EA and £5m of ERDF funding.
South Lakeland House renovations – £2.9m overall cost which is majority SLDC
funded with £440k LEP grant to fund the creation of additional business space.
Grizebeck Bypass – In October 2020 the Department for Transport confirmed £12.7m
delivery funding for the A595 Grizebeck Improvement. Together with a contribution of
£2.2m from Cumbria LEP, work from Cumbria County Council can now continue to
deliver the improvement.
Borderlands Place Programme – South Lakeland has put forward Ulverston as its
chosen location for possible investment through the Borderlands Place Programme.
An outline economic case has been submitted in partnership with Cumbria County
Council for consideration by the Borderlands Board which, if successful, could release
up to £3m of funding for Ulverston.
GSK Masterplan – A masterplan has been commissioned by SLDC to guide the future
development of the GSK site in Ulverston following the company’s decision to reduce
its operations on the site. This seeks to establish a prosperous future for the site with
the intention to attract life sciences investment and high value employment.
Ulvertson BID – Following a successful ballot held in October 2020, Ulverston BID will
now be renewed for another five year term, starting in April 2021. This will see greater
private investment made available for Ulverston town centre initiatives in the coming
years.

Town Centre Planning, Car Parks and Transportation Strategies
The Council has published its Kendal Town Centre Strategy which sets out a long-term
strategic approach to ensuring Kendal remains an attractive place to live, work and visit. This
will inform Council plans, policies and priorities and be used to help secure future investment.
The Strategy was launched jointly with the Kendal Vision, led by public/private sector
partnership Kendal Futures, and a partnership approach is being taken to deliver on their
aspirations to create a more sustainable and vibrant Kendal. In addition, following the
Council’s submission of an Expression of Interest for Kendal for the Future High Streets Fund,
Kendal has now been selected as a national pilot for the newly formed High Streets Task
Force. This will see expertise and resources piloted in Kendal, which can also be applied to
wider South Lakeland, before being rolled out across the country next year.
The Council has undertaken a car parking study of Kendal to understand where publicly
available visitors, shoppers, workers and public transport car parking is under stress. The
study identifies how those stresses are likely to change over time, how council car parks and

Page 117

other publicly owned car parks and on street car parking can be most effectively managed to
maximise town centre viability and visitor spend; and to quantify the need for additional parking
spaces in the context of effective parking and traffic management. Whilst the report is currently
in draft and will be released in due course, some actions have already been taken to address
some of the points in the report such as:
•
•
•
•
•

Acquisition of Dowker Lane Car Park
New Car Park on Parkside Road – Planning obtained and the tender has been
received and tender docs being reviewed prior to works starting on site.
Review of all parking signage in the Town Centre to improve visitor experience.
Investigation into the feasibility of installing electric vehicle charging points.
Kendal College has reviewed its charging Policy to offer parking all day for £2 from
1st April 2020. This will open up parking opportunities for the Town during College
holidays.

The Government announced that retail businesses and high street shops could reopen to the
public from 15 June following their closure during the peak of Coronavirus.
Since then, SLDC has worked closely with CCC, LDNPA, BIDS, Town/Parish Councils and
local businesses to ensure they could reopen safety to the public.
Signage has been installed advising people to observe social distancing and the measures
introduced by individual shops in accordance with the Governments ‘Covid Secure’ guidance
across principal areas within South Lakeland.
Hand Sanitising stations have also be installed as well as signage directing people to available
public toilet facilities. Directional systems will be installed on narrow streets and safe queuing
measures installed outside shops. Customers are being encouraged to use contactless
payments where possible to minimise the risk of virus transmission.
SLDC have been conducting enhanced cleaning in the principal areas. Public Benches are
available for use however signage will be displayed to encourage social distancing.
Markets
In 2019 it was agreed at Cabinet to explore the potential for an innovative and experienced
operator to manage Kendal’s indoor and outdoor markets as part of a two stage procurement
process. As part of Stage 1 the Council investigated what interest there was in the private
sector to take on the running of Kendal markets, whether that be running the markets as one
or as two separate markets, understanding the financial implications this would have on our
revenue budget, understanding the economic benefits that a new operator could bring to the
town and investigating what social value could be added through a different operating model
for the markets.
In light of Coronavirus it was felt it was best to re-tender the Markets through a two staged
approach. Upon return of tenders, competitive dialogue will begin with those who have
submitted a tender, the closing date is 8 July 2020. Further detail to be provided in a separate
report to Cabinet in January 2021.
Both indoor and outdoor markets have now re-opened to the public following lockdown with
safety measures in place.

Page 118

Arts and Culture
The Council has been working closely with strategic cultural partners throughout 2019/20 and
organisations to encourage, support and promote culture, arts and events across the district.
Close partnership working with Arts Council England and other cultural organisations has
resulted in funding being secured to facilitate significant initiatives to promote South Lakeland
as a leading cultural destination and premier rural area for arts, events and festivals.
Unfortunately many events were unable to take place throughout 2020 due to the Coronavirus
pandemic, however some events went virtual including the Lakes International Comic Arts
Festival and Kendal Mountain Festival which supported the districts economy and helped stop
the spread of Coronavirus.
The Council is continuing to explore new opportunities for cultural partnerships, initiatives and
development as a cohesive part of the Lancaster South Cumbria Economic Region initiative
as well as the promotion of the Cumbria Public Health Strategy.
In August 2019 the Lancaster and South Cumbria Economic Region (LSCER) was announced
as one of only two rural areas in the UK to be accepted as an Arts Cultural Compact, an
innovative approach to releasing untapped economic potential through investment in culture.
Work is still underway to use the existing LSCER partnership to bring together key
stakeholders to work and innovate to realise the vision for Morecambe Bay, a significant
change in how things have been done by piloting a model connecting the three localities’
distinct and different cultural assets to boost future creativity, investment, innovation, jobs and
prosperity. The cross sector membership of the Cultural Compact will bring together Local
Authorities, Local Enterprise Partnerships, Universities, Colleges, Businesses and Cultural
and Creative Organisations.
The Council has been one of the supportive partners in major capital infrastructure
developments of the Wordsworth Trust ‘Reimagining Wordsworth, and the ‘Our Digital Future’
initiative at the Brewery Arts Centre.
The Council is still working with its creative partners, Craven District Council, Lake District and
Yorkshire Dales National Parks on the ‘Great Place Lakes and Dales’ initiative delivering the
remaining programme and action plan to promote the development of sustainable, resilient
and creative communities which will in turn retain and attract younger people to South
Lakeland and Craven districts to influence, support and create our future economy.
Public Halls and use of community assets for the promotion of arts and culture
Prior to the Coronavirus outbreak the Council had been supporting cultural and local events
for communities through the use of public halls. Regular events held in SLDC halls included:










Weekly coffee mornings
Wedding Ceremonies
Training sessions
Multi-agency meetings
Fitness Classes
Language Classes
Financial support through the Eden and South Lakes Credit Union
Theatre performances
Magistrates and Civil Courts

Page 119

All Council owned properties were closed during the national lockdowns and events that were
due to the take place were cancelled in accordance with Government guidance. All public
spaces within the Council owned building had social distancing measures and sanitation
points installed to minimise the spread of Coronavirus.
The refurbishment works to Kendal Town Hall and South Lakeland House were delayed
following the outbreak of Coronavirus, however in accordance with guidelines works
commenced from August 2020. The contractors are aware of the social distancing and
sanitation requirements and are working in line with Government guidelines. The
refurbishments will alter the access and usage of the Town Hall and South Lakeland House
for visitors and employees, as well as providing flexible business space.
Heritage, Events and Heritage Listed Buildings and built environment
The Burton-in-Kendal Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas (PSiCA) is a three year
programme, jointly funded by the District Council and Burton-in-KendaI Parish Council, with
matching funding from Historic England. The opportunity to develop a PSiCA arose when
Historic England added the Burton in Kendal Conservation Area to its national ‘Heritage at
Risk’ register. The aim of the PSiCA scheme is to see the Conservation Area removed from
the register following a 3 to 4 year programme of public realm improvements, grant-aided
repairs to historic buildings and wider management and planning guidance. Progress to date
includes:
•

•

•

A major public realm improvement scheme for the Square is now complete,
excepting some remediation work. The scheme greatly enhances this important
public space at the heart of the village conservation area and is helping alleviate
local surface water flooding. A formal opening is planned in spring 2021. Local
residents hosted VE day celebrations in the Square in period dress on 8 May.
Grant-aided repair work to the former Royal Hotel building commenced in
September 2020. The recent completion of the Square has sparked renewed
interest in the take up of repair grants from owners of listed buildings in the vicinity
of the Square.
A draft Conservation Area Management Plan has been completed and a Village
Design Statement is also nearing completion.

The Council also assisted Cartmel Village Society in preparing a draft Conservation Area
Management Plan.
It is proposed to progress consultation and adoption of the above Conservation Area
Management Plans and Village Design Statement as Supplementary Planning Documents
when Conservation Specialist advice is available to the Council.
Leisure and Recreation
The Council has worked in partnership with GLL to provide local leisure opportunities such as
exercise classes, pool facilities, gym and indoor sports facilities for communities at locations
in Kendal, Ulverston and Windermere in 2020/21, restrictions permitting.
A feasibility study for Ulverston leisure Centre is ongoing and the Council is continuing to liaise
with user groups and GSK regarding future proposals. Upon completion of the feasibility study
a formal consultation period will be held with user groups and the Town Council and once this
has been concluded a report will be considered at Cabinet to formally agree the facilities mix.
As reported in the Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder Report, Kendal Leisure Centre
hosted a temporary recovery centre and a drive thru testing facility during Coronavirus.

Page 120

Following the reductions of Coronavirus cases the recovery centre was decommissioned. GLL
are making provisions in line with strict government guidance to safety reopen leisure facilities
from November. The materials used for the recovery centre bays were reused to ensure social
distancing in the gym.
Licensing and Gambling
As part of the Customer Connect Programme in the future customers will have the by
opportunity to apply or renew a licence online.
Virtual Licensing Committee meetings have been held throughout the Coronavirus pandemic
to ensure the responsibility for licensing functions in respect of the Licensing Act 2003.
Cross Authority Economic initiatives
SLDC has been continuing to work in partnership with Lancaster City Council and Barrow
Borough Council to increase the economic prosperity of the Lancaster and South Cumbria
region. The three councils are working closely to develop a more sustainable economy and
jointly promote the area as a place to live, study and build a career. There remain ambitious
plans to seek national investment for various strategically important projects to support
economic vibrancy around Morecambe Bay. The partnership has been strengthened through
the Councils submission of The Bay proposal to Government following their request for Local
Government Reorganisation bids.
The partnership has resulted in the creation of a joint committee known as the Lancaster and
South Cumbria Prosperity Board. The joint committee provides political and democratic
accountability and reinforces the sense of developing a functional economic area. The meeting
minutes can be found on the Councils website.
During the Covid pandemic work has continued to refine and focus proposals for a growth
deal type programme to attract significant public investment to transformational growth
projects and importantly drive Coronavirus resilience to the region’s economy. A Morecambe
Bay Prosperity & Resilience Strategy has been produced identifying key priorities and
opportunities for the area.
There is also collaborative working on another Cross-Bay initiative known as the Cultural
Compact, with the area being selected as one of only two “rural” areas in the UK by Arts
Council England for an innovative new approach to releasing untapped economic potential
through investment in culture.

Page 121

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Finance and Resources Portfolio
Portfolio:

Cllr Andrew Jarvis

The development of strategic policy to ensure that the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, i.e.
Value for Money.
To ensure that the Council has proper arrangements in place for securing financial resilience
and the management of the Council’s resources.
Policies, Plans and Strategies
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Budget Framework
 Procurement Strategy
 Discretionary Benefit and Rate Relief Policies
 Council Tax Reduction Scheme
 Asset Management Strategy
 Commercial Strategy
Key Areas













Strategic Finance
Budget monitoring
Treasury Management
Capital Programme
Value for money
Procurement
Savings programme
Payments and Sundry Debtors
Insurance and risk management
Benefits Administration
Council Tax Collection
Resource Management

Page 123

Strategic Finance
External auditors reviewed the Councils Statement of Accounts and provided an unqualified
opinion on the Council’s financial statements on 30 July 2019 following changes to the
statutory deadlines due to Covid-19. The External Auditors were satisfied that the Council
had proper arrangements in place to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources during the year ended 31 March 2020. The auditor reported that “the Council
presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with the national deadline, and
provided a good set of working papers to support them. The finance team responded
promptly and efficiently to our queries during the course of the audit.”
As reported in the Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio, due to Coronavirus SLDC has
distributing a variety of business support grants across the District. It launched an online
application process for businesses to submit an application which were validated in
accordance with the guideline from Central Government.
Budgets and Budget monitoring
The five year budget for 2020/21 to 2024/25 was set at Council in February 2020. The
Council is expected to deliver the priorities set out within the Council Plan therefore the five
year budget ensures the Councils resources allow these priorities to be achieved.
The options to deliver a balanced 2021/20 budget were presented through the Budget Book
at Council in February 2020. The report set out the actions required to enable the Council’s
priorities will be delivered and had been developed within the context of the Medium Term
Financial Plan.
The delivery of the Customer Connect Programme has substantially reduced future budget
deficits, however savings options still need to be developed to mitigate the expected further
funding reductions from April 2021. The financial model assumes the overall funding from
Government through general grants or retained business rates will continue to decline by the
same rate as has been seen during the current multi-year settlement excluding one-off
adjustments such as the negative Revenue Support Grant.
The delays in issuing a new Local Government Financial Settlement, the government have
rolled over funding from 2019/20 to 2020/21. This left the Council in a comparatively strong
position, as savings have been put in place and now we get the benefit of these before falls
in income occur. It permitted a balanced budget for 2020/21, while at the same time
undertaking measures to protect key priorities and our future financial position. However, in
light of the financial impacts of Coronavirus the delays are expected to be pushed back
further however the Council will face financial uncertainty. In the report presented to Cabinet
in May, it was estimated that the Council will face an additional deficit of around £2m by the
end of Quarter 1, despite additional government support. Thanks to our strong reserves
position we are able to bear this cost at present – and budgets were adjusted in June to
reflect this cost. The Council have been subsequently updated on how costs are developing
– these are currently looking slightly better due to car park income holding up during the
summer, and additional government support. Consequently, we are currently expecting
Covid to cost the Council around £1.5m this year – but with significant costs continuing into
future years.
The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), which includes the Council’s Financial Strategy,
looks at projected income and expenditure over the next five years. The Council is currently
facing considerable challenges in setting balanced budgets in the next few years – firstly due
to the ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, and due to the uncertainty of the scale of
the impact of Government’s changes to local authority financing.

Page 124

Treasury Management
The Treasury Management Framework strategy ensures that the Council have robust
arrangements for potential future investing and borrowing where appropriate and affordable.
The strategy includes the Capital Strategy to clearly link a Council’s spending and financing
plans for the medium/long term in line with the 2020/21 budget. Finance staff will apply the
investment strategy when making decisions on where, and for how long, investments are
placed.
Capital Programme
The MTFP includes the Capital Strategy which sets out the sources of funding of capital
expenditure, any restrictions on how that funding should be applied and the process for
considering new bids for the capital programme. The Property and Land Management
Strategy informed the long-term requirements and phasing for capital expenditure based on
input from Lambert Smith Hampton (LSH).
The budgets agreed in February, with subsequent amendments, outlined a capital
programme with investments of around £22m this financial year. Although good progress is
being made one South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall project, many other projects have
been delayed by the pandemic. Consequently, by the end of Q2 only £4m of spend had
been made or committed. Subsequently the timing of all major projects has been reviewed,
and Cabinet agreed the re-profiling of around £10m of spend in their November meeting.
Procurement and Value for Money
The Sustainable Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2020/21 sets the framework for the
Council to purchase goods, services, and works to deliver value for money and to meet the
needs of local citizens linking to the draft commissioning framework. An updated
Commissioning Strategy is to be brought to the July Council
The 2020/21 procurement schedule contains 109 procurement projects. Should a
procurement process present as over budget then approval will sought in accordance with
the Financial Procedure Rules.
Current procurements include the Kendal markets, Energy Saving Enhancements, Grange
Lido and Playground Improvements. It is likely that the budget pressures faced from Covid19 may require the Council to re-evaluate the projects currently listed.
Savings programme
The Council is heavily focused on achieving savings, primarily through efficiencies. During
the budget and planning process there was an emphasis on ensuring resources are directed
to priority areas in line with the Council Plan, with service efficiencies monitored and
reviewed highlighting where further savings can be made. The introduction of a
commissioning framework and a Commercial Strategy helps balance service demand and
income generation.
The Customer Connect programme had delivered savings of £740k in 2019/20 and then ongoing revenue savings, initially of £1.55m per year. There are also likely to be indirect
savings as a result of new ways of working which have not yet been identified.

Page 125

Insurance and risk management
The Council has a Strategic Risk Register, which is reviewed by Audit Committee, and
describes how the Council identifies and manages operational and strategic level risks both
above and below the line of risk tolerance. The Portfolio Holder with responsibility for risk
management and the Chief Executive jointly have overall responsibility for risk management
throughout the Council.
Corporate Management Team reviews the risks along with corporate plan performance on a
quarterly basis which are included in quarterly performance reports to Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and Cabinet.
Currently there are a total of 23 risks included on the risk register with 11strategic risks
above the level of tolerance however, this significant change is due to the pressures brought
about by Covid-19. The Council has undertaken a review the risks appropriately and identify
how the virus will impact on the economy, environment health and financial status of the
Council.
Where appropriate the Council arranges insurance to mitigate the financial impact of risks.
The insurance cover and administration are set out in the Finance Procedure Rules within
the Constitution.
Benefits Administration
There has been a significant increase in workload from the start of the financial year, mainly
as a result of Covid 19 consequences for both individuals and families within the district.
Compared with the same period in 2019, total workload has increased by 40%, and
Universal Credit related workload by 56%, attributable to the continuing increase in Universal
Credit claimants in South Lakeland. Despite, significant increase in activity, the Benefits
Team have continued to maintain a high level of administration in new claims and changes
in circumstances for both housing benefit and council tax reduction being processed within
the target times contained in previous service plans, in addition to providing support with the
Test and Trace Self Isolation Payment Scheme. Additional temporary support continues to
be in place to meet the increased demand and to ensure that residents receive the support
that they require in a timely manner.
The whole district now falls under Universal Credit full service. As a result of this there has
been a reduction in the number of new claims made for Housing Benefit (as all new working
age claimants, with exemptions, are required to claim Universal Credit for the housing
element, which replaces Housing Benefit). There are currently 2672 live Housing Benefit
claims. The number of Council Tax Reduction claims have increased to 4892. 56% of
Council Tax Reduction claims relate to working age claimants, and the remaining 44% to
Pensionable age claimants. The increased number of residents in receipt of Universal
Credit over the last 9 months in South Lakeland is attributable to the overall increase in
caseload. The recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments was halted during the height of
the pandemic, although recovery from ongoing benefit entitlement continued. The team has
recommenced recovery, and arrangements are being made with customers to repay
outstanding debts, whilst applying sensitivity to individual financial circumstances
Throughout 2020 the council has continued to work in close partnership with the Department
of Work and Pensions (DWP), Citizens Advice and other partner organisations to ensure that
provision is in place to provide additional, support, assistance and advice to those residents
who need it. The Council continues to strive to ensure that it maximises benefit entitlement
through Council Tax Reduction and will continue to provide additional support to the most

Page 126

vulnerable residents, particularly as the impact on the economy of the Covid-19 pandemic
continues to be felt.
As part of the measures of assistance in relation to Covid-19, the Government announced
additional support to all those in receipt of council tax reduction support. The Council used
its emergency delegation powers to introduce a Council Tax Discretionary Relief Scheme.
The Council recognises that it must be able to respond to the needs of the communities.
The Government’s expectation was that billing authorities would provide a minimum
reduction of £150 on their annual council tax bill to working age recipients of the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme during 2020/2021. Based on the funding provided and the current and
estimated case load for the remainder of this financial year, the Council’s scheme approved
and increased the reduction to £300. The relief has now been awarded to all existing
claimants, and will be applied to any new working age recipients until the end of the financial
year.
Council Tax/NDR Collection
At Council in February 2020 a 2% Council Tax increase was approved which was consistent
with expectations from Central Government set out within the final financial settlement for
2020/21.
The Council has run the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme which reduces the amount of
Council Tax paid by the most vulnerable people in South Lakeland since 2013. In February
2020 the Council agreed the continuation of this scheme to support eligible residents on low
incomes. The scheme will continue to support the Council’s commitment to alleviate poverty.
The number claiming against this scheme has increased substantially due to Covid. Since
January 2020 there had been an increase of 241 claimants which equates to 5%. With
additional grant funding we have been able to further reduce the Council Tax being paid by
those who qualify for the scheme by up to £300 this year.
The collection of both Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates are running well behind
previous years (as outlined in the Q2 Financial Update). This is largely due to Covid, and
the need for the Council to stop recovery activity as the Courts were closed. The Council
has recently restarted persuing outstanding debts, and has recently appointed an additional
specialist to lead the work in this area.
Resource Management
The delivery of the Council Plan require continuous balancing of competing demands for
resources. The Council has a number of policies and strategies which have guided resource
allocation including:




People: Workforce Plan
Money: Medium Term Financial Plan and Procurement and Commissioning Strategy
Assets: Property and Land Management Strategy, Parks and Open Spaces Strategy

These strategies have been reviewed and were used to assist the leadership team and
Cabinet in preparing the 2021/22 Council Plan.
Asset Management
The strategic land and property management board was set up to provide clear direction on
the Councils land and building portfolio and drive a 10 year programme.

Page 127

All future investments will be focussed on where it meets council priorities, service
requirements/ efficiency or maintenance requirements. The most recent meeting sought
approval from the board for the next round of Capital and Revenue Bids in line with the asset
strategy. The schemes put forward were considered at Council in February 2020.
Grange Lido ‘Phase 1 Light touch refurbishment’ was submitted for planning approval in
February 2020. SLDC officers have been working hard to ensure that the scheme is
supported by those who may wish to see a pool in the future. The scheme has been
designed to accommodate a pool in the future and the design is as such that there will be
minimal abortive works if the necessary Capital funds can be raised to introduce a pool on
the back of a viable business case. The application was approved by Planning Committee.
Work is also ongoing to finish the design for the Grange Promenade. A public consultation
event was held in early March 2020 as well as a 3 week online consultation to update
Grange residents and businesses of the works planned for the Promenade and Lido.
Tenders for work have recently been received.
A number of feasibility studies are ongoing including looking at the potential use for Lowther
Street, options to date include a charitable hub, residential or further office accommodation.
A mini masterplan for Bowness is to be undertaken to ensure we make the most out of our
assets, land from Ferry Nab to Millerground is being considered and the Council are looking
at all options in consultation with key stakeholders. The Assets team are also involved within
the One Public Estate programme where public sector colleagues are working together to
ensure best practice and efficiency across all sectors.

Page 128

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience
Portfolio:

Cllr Suzie Pye

To work with other tiers of government, community groups and other relevant partners to
enhance the health and wellbeing of residents.
Alleviate the harmful effects of poverty in the District, looking at issues to address those who
are disadvantaged.
Working with key partners with regards to welfare reforms.
Nominated representative on the Health and Wellbeing forum as appropriate.
The relationship of the Council with its citizens; civic participation and the Council plan
objectives around leisure, health and wellbeing and working with communities.
Working with key partners with regards to public health and community safety.
Polices, plans and strategies
 Community Strategy
 Health and Wellbeing Strategy
 Cumbria Joint Public Health Strategy
 Community Safety Plan
Key Areas








Public Health
Community Development
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy
Voluntary Sector in relation to Public Health and Wellbeing Sector
Health and Safety
Poverty alleviation
Young People/ projects

Page 129

Public Health
Cumbria County Council created the Cumbria Public Health Strategy to encourage
collaborative working themes to improve resident’s health across Cumbria. The document
aims focuses on the wider determinants of health.
As part of our policy framework, South Lakeland District Council has adopted this strategy
with the aims of improving health outcomes.
Throughout 2019/20 the Council has been continuing to work with partners to influence the
implementation of the strategy. The five strategic priorities have been confirmed as:





Social Prescribing
Planning
Transport and connectivity (eg. active transport, rurality and access to services)
Food and the healthy weight agenda
Poverty

As a result of Coronavirus many residents are working from home, home-schooling children
or have been feeling worried or anxious. SLDC backed the ‘Every Mind Matters’ national
campaign which encouraged residents to look after their mental and physical health to
prevent issues becoming more serious. The campaign includes helpful tips and advice to
help residents take care of their mental wellbeing. The Council is continuing to promote
support platforms and materials through South Lakeland News, Newspaper and Social
Media.
During the first lockdown the Council funded the distribution of 16,000 self-help guides
produced by Every Life Matters to households and organisations within South Lakeland. The
‘Wellbeing and Mental Health during Covid-19’ guide included useful advice on how to look
after your mental health during the pandemic. Locality Officers had also distributed posters
to key services areas regarding male suicide and the support available.
In order to protect the Health of our residents and visitors the Council has reinforced safety
messages within communities and across communication platforms reminding people of the
importance of wearing a face mask and social distancing to help slow the spread of
Coronavirus.
The Council’s Environmental Health Officers have been closely working on the Governments
Track and Trace scheme to help keep residents safe and reduce the spread of Coronavirus.
The Council has since set up online application form for the Test and Trace Support Scheme
where those on low incomes who are required to self-isolate could be eligible to receive a
£500 payment. The Test and Trace Support Payment is available to those receiving
Universal Credit; Working Tax Credit; Income-Based Employment and Support Allowance;
Income-Based Jobseeker’s Allowance; Income Support; Housing Benefit; and/or Pension
Credit
Community Development and Voluntary Sector in relation to Public Health and
Wellbeing Sector
In partnership with the Customer, Commercial Services and People portfolio the Council has
worked with a variety of community groups across the district to improve local play areas.
The improvement of parks such as Abbot Hall, Maryfell, Rayrigg Meadow and Millerground
are encouraging young families to utilise the facilities available which in turn supports their
health and wellbeing.

Page 130

The Council granted £3,000 towards securing a vital role at Springfield Domestic Abuse
Support in South Lakeland. The grant enabled the charity to access match funding,
safeguarding the role for another 12 months and increasing it to 24 hours per week. With the
cases of domestic abuse rising across the UK the charity has played a vital role in
supporting individuals,
Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, SLDC has been part of the Cumbria Local Resilience
Fourm to establish support through the emergency support helpline for people at high risk
and those who do not have support available from family or friends. The helpline has
coordinated the supply of essential food, medicines and supplies. The Community
Resilience group is working closely with community volunteer groups to match requests with
local support networks. A total of 99 volunteer groups were established across Cumbria.
Cumbria has seen widespread community and voluntary sector support for the response to
COVID-19 and informal support, including neighbourhood WhatsApp groups and community
Facebook groups, alongside a commitment from existing community emergency planning
groups, local churches and faith groups and formal voluntary sector organisations who are
working with the county council and partners including District Councils and NHS.
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy and Young People/ Projects
The South Cumbria Community Partnership (CSP) plan 2019/20 has utilised effective
collaboration between South Lakeland District Council, Barrow Borough Council, Cumbria
Constabulary and partner agencies including Safer Cumbria. The CSP had a total of
£20,000 for supporting projects which have been aiming to prevent crime falling under one of
the priorities below.
The five priorities for 2019/20 ware:
 Protecting vulnerable adults
 Domestic abuse
 Substance abuse and drug supply
 Violent crime
 Anti-social behaviour
As Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder, I was appointed as the CSP
Chair in January 2020, with the Vice Chair Superintendent Sarah Jackson.
The CSP has been working with partners to tackle the above priorities whilst also
recognising the pressures arising from Covid-19.
This year the CSP has awarded funding to:
•

CADAS to provide online drug/alcohol awareness training for Local Focus hub
members and other professionals

•

The Well to train behaviour change companions who will be initially allocated to
work in Barrow and in Kendal supporting those in Housing first (Complex need,
very early stages of change and/or stability generally considered high risk) and
transitional recovery housing (starting to stabilise – risk of reoffending, chaotic
substance misuse and not ready for abstinence based housing).

Page 131

•

Neighbourhood Watch to provide Video Doorbells for domestic abuse victims.
The Video Doorbells record images of anyone approaching the Victims home and
can be viewed on their mobile phones from anywhere around the world. Evidence
can also be secured from footage that supports victims on occasions when it’s
their word against the aggressor.

In November 2020, Cabinet approved to adopt a new Safeguarding Children Policy to
facilitate robust and effective procedures and training to help Officer and Members ensure
young people are safeguarded and their needs understood and the Councils responsibilities
for safeguarding are addressed effectively.
The Modern Slavery statement was also adopted by Cabinet in November 2020 constituting
our actions to ensure there is no slavery of human trafficking in the Councils business or
supply chain.
An online training programme will be delivered for employee and Councillors highlighting
safeguarding best practise and raising awareness of the corporate parenting role and the
role SLDC and Councillors can play.
Health and Safety
The Council has a duty to protect the health and safety of the residents and visitors within
South Lakeland where possible. The Food and Safety officers within the council are
responsible for health and safety in:








Offices
Shops
Hotels
Guest houses
Catering services
Care homes
Warehouses

The Council has inspected workplaces to ensure they are obeying the law and help
employers to understand the importance of health and safety and investigate any accidents
or complaints reported.
The Council has been very successful in supporting the Health and Safety Executive through
an enforcement role by conducting inspections to ensure that businesses are adhering to
regulations to prevent the spread of Coronavirus as well offering guidance and advice.
Poverty alleviation
Since the Council formed the Building Financial Resilience (BFR) Group it has been working
with partners to promote ways to make money go further and reduce financial hardship
across communities. The group has been making excellent progress in addressing the
actions identified within the action plan.
The action plan has been broken down into 5 different task group areas which focus on
actions under different aims:-

Page 132







Increase partner collaboration and publicise support available to the public
Build local wealth
Increase access to skills and education
Reduce fuel poverty
Food waste and re-distribution

With the support from partners, SLDC have created a successful BFR webpage which
includes support mechanisms for members of the public to access relating to money, food,
housing, wellbeing and skills and information. Click here to view the page.
In January 2020 the BFR group donated 100 copies of the Tin Can Cook Book to financial
hardship groups and foodbanks across the district. The cook book is designed to create
cheap, easy meals using tinned goods.
In January 2020 the Council donated £1,500 from the Poverty Alleviation fund towards a
project based in Staveley to help disadvantaged children take part in extracurricular activities
that they may not otherwise have the opportunity to experience. This scheme allows children
who normally would miss out on certain extracurricular activities due to lack of finances to at
least experience some lessons or to set them up with a musical instrument or piece of kit to
help start them off.
In February 2020 SLDC supported a pilot scheme throughout February Half Term to provide
children eligible for Free School Meals with activity days and lunch clubs. The scheme was
undertaken in partnership with People’s Café and GLL (Kendal Leisure Centre) and included
children from across 5 primary schools within Kendal.
During the first lockdown when the majority of schools were closed due to Coronavirus the
Council eased the worry of period poverty for girls and young women across the district by
distributing free sanitary products to 30 pick-up points across the District, which would have
previously been available through at secondary schools. These products have remained
available as various locations across the district throughout the year
The Department of Work and Pensions have reported an increase in the number of cases
seeking benefit support as a result of Coronavirus, there has been increased number of
people claiming benefit support across the United Kingdom. Citizens Advice has been
offering debt advice and support.
In July 2020 the Council set up a hardship relief fund which those struggling to pay their
Council tax could apply for. This scheme was designed to support those economically
vulnerable residents, recognising the toll that financial troubles can take people’s wellbeing.
The scheme could offer spreading the cost of payments or seeking hardship relief to reduce
bills in the short term.
Age UK have reported an increase in reports of anxiety and loneliness however they are
managing these report through offering helpful support networks and launched a #ok2ask
campaign.
Food Bank across the District have reported increased usage and on average were collating
180 parcels per week during the first lockdown. The Community Resilience Group is closely
monitoring this should food donations decrease.
As part of the South Lakeland Community Resilience Group the Council supported local food
initiatives to ensure that all pupils entitled to free school meals continued to receive then
during the October half term holiday week.

Page 133

On 6th October 2020 in South Lakeland’s Full Council meeting a motion to declare a Poverty
Emergency, signed by myself, was carried: “I move that our Council pass a motion declaring
a Poverty Emergency, and explore the feasibility of setting up a Poverty Truth Commission,
working closely with our Morecambe Bay partners. This will aid our aim of tackling the root
causes of poverty and inequalities, which is critical to the success of our Council Plan.”
We are now working on a strategy and action plan to step up our own efforts, and to further
investigate scope for working with partners and those in poverty, to tackle financial hardship
in South Lakeland.

Page 134

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Housing and Innovation Portfolio
Portfolio:

Cllr Jonathan Brook

The development and implementation of the Council Plan.
The Council Plan objectives in relation to improved customer engagement and
communication implementing of the Local Plan housing objectives.
Working in partnership to improve the standard, availability and affordability of housing in the
District to meet local needs, championing these issues at national, regional and sub-regional
level.
Looking at innovative ways of working.
To support the Leader of the Council and to deputise in his/her absence.
Policies, Plans and Strategies
 Council Plan
 Local Plan (including Development Management Policies)
 Housing Strategy and Policy (including Choice Based Lettings Allocation Policy)
 IT/Information/E Government Strategy
Key Areas







Council Planning
Customer Connect Programme (Strategy)
Development Management and Building Control
Housing Options and Homelessness Prevention
IT Services
Strategic Housing and delivery (including Housing Enabling and Housing Grants)

Page 135

Council Planning
In 2020 a virtual review of the 2021 Council Plan was undertaken which provided steer on
the priorities and impact measures to be emphasized within the Council Plan whilst aligning
the medium term financial plan against the priorities.
The Council Plan 2021 will be considered at Council in February 2021 alongside the budget.
The plan will set out the Council’s long term vision and direction. It provides a consistent
basis for the council’s plans, strategies, projects and decisions such as how the
transformational Customer Connect Programme is implemented.
The plan will enable council activity to be focused on strategic objectives and provide a
consistent basis for the Prioritisation of resources, commissioning and performance
management frameworks and the roll-out of the new ways of working under Customer
Connect.
The plan strengthens the Council’s commitment to responding to climate change and
biodiversity whilst maintaining a strong recognition that the Council will work with partners to
secure investment, growth and transport infrastructure that will deliver jobs and empower
communities.
Customer Connect Programme (Strategy)
The delivery of the Customer Connect Programme has been ongoing since September
2016. The programme is divided into three main elements; Digital, People and Place. The
people element is now being led by the Customer, Commercial Services and People
Portfolio Holder and the Places element is being led by the Finance and Assets Portfolio
Holder.
In July 2020 the Customer Connect Steering Group agreed new governance arrangements
following the implementation of the new operating model and the realisation of the salary
savings outlined in the Customer Connect business case. Whilst it is recognised that there is
outstanding programme activity, which was paused due to the COVID_19 pandemic and
future innovation activity to be delivered, the mechanisms of a full transformation programme
are no longer required by the organisation. The move to the new governance arrangements
ensure that continuous improvement is a focus for the organisation.
The Innovation and Improvement Group has been established and has oversight of the
remaining programme activity and future innovation activity. Work streams for change and
transition, communications and digital will operate under this group to deliver the remaining
programme activity. The group will be responsible for providing assurance to work stream
leads and will be a forum for resolving risks and overseeing the spend on the remaining
Customer Connect Programme budget. The Group will remain subject to Cabinet member
oversight.
In relation to digital development the customer account functionality is now live with twenty
one high volume, low complexity forms available for customers and customer service
advisors to use. This group of forms includes the minimum viable product and additional
environmental, locality and street scene forms as well ask the online grant applications for
business affected by COVID-19. They allow the customer to access the service online 24/7.
The account functionality will be integrated with the Capita Revenues and Benefit product
early next year and the ability to make online payments will be introduced. The digital
development of forms will continue as we redesign processes that require the customer to
report an issue or apply for a service.

Page 136

IT Services
The IT service has been focused on the delivery of Customer Connect through the
preparation of the Enterprise Digital Platform to support single customer records and online
accounts. Internal testing of the platform has been undertaken.
The Council is continuing to move forward in preparing the systems to support a launch and
we are working to configure the platform to support new processes. Consultants from Ignite,
Internal Business Analysts and staff from the shared ICT Service are working closely on
achieving this.
Other work that has been completed to develop the technology and data to support the
requirements of Customer Connect includes:








Data Cleansing of Geographical Information to support more efficient ways of
working across the council where Geographic Information System (GIS) data is used
A new data management system has been produced to support a much improved
operation specifically for Waste Collection and Street Scene. This will also facilitate
enhanced information being presented to customers in relation to bin and recycling
collection dates
Procurement has started to procure a new Planning, Building Control and Land
Charges System. It will also cover other areas such as Street Naming and
numbering, Planning Policy and Community Infrastructure Levey
We have installed a new telephone call handling system to support new ways of
dealing with phone calls from customers
We are continuing to make progress with the implementation of the Revenues and
Benefits system, Capita have made enhancements to the way their system operates
to help this.

All of the above is being done for both Eden and SLDC as part for the shared ICT service.
Outside of the Customer Connect programme, the Shared ICT Service has maintained a full
Business as Usual operation, some examples of this work includes:



Upgrading of the SLDC Cash receipting/Payment system has been completed
We are in the process of replacing the technology in the Data Centers of both Eden
and SLDC, this will improve performance by replacing aging equipment. This is part
of the rolling IT replacement programme.

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus the Council has had to quickly introduce new
innovative ways to support those working from home and the ability to host virtual formal and
informal meetings. The IT Team have worked quickly and highly effectively to install the
Microsoft Teams Platform for all employees and Councillors across SLDC to allow the
organisation to continue conducting business as usual and keep in regular contact whilst
adhering to Government Guidelines.

Page 137

Development Management and Building Control
Significant progress had been made moving through our enforcement enquiries,
demonstrating increased efficiency for dealing with enforcement issues that arise. The
number of cases closed in February 2020 was 21 and the number of cases on hand at 1
February 2020 was 167 which had reduced from 181 in January 2020. During the Covid-19
pandemic lockdown Enforcement Officers in accordance with government guidelines,
enforcement officers were not permitted to enter any premises. Therefore the Council was
able to utilize mapping platforms which provide sufficient evidence through dated satellite
imagery allowing Officers to look back on how developments have progressed.
During the Covid-10 pandemic the Council was able to continue to determine planning
applications through the virtual planning committee process.
Housing Options and Homelessness Prevention
In 2017 the Council introduced a target measure of the number of homelessness households
living in temporary accommodation will be no more than 20 at a time. The highest number of
households in Temporary Accommodation at any one time was 39 which was in quarter in
2020/21 the figure had reduced to 31 in Quarter 2 2020/21.
In order to support the reduction of the homelessness households living in temporary
accommodation, the Council introduced the Homelessness Strategy 2019/2024 which
identities four key priorities:





Homeless prevention
Increasing the supply of settled accommodation
Ensuring appropriate support is available
Tackling complex needs

The council is continuing to work towards achieving the strategy’s actions:







Working with private rented sector to secure accommodation for people in housing
need/at risk of homelessness;
Bringing empty homes back into use by implementing the Empty Homes Strategy
and Action Plan;
Working with public sector bodies and churches to identify any potential sites that
could be used for affordable or supported housing;
Using housing renovation grants to enable potential new schemes suitable for
tenants with specific needs;
Working with providers to enable a shared housing scheme in South Lakeland for
young people;
Working with housing associations to develop new affordable homes with the help of
low-cost loans.

Following a successful County wide bid for funding from the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to tackle rough sleeping, South Lakeland
receiving funding for:

Page 138








A part time Private Rented Sector Officer who is identifying landlords and properties
that could offer sustainable move on accommodation for rough sleepers, those at risk
of rough sleeper or as move on from the Hostel.
A part time Rough Sleeping coordinator who will be looking at levels and causes of
rough sleeping and developing positive pathways for referrals into other services as
well as developing a strategic approach through the development of a County wide
Rough Sleeping Strategy.
A part time Support Work who will support residents in maintaining their tenancies.
All of these posts show a commitment to working in partnership with others across
the County. The Private Rented Sector Officer also works part time in Eden DC in the
same role, the Rough Sleeping coordinator whilst a County wide post will primarily be
looking at the distinct issues faced in South Lakeland and Barrow, and the hours for
the Support Worker post have been increased by Impact Housing who is employing
on behalf of the Authority.

Throughout 2019/20 the Council has been continuing to enable the reduction of empty
homes by 20% by 2025 through targeted interventions. In order to support this target the
Council is working on track to bring a minimum of 70 empty home back into use each year.
Since 2015 to 2020 the Council has brought 435 empty homes back into use throughout the
district.
During Coronavirus the Council has been supporting an increased number of households
presenting as homeless. In addition to the 18 rooms at Town View Hostel the Council
successfully secured additional accommodation:







14 places at a Bed and Breakfast in Windermere
12 South Lake Housing tenancies
6 HOME Group Properties
3 Holiday let
1 rent free 3 bed property
1 IMPACT property as a tenancy
12 spaces at a Bed and Breakfast in Kendal and Barrow

The Homelessness Team are continuing to work to identify suitable holiday let’s to enable
families to move out of Bed and Breakfasts accommodation.
SLDC were recently successful in securing a grant from MHCLG which will support our work
with the homeless during Covid-19. Cumbria County Council have also been awarded an
additional £30k for this work which will be split between the six districts.
The team have also be working to ensure appropriate health support is available for those in
temporary accommodation and to develop a more effective hospital discharge pathway.
Strategic Housing and delivery (including Housing Enabling and Housing Grants)
At Q2 2020/21 the Council had supported 523 affordable homes to rent since 2014. These
figures show that the Council is on target to deliver 1000 affordable homes to rent by 2025.
The Council supports the delivery of extra care housing and a new 104 unit scheme is
underway at a site in Oxenholme by Housing 21. This includes provision of 29 affordable
rented units and 43 shared ownership units.

Page 139

We have been continuing to work with partners such as Highways England, Cumbria LEP
and Housing Developers to enable the development of the Cross-a-moor roundabout.
Highways England are continuing to work up a design and land assembly.
Barrow Borough Council is continuing to lead on the Private Sector Stock Condition survey
which is being carried out using a new methodology by the Building Research
Establishment. Eden District Council and Cumbria County Council, SLDC jointly
commissioned this survey.
The £2.36 million Community Housing Fund was designed to help tackle the problem of high
levels of second home ownership. The funding was broken down into two available grants.



CLH Capacity Building Grant
CLH Scheme Grant

The fund is being used to enable the delivery of new community-led housing schemes.
Schemes supported by this funding are moving towards completion in Levens and
Windermere.
The Arnside and Silverdale Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Local Plan which was
adopted in March 2019 has received the Royal Town Planning Institute Award for Planning
Excellence, ahead of the Manchester Northern Gateway, Windermere Jetty, Preston Bus
Station and the Knutsford Neighbourhood Plan.
A project plan has been completed for delivery of the new local plan. The plan will now cover
the period up to 2040 and will be adopted in 2023. Consultant events were postponed due to
Coronavirus however will be rescheduled when safe to do so allowing for residents to
provide input in the major plan which will shape South Lakeland for the next 10 years and
beyond. The future plan will consider employment and housing needs for the district and
how its historic character and landscapes can be protected. The Coronavirus pandemic has
pushed the Local Plans back by 3-4 months however the current proposal is for the draft
plan to be published in 2021.
The governance arrangements for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) are well advanced.
In total 765 applications have been submitted the Council continues to be the only District
Council within the County operating CIL. A total of £1.1m is now available to support
strategic projects and £200k has been paid to Parish and Town Council to support local
projects.
Cumbria County Council (CCC) has completed the Kendal major infrastructure study. The
Kendal Northern Relief Road has been identified as a potential improvement in the Transport
for the North – Strategic Transport Plan. Cumbria County Council are continuing to seek
funding opportunities and preparing an outline business case.

Page 140

South Lakeland District Council
Council
Tuesday, 15 December 2020

Promoting South Lakeland
Portfolio:

Cllr Giles Archibald

Working with partners and stakeholders in the public, private and voluntary sector, at
national, regional and sub-regional level. To act as an ambassador and advocate for the
Communities of South Lakeland.
To represent the Council on local and other strategic partnerships including nominated
representative on the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership as appropriate.
Delivery of the Council Plan objectives in collaboration with Portfolio Holders
Policies, Plans and Strategies





Communications Strategy
Emergency Plan
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy
Performance Management

Key Areas







Community strategy/area planning/development of recovery group
Emergency Planning
Local and Cumbria Wide Strategic Partnerships
Media and Communications
Performance Management
Relationships with Government Departments, and other relevant authorities at a subregional, regional and national level

Page 141

Community strategy/area planning/development of recovery group
Throughout the Covid – 19 pandemic the Council has been continuing to work in close
partnership with the Environment Agency (EA) to develop and implement Phase 1 of the
Kendal Flood Risk Management Scheme plans to adapt the local infrastructure in order to
protect communities against the risks associated with Climate Change. Phase 1 of the
scheme will deliver an appreciable net gain in biodiversity. Cabinet approved that more than
1,000 trees will be planted on council-owned land as part of the tree replacement required to
implement the Flood Management Scheme. The EA have committed to planting at least
1,058 replacement trees on Council owned land in compensation of around 106 trees to be
removed from Council land.
The EA have continued to undertake investigations in preparation for the works commencing
where possible during the Covid-19 pandemic whilst adhering to social distancing and
sanitation rules however, some works have been had to be postponed and therefore SLDC
and EA have successfully obtained approval MHCLG to extend the funding guidelines.
The Development Management Policies Development Plan Document (DPD) has been used
to support planning applications. The DPD includes guidance policies on flood risk
management, key infrastructure, open spaces, trees and landscaping and has shown to be
every effective.
With support from Officers the Health, Wellbeing and Financial Reslience Portfolio Holder
has been heavily involved in supporting the Community Resilence Group throughout the
Covid-19 pandemic.
Emergency Planning
South Lakeland District Council has been continuing to support Community Resilience
Groups to ensure at the earliest opportunity, they receive situational awareness information
where possible prior to the emergency. The Council played an active role as an emergency
coordinator in the most recent storms as well as throughout the Coronavirus pandemic and
has ensured sufficient sandbags are avaliable for resdients to collect at various sites across
the District in preparation of adverse weather events.
All Council Emergency Lead and support Officers have completed virtual training sessions to
cover the Covid guidance and arranagements for the running of Reception Centres.
The Council is continuing to support the work of the Resilience Unit to provide a online
facility called ‘Support Cumbria’. ‘Support Cumbria’ allows Community Resilience Groups to
upload their emergency plans and update their contact details. ‘Support Cumbria’ also allows
the public and organisations to register offers of support and goods - following a crisis the
public can be directed to this site to register their offers of support.
Business Continuity Planning was undertaken ahead of the EU-Exit date on 31 January in
preparation. Following this effective work South Lakeland District Council is as well prepared
as it can be for Brexit, recognising that there are enormous uncertainties about the timing,
scale and wider impacts of what will be an immense and unpredictable change for the
country as a whole and we will continue to work closely with partners to ensure that as far as
possible, adverse impacts on the district are minimised, and favourable impacts are
maximised. The Strategic Economic Recovery Group
Critical services across the Council were involved in identifying potential risks faced with
Brexit and potential mitigations where possible. Along with other Local Authorities the
Council had escalated potential issues to MHCLG. The Council has also been working

Page 142

closely with Cumbria Local Enterprises to share avalaible information with businesses
across the District regarding the changes the businesses will be required to undertake as a
result of Brexit. Guidance, advice and support can be found on the Invest In South Lakeland
website. The Strategic Economic Recovery Group that is led by the Economy, Culture and
Lesiure Portfolio Holder and it made up of representatives from a variety of sectors across
the District, recently met on 2 December to discus the issues business face as a result of
Brexit and the requirements and assessment forms they are required to complete by 1
January 2021.
Working with the relevant portfolio holders, the council has been monitoring very closely the
crisis relating to COVID -19. We have been liaising with the County Council, hospitals and
other appropriate public bodies to monitor the impact the virus has had on our communities.
The Council has responded to the pandemic through the creation of a Recovery Hospital at
Kendal Leisure Centre, the re-design of Town Centres to stop the spread of the virus, the
distribution of a variety of Business Support Grants, creation of a test centre at Kendal
Leisure Centre, additional support for the Community Resilience helpline and distribution of
food parcels and medication to vulnerable people across the District. The Council’s
Environmental Health Specialists have conducted the Test and Trace initiative as well
supporting the Health and Safety Executive by providing guidance for businesses to re-open
and operate in a safe manner.
The Council has kept District and Town and Parish Councillors regularly updated through
virtual meetings on its actions, ways in which they can support communities as well as
guidance for protecting their communities and reopening of valued assets.
During the first and second lockdowns and in line with Government Guidance the Council
closed its assets to the public and encouraged its staff to work from home where possible.
Those in roles which could not be undertaken from home were provided with the appropriate
PPE and sanitation facilities and worked in way that adhered to social distancing.
Appropriate protective measures have been installed that have allowed the Council to
reopen its facilities to the public.
Local and Cumbria Wide Strategic Partnerships
The Bay Prosperity and Resilience Strategy has been jointly developed through the
economic partnership between Barrow Borough Council, Lancaster City Council and South
Lakeland District Council.
The three councils wrote to Chancellor of the Exchequer Rishi Sunak to request a
commitment from Government to back the strategy, so the Bay area can deliver a 'huge
impact' on the performance of the Northern Powerhouse as the region's economies recover
from the impacts of the pandemic.
The partnership is seeking government funding over the next two years to jointly develop
plans and projects to further unlock the Bay area’s economic potential.
These plans would then provide the evidence for a significant bid to Government at a later
date, which, if successful, could provide millions of pounds of investment in crucial schemes
that deliver economic growth.
The strategy document describes how the councils’ economic collaboration is focused on
eight themes:

Page 143










Renewables and clean growth
Building on the area’s arts and cultural offer
Delivering new roles for ports at Barrow and Heysham
Retaining and attracting the best talent and diversity
Supporting high-efficiency ‘food-agri’ innovation
Enhancing digital connectivity
Growing healthy communities
Building resilient town centres

I have been attending the Cumbria Leaders Board (CLB) and Joint Districts Board to discuss
the key issues across Cumbria and seek partnership working to implement resolutions.
These meetings have become increasingly focused on strategic issues of importance to
residents of the county such as our response to Covid-19, climate change, racial
discrimination, housing, wellbeing and Local Government Reorganisation.
A Climate Change Sub Group as created which is looking at the actions Cumbria can take
as a whole to reduce the effects of climate change which the Cumbria Leaders have been
feeding into. The group sets out the carbon footprint of Cumbria, and various alternative
pathways to achieve the Cumbria Wide Target of achieveing net zero carbon target by 2037.
Following my appointment to the District Council Network Members Board, I have taken on
the role of ‘Lead’ of the ‘Better lives’ work stream. The group is focused on influencing
government policy around the plight of the vulnerable and in particular in relation to housing
matters. I have also been apppointed as a board member on the DCN Finance Workstream.
Throughout the Covid-19, we have been in regular contact with representatives from Town
and Parish Councils which have been very effective in information sharing, gathering local
intelligence and sharing innovative ideas to develop communities.
Media and Communications
Council has been keeping residents and stakeholders regularly updated of the council’s
activities through a range of communication channels i.e. Social Media, Newspaper, and
Website. Consistent communication messages through these channels have proven very
effective throughout the past year. For example regular messages have encouraged
residents to get involved in consultations and drop in sessions to help shape the future of
South Lakeland such as Climate Conversations, review of the Local Plan and the proposals
for Local Government Reorganisation.
The Communication Team have been using a variety of methods to regularly update
Residents, Partners and Councillors on how the Council is supporting communities through
Covid-19 and variety of support mechanisms available for businesses, families, communities
and vulnerable people. A specific webpage has been set up on the Councils website where
all advice and support relating to Coronavirus can be accessed easily.
(Click here). The Council has been supporting other partners in sharing key messages
throughout the Covid-19 pandemic such as Cumbria Constabulary and Lake District National
Park.
South Lakeland News is distributed to each household with South Lakeland, covering
around 52,000 properties. The most recent edition of South Lakeland News emphasied on
how we have worked with our communities during the pandemic.
The Communications Team have been heavily involved in circulating regular internal
messages relating to Customer Connect via the internal Intranet page, which is accessed by
employees and Councillors. These messages provided updates and information on the

Page 144

ongoing programme progress, the types of training available, support opportunities and
organisational role changes. Blogs are also uploaded by members of the Leadership Team
which explain about new team roles and responsibilities and their experiences. A Blog is
also circulated by Service Redesign to keep employees updated with progress and
implementation of new systems and ways of working. As leader of the Council I will be
undertaking a vitual staff message
As the Customer Connect Programme continues through the transition phase, customers
and Stakeholders will be keep updated through external communication channels on the
introduction of new areas which will enhance customer’s access to Council Services, i.e.
access to online payments, 24 hour access to services etc. Using online platforms the
Council was able to distribute all business grants using an online application. This ensured
that all elidgble businesses were able to receive their grant monies in a timely manner.
Performance Management
The Performance Management throughout 2020/21 has continued to focus on the Council
Plan measures of success to monitor progress towards the priorities for South Lakeland.
In Quarter2 the measures reported showed very good performance, demonstrating that
South Lakeland is a desirable place to live, work and explore. However in line with national
trends and the influence of Covid-19 has impacted on some areas.
As of July 2020 5,100 claims had been made to the Self Employment Income Support
Scheme which was the highest proporation in Cumbria. The most up to date figures will be
reported in Q3.
In South Lakeland 46,200 employments had been furloughed at some point up to July 2020.
The represented 42% of eligble employments, the highest of any local authority in the UK.
The most up to date figures will be reported in Q3.
The Council remains on target to deliver the 1,000 new affordable homes for rent by 2025
with a cumulative total of 523 since 01/01/14.
The number of long term empty homes has fluctuated throughout 2019/20 however, the
overall number from 1,079 in 2011 has reduced to 905 in 2019. Since 2015 the Council has
undertaken targeted interventions to bring 435 empty homes back into use. The figures for
2020 are not yet avaliable.
At Q1 2020/21 the figures of the number of households living in temporary accommodation
had increased to 39 however, these increasing figures are in line with national trends and
Covid-019 has been of influence. The main reasons for homelessness are: the reduced
benefits for people of age under 35 years; high rents and loss of private sector tenancy; lack
of affordable housing; family relationship breakdowns with young adults leaving home sometimes leaving home due to abuse.
For 2018/19 the total carbon emitted was 2,996 tonnes, which is a reduction of 166 tonnes
from 3,162 tonnes at 31 March 2015 including rolling out recycling collections across the
District. As well as reducing emissions the Council prevents 5,500 tonnes of emissions by
reusing, recycling and composting nearly all of the waste collected across the District.
Life Expectancy in South Lakeland is higher than the UK’s average at 84.7 years for women
(UK 83.2) and 81.9 years for men (UK 79.6).
For 2018/19 44.3% of waste has been recycled which is similar to 44.4% for 2017/18. Green
waste influences this result significantly. This is because green waste is produced in large

Page 145

quantities and contributes to significant tonnages compared to lighter plastic and cardboard.
If the Council were able to collect food waste this would make the target of 50% much more
achievable. However food processing plants are currently too distant from South Lakeland to
make this viable. Plastic and cardboard kerbside collection covers 100% of households.
The Council Plan performance measures are reported on a quarterly basis and all statistics
are readily available to view and compare via the Councils website. The next report focusing
of the figures for Quarter 3 will be considered at Cabinet 20 January 2021.
Relationships with Government Departments, and other relevant authorities at a subregional, regional and national level
In collaboration with other Cumbria District Leaders we wrote to the Leader of Cumbria
County Council to express our concerns surrounding the proposed reduction of supporting
people funding. Following this effective collaboration the County Council agreed to continue
the funding.
Local Authorities have been requested by Central Government to submitted proposals for
Local Government Reorgnaisation. South Lakeland District Council has been working
closely with Barrow Brough Council and Lancaster City Council to create a proposal for a
new unitary authority around Morecambe Bay.
A consultation was on the proposal was launched on 10 November following a formal
submission of an outline proposal to Government. The feedback obtained formed an
important pasrt of the detailed submission to Government on 9 December. Government are
now reviewing the proposals put forward and will decide which ones to take forward.
Proposals have also been submitted by the county councils in both Lancashire and Cumbria,
the latter based on the existing county boundary. In a letter to councils in Cumbria inviting
proposals for local government reorganisation, Government officials made it clear that they
will consider proposals from ‘one or more districts in a county and one or more relevant
adjoining areas’. A cross-boundary authority around the Bay fits this criteria.
The detailed case set out the degree of local support for the proposal following a period of
engagement with residents, businesses and key stakeholders, and examined how police, fire
and rescue services would be managed, opportunities for reform to health and care services
and included in-depth financial modelling.

Page 146

Council – 15 December 2020
URGENT DECISIONS
Reference
No.
CEX/79

Details of Decision
LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM (BUILDING A CASE
FOR CHANGE)
Decision

RESOLVED - That
(1)
approval be given for additional funding of
£65,000 from existing budgets for external
consultancy services and related costs related to
preparing a proposal for Government;

Page 147

(2)
contract procedural rules with regards to the
appointment of consultants be waived and the Chief
Executive be authorised to agree and appoint
consultants for the purpose of developing a
proposal for submission prior to the deadlines set
by the MHCLG; and

Decision
Taker
Cabinet

Date of
Decision
05/11/20

Reason for Urgency

Agreed by

Due to the tight timescales
involved.

In accordance with
paragraph 16(j) of the
Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules in the
Constitution, the Chairman
of the Council had been
consulted and had agreed
that the decision proposed
was reasonable in all the
circumstances and for it to
be treated as a matter of
urgency and that the call-in
process should be waived.

(3)
it be noted that further reports will be
brought back to Cabinet and Council to agree any
proposal prior to submission to Government.

Item No.12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 148

Public Document Pack

Item No.13a

South Lakeland District Council
Emergency Delegated Executive Decision

Test and Trace Support Payment Schemes
Date:12/10/2020

Reference: 010

Reason for emergency
The Chief Executive received emergency delegated executive decision making powers on the 25th
March 2020. It is considered that this decision is necessary or arises from the COVID 19 Global
pandemic emergency. The matter is urgent, necessary and expedient and is needed to protect the
Council’s interests.
The decision is required to be taken due to the deadline given by the government to launch the
Test and Trace Support Scheme which requires us to make the scheme live by the 12 th October
2020. This does not give time to go through the normal decision making process.
This is a Key Decision: YES

Portfolio:

Cllr Suzie Pye – Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Financial
Resilience

Decision Maker:

Lawrence Conway - Chief Executive

Report Author:

Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead – Specialist Services

Wards:

All Wards

Forward Plan:

Key Decision

1.0

Expected Outcome and Reasons for Proposed Decision

1.1

The decision will allow the Council to provide the test and trace support payments
and discretionary support payments in line with government expectations of a
scheme go live date of the 12 October 2020,

1.2

These payments are essential to support those receiving in work benefits to be able
to self isolate when instructed to by the NHS Test and Trace process and are not
able to have the absence covered by their employer.

2.0

Proposed Decision

2.1

It is recommended that the Chief Executive:(1) Approves the Test and Trace Support Payments Scheme attached at
Appendix 1 for implementation by the Council;
(2) Approves the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme attached at
Appendix 2 for implementation by the Council.
(3) Delegates to the Operational Lead for Specialist Services the authority to
make the final decision on the award of the test and trace standard payments
and discretionary payments in line with the allocated budget from Government
(4) Delegates any requests for reviews of decisions taken to the Director of
Customer and Commercial Services

Page 149

(5) Delegates any changes required to the Schemes (arising from Government
advice) to the Operational Lead Specialist Services in consultation with the
Lead Specialist for Finance and Section 151 Officer.
Review Date:

31 January 2021

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

From 28 September 2020, individuals are entitled to a Test and Trace Support
Payment or discretionary support payment of £500. This is to support people on
low incomes who are unable to work from home if they are told to self-isolate by
NHS Test and Trace and will lose income as a result.

3.2

These payments are designed to help ensure people who have tested positive for
COVID-19 and their close contacts self-isolate for the required period to stop the
onward spread of the virus. They are also designed to encourage individuals who
are eligible for this payment to get tested if they have symptoms. This is
important to help stop the transmission of COVID-19 and avoid further economic
and societal restrictions.

3.3

The scheme started from 28 September 2020, and local authorities are required
to have arrangements in place to administer payments by 12 October 2020.
Someone told to self-isolate on or after 28 September (but before the scheme is
operational in their local authority) will need to be able to make a backdated claim
for payment. The scheme will last until 31 January 2021.

3.4

Eligibility for a £500 Test and Trace Support Payment is restricted to people who:
-

-

3.5

have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive;
are employed or self-employed;
are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result; and
are currently receiving Universal Credit, Working Tax Credit, income-based
Employment and Support Allowance, income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance,
Income Support, Housing Benefit and/or Pension Credit.
Local authorities can make a £500 discretionary payment to individuals who:

-

-

-

have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive;
are employed or self-employed; and
are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result.
who are not currently receiving Universal Credit, Working Tax Credit, incomebased Employment and Support Allowance, income-based Jobseeker’s
Allowance, Income Support, Housing Benefit and/or Pension Credit; and
who are on low incomes and will face financial hardship as a result of not being
able to work while they are self-isolating.

Page 150

3.6

3.7

Local authorities can introduce additional criteria to determine eligibility for
discretionary payments in their area, as long as these operate in addition to,
rather than instead of, the criteria set out above. The criteria proposed are set
out in appendix 2.
For both the Test and Trace Support Payment and discretionary payments,
eligible individuals will receive their £500 payment on top of any benefits and
Statutory Sick Pay (SSP) that they currently receive.

3.8

Application for both schemes will be by way of an online form as required by the
government guidance, for those unable to fill the form out online, officers will be
able to do this on their behalf, taking the relevant details on the phone.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Given the limited timescales for the implementation as required by government and
they prescriptive nature of the schemes there has been limited capacity to consult
any more widely than that set out below

4.2

The Leader of the Council, portfolio holder for Health, Wellbeing and Financial
Resilience, section 151 officer and monitoring officer have been consulted on the
draft policies. Further the policies have been drafted based on best practice guided
by external expert consultancy support.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

This scheme is required by government and we have no alternative options.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

These policies will support the Council plan priorities of “Reduce Disadvantage” and
“Deliver inclusive growth so everyone can achieve their potential”

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The scheme is fully funded by government including the administration of the
scheme. Therefore there is a neutral financial impact on the Council. The payments
will be one off payments as explained in the Schemes.

7.2

There is no requirement to procure any services in order to deliver the schemes

Human Resources
7.3

The scheme will be administered within existing human resources within the Council.

Legal
7.4

The scheme will administered with strict adherence to the Governments guidance

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.5

Have you completed an Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? Yes

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: The schemes will
have a positive impact on people on low income, help to prevent poverty and help
protect peoples housing tenure by supporting financially while in self isolation.

Page 151

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix *) Yes

7.8

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: The digital only access will be mitigated
for a number of equality groups through access to telephone support for completing
the form and working with the third sector/voluntary groups to make them aware of
scheme and the support they can offer. Application is mobile devise friendly to allow
easy access to widest user group.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Clawback from Government for
non compliance with scheme

Financial Loss

Scheme designed in strict
adherence to Government
Policy

Fraudulent Claims

Financial Loss

Fraud prevention built into
application process

Contact Officers
Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead for Specialist Services
Gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk
01539 793382

Appendices Attached to this Report
(delete if no appendices attached)
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Draft Test and Trace Support Payment Policy

2

Draft Test and Trace Discretionary Support Policy

3

Equality Impact Assessment

4

Health, Social, Environment and Economic Impact Assessment

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Support and enforce Self Isolation
Information

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-packageto-support-and-enforce-self-isolation

Approved by:
Chief Executive
Or such person as delegated by
the Chief Executive in writing
In consultation with
The Leader of the Council
And Relevant Portfolio Holder

Signature and Date ( or email confirmation)
09/10/2020

12/10/2020
9/10/2020

Page 152

Due to COVID 19 and Government
announcements , it has not been possible
for this Key decision to be included in a
Forward Plan at least 28 clear days before
the decision was to be made.

Yes

In accordance with paragraph 16 of the
Access to Information Procedure Rules in
Part 4 of the Constitution the Chairman of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Cllr Hughes) has agreed that the taking of
the decision was urgent and could not
reasonably be deferred because of the
timescales required to protect the public
interest and to comply with Government
advice.
In accordance with paragraph 16(j) of the
Constitution The Chairman of the Council
(Cllr Coleman) has exercised powers that
the call-in procedure should not apply this
being an urgent decision and any delay
likely to be caused by the call-in process
would, for seriously prejudice the
Council’s and/ or the public’s interests.

Yes

Page 153

Appendix 1

South Lakeland District Council
Test and Trace Support Payments Scheme
Contents
Definitions ................................................................................................................................. 8
1. Background to Self-Isolation and Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme .................... 10
2. An overview of the Test and Trace Payment scheme (the Standard Scheme) .................. 10
3. Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure ........................................................ 11
4. Applying for a Test and Trace Support Payment (the Standard Scheme) .......................... 11
5. Time limits for making an application for a payment ........................................................ 12
6. Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant ................................ 12
7. The eligibility criteria and evidence required for the Test and Trace Support Payment
(the standard schem................................................................................................................ 13
An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form and
provide the all evidence and verification required ............................................................. 13
That they are a resident within the Council’s area ............................................................. 13
Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either because
they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with
someone who has tested positive....................................................................................... 14
All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed ............................................ 14
Employed ......................................................................................................................... 15

Page 154

Self Employed .................................................................................................................. 15
Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result ....................................... 15
Unable to work from home ............................................................................................. 15
Are currently receiving any of the qualifying benefits ........................................................ 16
8. How much grant will be paid, methods of payment and timings ...................................... 16
9. Notification of Decisions ..................................................................................................... 17
10. Implications for other benefits and reductions ................................................................ 17
11. Review of Decisions .......................................................................................................... 17
12. Complaints ........................................................................................................................ 17
13. The Discretionary Test and Trace Payment Scheme and its relationship with the Schem17
Standard Scheme ............................................................................................................. 17
Discretionary Scheme ...................................................................................................... 18
Claiming from the schemes ............................................................................................. 18
14. Funding of the scheme ..................................................................................................... 18
15. Taxation and provision of information to HMRC ............................................................. 18
16. Managing the risk of fraud ............................................................................................... 19
17. Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid .............................................................................. 19
18. The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation .............................................................. 19
19. Delegated Powers .............................................................................................................. 20
20. Data Protection and use of data........................................................................................ 20

Page 155

Definitions
The following definitions are used within this document:
‘Applicant’; means the individual making an application for a payment under this scheme;
‘Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS)’; means the web-based system used by Public
Health England to contact and trace individuals who are required to self-isolate;
‘CTAS Account ID’; means the unique number provided by Public Health England through
the Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS);
‘COVID-19’; means the infectious disease caused by the most recently discovered
coronavirus;
‘Housing Benefit’; means the benefit administered by local authorities under either the
Housing Benefit Regulations 2006 or the Housing Benefit (Persons who have attained the
qualifying age for state pension credit) 2006;
‘income-related Employment and Support Allowance’; means the means-tested
Employment and Support Allowance administered by the Department for Work and
Pensions under the Welfare Reform Act 2007;
‘income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance’; means the means-tested Jobseekers Allowance
administered by the Department for Work and Pensions under the Jobseekers Act 1995;
Income Support’; means the means-tested Income Support administered by the
Department for Work and Pensions under the Income Support (General) Regulations 1987;
‘NHS Test and Trace’; means the service provided to the National Health Service in England,
established in May 2020 to track and help prevent the spread of COVID-19;
‘Pension Credit’; means the means-tested Guarantee or Savings Credit administered by the
Department for Work and Pensions under the State Pension Credit Regulations 2002;
‘Qualifying benefit’; means any of the following benefits: Housing Benefit, Income support,
income-based jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment and Support Allowance,
Working Tax Credit or Universal Credit;
‘Self-isolation, Self-isolate’; means the legal requirement for an individual to self-isolate
when told to by NHS Test and Trace or the NHS COVID-19 app and the legal duty to selfisolate under the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Self-Isolation) (England)
Regulations 2020 which came into force on 28th September 2020;
‘Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme’ (‘Standard Scheme’); means the Standard
Scheme introduced by Government on 28th September and administered by Local
Authorities; ‘Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme’ (‘Discretionary Scheme’);
means the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme which has been agreed by the
Council and which may be available for individuals who are unable to access the ‘Standard
Scheme’.
‘Universal Credit’ means the means-tested Universal Credit administered by the
Department for Work and Pensions under the Universal Credit Regulations 2013;

Page 156

‘Working Tax Credit’; means the means-tested benefit administered by Her Majesty’s
Revenues and Customs under the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and Maximum Rate)
Regulations 2002.

Page 157

1.

Background to Self-Isolation and Test and Trace Support
Payment Scheme

1.1 From 28th September 2020, Government has changed the legislation so that certain
people will have to self-isolate due to the current COVID-19 crisis.
1.2 A package of legislative measures has been introduced both to ensure that those who
are required to self-isolate, do so and, that those on a low income, receive a
payment to assist their finances and to encourage compliance with the legislation.
1.3 The Council, together with Government, recognises that self-isolation is one of the most
powerful tools for controlling the transmission of the Covid-19 virus and this scheme
document details who will be eligible and how the Test and Trace Support Payment
will be made. It also outlines the approach the Council will take in determining
whether a payment will be made or not.
1.4 This document, which covers the Standard Scheme, should be read alongside the
Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Support scheme which may be available to
individuals who do not qualify for a payment under this scheme.

2.

An overview of the Test and Trace Payment scheme (the
standard scheme).

2.1 From 28th September 2020, individuals will be entitled to a Test and Trace Support
Payment of £500 from the Council if they meet the eligibility criteria listed below:
(a) Make an application to the Council in the prescribed form and provide all the
evidence and verification required;
(b) Are a resident within the Council’s area;
(c) Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive;
(d) Are employed or self-employed;
(e) Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result; and
(f) Are currently receiving any of the following ‘qualifying benefit’s:

Page 158

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
2.2

Universal Credit;
Working Tax Credit;
income-based Employment and Support Allowance;
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
Income Support;
Housing Benefit; or
Pension Credit.

This particular scheme is designed for those individuals (applicants) who:
•
meet the standard conditions 2.1 (a) to (e) above;
•
are in receipt of one of the qualifying benefits listed in 2.1(f); and
•
comply with the self-isolation requirements laid down by Government;
2.3
Where individuals meet all the requirements but are not in receipt of a qualifying
benefit (2.1 (f)), no payment can be made; however, they may be able to apply for a
discretionary payment under the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments
Scheme which is available on the Council’s website
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testandtrace-support-payment/
2.4
Individuals will not be entitled to apply for both a payment under the Standard
Scheme and under the Council’s Discretionary Scheme.

3. Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure
Commencement
3.1 This scheme is available to all individuals who meet the eligibility criteria and who are told to
self-isolate on or after 28th September 2020.
3.2 Individuals who are required to self-isolate before 28th September 2020 will not be eligible for
a payment.
Scheme closure
3.3 At the present time, Government has stated that this Standard Scheme will be available until
31st January 2021.

4.

Applying for a Test and Trace Support Payment (the Standard
Scheme).

4.1 Individuals who are resident within the Council’s area will be entitled to make an application
for a Test and Trace Support Payment under this scheme. In all cases, the ‘applicant’ will be
required to answer all of the questions asked and provide the information required by the Council
in the specified timescale.

Page 159

4.2 In order to receive a payment, all applicants must meet the full eligibility criteria, details of
which are shown within Section 7 of this scheme. The applicant will be required to self-verify
certain criteria and also confirm that they will comply with the self-isolation requirements set by
Government.
4.3 Where the applicant fails to meet the eligibility criteria, they will not receive a payment and
will be informed of this by the Council, either at the point of application or as soon as practicable
thereafter.
4.4 Where the applicant is successful, the Council will notify them accordingly and make payment
in line with the timings and methods shown in Section 8.
4.5
Applications can only be accepted from individuals who are resident in the Council’s
area.
4.6 Applications will be accepted from a third party in respect of any individual who meets the
eligibility criteria for a payment. However, the following should be noted:
• The person making the application will need to provide evidence of their identity
and also the reason why they are applying on behalf of another person; and
• That any payment must only be made by the Council to the person who is selfisolating. No payment will be made to a third party under any circumstance.
4.7

All applications shall be made online using the Council’s dedicated webpage
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testandtrace-support-payment/
There are no paper or other types of application processes; however, should individuals
experience difficulties in making any application, they should contact the Council on 01539
733333.

5. Time limits for making an application for a payment
5.1 No application for a payment can be made before the 28 th September 2020 or for any
individual who has been required to self-isolate before 28th September 2020.
5.2 Eligible individuals can apply for a Test and Trace Support Payment at any time up to 14 days
after their period of self-isolation ended. The Council will not accept any applications after this
point.
5.3 Where an individual has been required to self-isolate on or after 28th September but before
the Council’s scheme opened on 12th October 2020, an application for a backdated payment must
be made by 26th October 2020 (14 days after commencement of scheme).

6. Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant
6.1 Individuals in the same household can each make an application to receive a Test and Trace
Support Payment, if they each meet the eligibility criteria in full.
6.2

An individual may make an application more than once but only:

Page 160

•
•
•

If the individual is told to self-isolate multiple times; and
they meet the eligibility criteria for each individual application; and
the periods of self-isolation do not overlap.

6.3 The Council is mindful that this can be confusing for applicants and it will be essential, where
multiple applications are made by an individual, to ensure correct eligibility. Therefore, a new
application will need to be made for each distinct period of self isolation.

7. The eligibility criteria and evidence required for the Test and Trace
Support Payment (the Standard Scheme).
7.1

For payment to be made under this scheme, all of the criteria must be met. As with the
application form itself, all evidence will need to be provided electronically. The Council
provides facilities for all applicants to upload documents, evidence and photographs.

7.2 Where documentation is only held in ‘hard copy’ or paper form, the Council will accept digital
images or photographs provided they show all the relevant information.
7.3 The Council will keep all information supplied by applicants, secure and in accordance with
Data Protection legislation.

An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form and provide
the all evidence and verification required
7.4

As mentioned in Section 4, a valid application must be made via the Council’s
website:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/
All applicants will be required to provide details sufficient to identify themselves, their
address and to allow the Council to contact them including:
• Full name;
• Address;
• National Insurance Number; • Telephone number; and
• Email address.

7.5 In addition to the above, all applicants will be required to submit a copy of their current bank
statement(s) in order to:
• Verify that their income has reduced due to having to self-isolate (see later); and
• Provide details of the bank account number and sort code of the account into which
a payment would be made.

That they are a resident within the Council’s area
7.6 The applicant will be required to verify that they have their sole or main residence in the
Council’s area. The Council will check other records held (and make other enquiries where
appropriate) to determine this.

Page 161

7.7
Where necessary, the Council will ask the applicant to provide additional evidence of
residence.

Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either because they
have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with someone who
has tested positive
7.8 A key requirement of the scheme is that the applicant has been instructed by the NHS Test and
Trace to stay at home and self- isolate either because:
• they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus); or
• have recently been in close contact with someone who has tested positive.
7.9 All applicants will be required to provide the 8-digit unique ID number which has been
provided to them by NHS Test and Trace.
7.10 For information, the NHS Test and Trace service uses the Contact Tracing and Advice
Service (CTAS) to record information about people who have tested positive for COVID19 and their contacts. The CTAS Account ID is an 8-digit identifier unique to each case
(e.g. 3b1a315c). Most individuals who test positive for COVID-19 or are a contact of
someone who has had a positive test, will receive a digital invitation from the CTAS
system to undertake the contact tracing journey.
7.11 All cases and contacts who have completed the contact tracing journey (including
those who were ineligible for the digital invitation such as children or individuals with a
landline number only) will receive a citizen advice message upon completion of the
NHS Test and Trace questionnaire. The citizen message (sent either via a text
message/email or postal service for people with no access to mobile phone or email)
contains the 8-character Account ID.
7.12 The Council will check that the applicant has a valid Account ID produced by the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service. Only this number will allow an application to be
processed.
7.13 The Council will not make payment to anyone who does not have a valid
notification (Account ID) from NHS Test and Trace. It should be noted that there is a
legal duty to self-isolate which only applies to people who have been told to self isolate
by NHS Test and Trace.
7.14 The Council will not accept a notification from the NHS Isolation Note service.
Where the applicant has provided this only, they will be given an opportunity to
provide a valid NHS Test and Trace notification if they have one.
7.15 This scheme does not cover people who are self-isolating after returning to the UK
from abroad, unless they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus) or have been
instructed to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace.

All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed

Page 162

7.16 Only those applicants who are currently employed or currently self-employed will be entitled
to claim a Test and Trace Support Payment. For the sake of clarity, this scheme requires all
applicants to provide sufficient evidence of their current employment or self-employment status.
In the case of employed applicants, full details of their employer must be given on the application
form including contact numbers.
7.17

The Council will also require applicants to provide proof such as listed below:

Employed
•
•
•

Current wages or salary slips;
Employment contract; or
Letter from the employer confirming current employment.

Self Employed
• Self-assessment form;
• Details of HMRC registration as self-employed;
• Current accounts; or
• Current accounts and trading statements
7.18

The above list is not exhaustive.

7.19

As this is an essential requirement in order for a Test and Trace Support Payment to
be made, the applicant must satisfy the Council that they meet this criterion.

Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result
7.20

All applicants will have to certify on the application form that they are: •
Unable to work from home; and • Will lose income as a result.

7.21
full.

The Council will need to be satisfied that any applicants meet these conditions in

Unable to work from home
7.22 The Council will require applicants to give details about the nature of their work and whether
they can undertake this work from home.
7.23 Only those applicants that cannot work from home whilst self-isolating will meet the criteria
and therefore, each applicant will not only be required to verify the fact, but also provide details of
the reasons why this is the case, together with details of the type of work that they would
normally undertake.
7.24 This criterion applies whether an applicant is either employed or self-employed and
Government has provided a number of examples as follows:
•
An applicant with a single job whose employer continued to pay them a full wage while
they self-isolated would not meet the criteria;
•
An applicant whose employer paid them a reduced wage while they self-isolated would
meet the criteria (as they have lost income); and

Page 163

•

An applicant with two part-time jobs who continued to be paid a full wage by one
employer, but whose other employer did not pay them while self-isolating, would be
eligible.

Are currently receiving any of the qualifying benefits.
7.25 The final
benefits:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

criterion is that the applicant must be in receipt of one of the following qualifying
Universal Credit;
Working Tax Credit;
income-related Employment and Support Allowance;
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
Income Support;
Housing Benefit; or
Pension Credit.

7.26 Applicants must be actually in receipt of the listed benefits. Each applicant will be
required to verify that they are in receipt of one of the benefits and provide evidence of
that to the Council. Evidence will need to be provided electronically but typically could be
copies of bank statements showing the payments, confirmation of benefit entitlement or
award /payment summaries (as in the case of Universal Credit). The Council will accept
‘screenshots’ of any online benefit account.
7.27 Where an applicant has yet to apply for a qualifying benefit; is awaiting a decision on
a benefit; is currently appealing a negative decision; or is unable to apply for a qualifying
benefit, they will not be entitled to a payment under the Standard Scheme and will be
directed to apply for a payment under the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payment
Scheme.
7.28 The Council will verify the current receipt of a qualifying benefit with the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and Her Majesty’s Revenues and Customs
(HMRC) as appropriate.

8. How much grant will be paid, methods of payment and timings.
8.1 Where an applicant meets all of the eligibility criteria, a single payment of £500 shall be paid
for each period of self-isolation. Payments will be made direct to the applicant’s bank account
within 3 working days, starting with the date of application.
8.2 Where further information or evidence is required from the applicant, the Council will look to
make payment within 3 working days starting with the date when all of the required information is
received.
8.3 Full details of the applicant’s bank account must be supplied on the application form and this
will be cross checked with the copies of the bank statements provided as part of the verification
process.

Page 164

8.4 As required by Government, payments can only be made to the applicant’s bank account. No
payments can be made to third parties whatsoever.
8.5 The Council is aware that in some cases, applicants may be overdrawn and may not be able to
gain access to the payment. In these cases, the applicant may apply for protection. This protection
is called a 'first right of appropriation of funds order'.
More details of this can be obtained from the Councils website:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/ or from Citizens Advice.

9.

Notification of Decisions

9.1 Applications will be considered by officers of the Council and all decisions made by the Council
shall be notified to the applicant either in writing or by email.

10. Implications for other benefits and reductions
10.1 The Council has been advised by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) that the Test
and Trace Support Payment will be disregarded for the purposes of all means tested benefits.
10.2 The Council has decided that any payment made under this scheme shall not affect
entitlement to Council Tax Reduction.

11. Review of Decisions
11.1 Whilst there is no statutory appeal process, the Council will operate an internal review
process and will accept an applicant’s request for an appeal of its decision by a senior officer.
11.2 All such requests must be made in writing to the Council, within 3 days of the Council’s
decision, and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with the decision of the
Council. New information may be submitted at this stage to support the applicant’s appeal. The
application will be reconsidered as soon as practicable, and the applicant informed in writing or by
email of the decision.

12. Complaints
12.1 The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Councils website) will be applied in the
event of any complaint received about this scheme.

13. The Discretionary Test and Trace Payment Scheme and its relationship
with the Standard Scheme
Standard Scheme

Page 165

13.1 This ‘Standard’ Scheme has been determined by criteria set down by Government and is
primarily aimed at all applicants who are working or self-employed; are unable to work from
home and will therefore have a reduction in income and are in receipt of certain qualifying
benefits (Universal Credit; Working Tax Credit; Income-based Employment and Support Allowance;
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance; Income Support; Housing Benefit; or Pension Credit).
13.2

The receipt of one of those benefits is essential in order for a payment to be made.

Discretionary Scheme
13.3 The Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme is for any individual who meets
all the required criteria except that they are not currently in receipt of a qualifying benefit. The
reason for this could be, for example, that a claim for a benefit has not yet been made or that the
individual, whilst normally resident in the UK, is unable to gain access to public funds.
13.4

Details of the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payment Scheme can be found
at:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/

Claiming from the schemes
13.5 Individuals who are entitled to a payment from the Standard Scheme are unable to make a
claim from the Council’s discretionary scheme.
13.6 However, an applicant who is refused a ‘Standard Scheme’ payment on the basis that they
meet all the criteria except that they are not in receipt of a qualifying benefit, will be directed to
make an application for a discretionary payment.

14. Funding of the scheme
14.1 Government has confirmed that it will reimburse the Council for all payments correctly made
under this scheme.

15. Taxation and provision of information to HMRC
15.1 The Council has been informed by Government that all payments under this scheme are
taxable. However, the payments will not be subject to National Insurance contributions.
15.2 The Council does not accept any responsibility in relation to an applicant’s tax liabilities and
all applicants should make their own enquiries to establish any tax position.
15.3 All applicants should note that the Council is required to inform Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs (HMRC) of all payments made to individuals.

Page 166

16. Managing the risk of fraud
16.1 Neither the Council, nor Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the scheme and
fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain payments will face prosecution and any
payment issued will be recovered from them and this may also include other recovery costs.
16.2 Applicants should note that, where a Test and Trace Support Payment is paid by the Council,
details of each individual applicant will be passed to Government. Applicants should also note that
the Council utilises a number of databases and Government systems to verify information in
connection with any applications submitted.

17. Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid
17.1 If it is established that any Test and Trace Support Payment has been made incorrectly due to
incorrect information provided to the Council by an applicant or their representative(s), the
Council will look to recover the amount in full.

18. The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation
18.1 The duty to self-isolate is an important one. Ensuring infected individuals and their close
contacts isolate is one of our most powerful tools for controlling transmission.
18.2 We know that someone with the virus can remain infectious to other people for up to 10 days
after developing symptoms. It can take up to 14 days for individuals to develop coronavirus
symptoms after they catch the virus, and in this time, they can unknowingly pass it on to others,
even if they don’t have symptoms.
18.3 Self-isolating helps prevent family, friends and the community from contracting coronavirus,
as well as helping to protect the health and care system.
18.4 The changes announced by Government on 20th September 2020 and brought into force on
28th September 2020 (as well as providing for the Test and Trace Support payments scheme):
•
introduce a new legal duty on individuals to self-isolate if someone tests positive or is
identified as a contact by NHS Test and Trace;
•
introduce penalties for those breaking the rules, including fines of at least £1,000 and
up to a maximum of £10,000 for repeated or very serious offences; and
•
place a new legal obligation on employers that they must not knowingly enable or
encourage their employees to break the law on self-isolation.
18.5 As part of this, the Council has a duty If it becomes aware, either through post
payment verification checks or through other means, that someone has not self isolated, to
refer the case to the police.
18.6 The Council has been informed by Government that, in order to ensure compliance
with the new legislation NHS Test and Trace call handlers will be increasing contact with
those self-isolating. Police resources will be used to check compliance in highest incidence
areas and in high-risk groups, based on local intelligence including acting on instances

Page 167

where third parties have identified others who have tested positive, but are not selfisolating.
18.7 The Council will continue to focus on the principle of encouraging, educating and
supporting self-compliance.

19. Delegated Powers
19.1 The Council has implemented this scheme in line with Government requirements and
guidance.
19.2 Officers of the Council will administer the scheme and the Section 151 Officer is authorised to
make technical scheme amendments to ensure it continues to meet the criteria set by the Council
and, in line with Central Government guidance.

20. Data Protection and use of data
20.1 All information and data provided by businesses shall be dealt with in accordance with the
Council’s Data Protection policy and Privacy Notices which are available on the Council’s website.

Page 168

Appendix 2

South Lakeland District Council
Test and Trace Discretionary Payments
Scheme
Contents
Definitions ................................................................................................................................3
1.

Background to Self-Isolation and the Test and Trace Payments ......................................5
2.

An

overview

of

the

Test

and

Trace

Discretionary Payments Scheme (the Discretionary
Scheme)....................................................................................................................................5
3.

Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure ......................................................6

4.

Applying for a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment (the Discretionary Scheme).........7

5.

Time limits for making an application for a payment.......................................................7

Page 169

6.

Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant...............................8

7.
The eligibility criteria and evidence required for a Test and Trace Discretionary
Payment. ..................................................................................................................................8
8.

How much discretionary payment will be paid, methods of payment and timings.......12

9.

Notification of Decisions.................................................................................................13

10.

Implications for other benefits and reductions..........................................................13

11.

Review of Decisions....................................................................................................13

12.

Complaints..................................................................................................................13

13.
The Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme and its relationship with the
Standard Scheme....................................................................................................................14
Standard Scheme............................................................................................................14
Discretionary Scheme.....................................................................................................14
Claiming from the schemes............................................................................................14
14.

Funding of the Discretionary Scheme.........................................................................14

15.

Taxation and provision of information to HMRC........................................................15

16.

Managing the risk of fraud .........................................................................................15

17.

Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid........................................................................15

18.

The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation.........................................................15

19.

Delegated Powers.......................................................................................................16

20.

Data Protection and use of data.................................................................................16

Page 170

Definitions
The following definitions are used within this document:
‘Additional Eligibility Criteria’; means the additional criteria decided by the Council that need to be
met, in order to receive a payment under the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments
Scheme. These will be in addition to the standard criteria and are allowable under Government
guidance;
‘Applicant’; means the individual making an application for a payment under this scheme; ‘Contact
Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS)’; means the web-based system used by Public Health England to
contact and trace individuals who are required to self-isolate;
‘CTAS Account ID’; means the unique number provided by Public Heath England through the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service (CTAS);
‘COVID-19’; means the infectious disease caused by the most recently discovered coronavirus;
‘face financial hardship’; a key criterion of the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme is
that all applicants will, if not for the payment, face financial hardship solely due to their need to
self-isolate;
‘Housing Benefit’; means the benefit administered by local authorities under either the Housing
Benefit Regulations 2006 or the Housing Benefit (Persons who have attained the qualifying age for
state pension credit) 2006;
‘income-related Employment and Support Allowance’; means the means-tested Employment and
Support Allowance administered by the Department for Work and Pensions under the Welfare
Reform Act 2007;
‘income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance’; means the means-tested Jobseekers Allowance
administered by the Department for Work and Pensions under the Jobseekers Act 1995; Income
Support’; means the means-tested Income Support administered by the Department for Work and
Pensions under the Income Support (General) Regulations 1987;
‘NHS Test and Trace’; means the service provided to the National Health Service in England,
established in May 2020 to track and help prevent the spread of COVID-19;
‘Pension Credit’; means the means-tested Guarantee or Savings Credit administered by the
Department for Work and Pensions under the State Pension Credit Regulations 2002; ‘Qualifying
benefit’; means any of the following benefits: Housing Benefit, Income support, income-based
jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment and Support Allowance, Working Tax Credit or
Universal Credit;
‘Self-isolation, Self-isolate’; means the legal requirement for an individual to self-isolate when told
to by NHS Test and Trace or the NHS COVID-19 app and the legal duty to self-isolate under the
Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Self-Isolation) (England) Regulations 2020 which
came into force on 28th September 2020;
‘Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme’ (‘Standard Scheme’); means the Standard Scheme
introduced by Government on 28th September and administered by Local Authorities; ‘Test and
Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme’ (‘Discretionary Scheme’); means the Test and Trace
Discretionary Payments Scheme which has been agreed by the Council and which may be available
for individuals who are unable to access the ‘Standard Scheme’.

Page 171

‘Universal Credit’ means the means-tested Universal Credit administered by the Department for
Work and Pensions under the Universal Credit Regulations 2013;
‘Working Tax Credit’; means the means-tested benefit administered by Her Majesty’s Revenues
and Customs under the Working Tax Credit (Entitlement and Maximum Rate) Regulations 2002.

Page 172

1. Background to Self-Isolation and the Test and Trace Payments
1.1 From 28th September 2020, Government has changed the legislation so that certain people will
have to self-isolate due to the current COVID-19 crisis.
1.2 A package of legislative measures has been introduced to ensure that those who are required
to self-isolate, do so and that those on a low income receive a payment to assist their
finances and to encourage compliance with the legislation.
1.3 The Council, together with Government, recognises that self-isolation is one of the most
powerful tools for controlling the transmission of the Covid-19 virus. The Government has
set down the requirements for two payment schemes to be set up by the Council as follows:
(a) The Test and Trace Support Payments Scheme (the Standard Scheme) for those
eligible applicants who are in receipt of Housing Benefit, Pension Credit, Income
support, income-based jobseeker’s Allowance, income-related Employment and
Support Allowance, Working Tax Credit or Universal Credit (the qualifying benefits); and
(b) The Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme (the Discretionary Scheme)
for those applicants who are not in receipt of any of the qualifying benefits but who are
on a low income and will face financial hardship as a result of not being able to work
while they are self-isolating.
1.4

This document details who will be eligible for a payment under the Test and Trace
Discretionary Payments Scheme.

1.5

Any applicant who is in receipt of a qualifying benefit, should apply for a payment
under the standard scheme details of which are available at
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/

2.

An overview of the Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme
(the Discretionary Scheme).
2.1

From 28th September 2020, individuals will be entitled to a payment of £500 from
the Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme if they meet the
eligibility criteria listed below:
(a) Make an application to the Council in the prescribed form and provide all the
evidence and verification required;
(b) Are a resident within the Council’s area;
(c) Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either
because they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive;
(d) Are employed or self-employed;

Page 173

(e) Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result;
(f) Are NOT currently receiving any of the following benefits:
• Universal Credit;
• Working Tax Credit;
• income-based Employment and Support Allowance;
• income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
• Income Support;
• Housing Benefit; or
• Pension Credit; and
(g) Meet the Council’s additional criteria for a discretionary payment.
2.2
•
•
•

This particular scheme is designed for those individuals (applicants) who:
meet the standard conditions 2.1 (a) to (g) above;
are not receiving a benefit listed in 2.1(f); and
comply with the self-isolation requirements laid down by Government;

2.3

Where individuals meet all the requirements but are in receipt of a benefit stated in
2.1 (f), no payment can be made under the Discretionary Scheme; however, they
may be able to apply for payment under the Standard Scheme which is available on
the Council’s website https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housingbenefit/benefits/testand-trace-support-payment/

2.4

Individuals will NOT be entitled to apply for both a payment under the Standard
Scheme and under the Council’s Discretionary Scheme.

3. Commencement of the scheme and scheme closure
Commencement
3.1 This scheme is available to all individuals who meet the eligibility criteria for a discretionary
payment and who are told to self-isolate on or after 28th September
2020.
3.2 Individuals who are required to self-isolate before 28th September 2020 will not be eligible for
a payment.

Scheme closure
3.3 At the present time, Government has stated that this Discretionary Scheme (and the Standard
Scheme) will be available until 31st January 2021.

Page 174

4. Applying for a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment (the
Discretionary Scheme).
4.1

Individuals who are resident within the Council’s area may make an application for a
Test and Trace Discretionary Payment under this scheme. In all cases, the ‘applicant’
will be required to answer all of the questions asked and provide the information
required by the Council in the specified timescale.

4.2

In order to receive a payment, all applicants must meet the full eligibility criteria,
details of which are shown within Section 7 of this scheme. The applicant will be
required to self-verify certain criteria and also confirm that they will comply with
the self-isolation requirements set by Government.

4.3

Where the applicant fails to meet the eligibility criteria, they will not receive a
payment and will be informed of this by the Council, either at the point of
application or as soon as practicable thereafter.

4.4

Where the applicant is successful, the Council will notify them accordingly and make
payment in line with the timings and methods shown in Section 8.

4.5

Applications can only be accepted from individuals who are resident in the Council’s
area.

4.6

Applications will be accepted from a third party in respect of any individual who
meets all the eligibility criteria for a payment. However, the following should be
noted:
• The person making the application will need to provide evidence of their identity
and also the reason why they are applying on behalf of another person; and
• That any payment must only be made by the Council to the person who is selfisolating. No payment will be made to a third party under any circumstance.

4.7
All applications shall be made online using the Council’s dedicated webpage:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/
There are no paper or other types of application processes; however, should
individuals
experience difficulties in making any application, they should contact the Council on 01539
733733

5. Time limits for making an application for a payment
5.1 No application for a discretionary payment can be made before the 28 th September 2020 or for
any individual who has been required to self-isolate before 28th September
2020.
5.2 Eligible individuals can apply for a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment at any time up to 14
days after their period of self-isolation ended. The Council will not accept any applications after
this point.

Page 175

5.3 Where an individual has been required to self-isolate on or after 28th September but before
the Council’s scheme opened on 12th October 2020, an application for a backdated discretionary
payment must be made by 26th October 2020 (14 days after commencement of scheme).

6. Multiple claims within the household and from the same applicant
6.1 Individuals in the same household can each make an application to receive a Test and Trace
Discretionary Payment, if they each meet all the eligibility criteria in full.
6.2

An individual may make an application more than once but only:
•
If the individual is told to self-isolate multiple times; and
•
they meet the eligibility criteria for each individual application; and
•
the periods of self-isolation do not overlap.

6.3 The Council is mindful that this can be confusing for applicants and it will be essential, where
multiple applications are made by an individual, to ensure correct eligibility. Therefore, a new
application will need to be made for each distinct period of self isolation.

7.

The eligibility criteria and evidence required for a Test and Trace
Discretionary Payment.
7.1 For payment to be made under this Discretionary Scheme, all of the criteria must be
met. As with the application form itself, all evidence will need to be provided
electronically. The Council provides facilities for all applicants to upload documents,
evidence and photographs.
7.2 Where documentation is only held in ‘hard copy’ or paper form, the Council will
accept digital images or photographs provided they show all the relevant information.
7.3 The Council will keep all information supplied by applicants, secure and in
accordance with Data Protection legislation.

An individual must make a valid application to the Council in the prescribed form and
provide all the evidence and verification required
7.4

As mentioned in Section 4, a valid application must be made via the Council’s
website:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/
All applicants will be required to provide details sufficient to identify themselves, their
address and to allow the Council to contact them including: • Full name;
•
Address;
•
National Insurance Number; • Telephone number; and
•
Email address.

7.5 In addition to the above, all applicants will be required to submit a copy of their current bank
statement(s) in order to:

Page 176

•
Verify that their income has reduced due to having to self-isolate (see later);
and
•
Provide details of the bank account number and sort code of the account
into which a payment would be made.

That they are a resident within the Council’s area
7.6 The applicant will be required to verify that they have their sole or main residence in the
Council’s area. The Council will check other records held (and make other enquiries where
appropriate) to determine this.
7.7
Where necessary, the Council will ask the applicant to provide additional evidence of
residence.

Have been told to stay at home and self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace, either because
they have tested positive for coronavirus or have recently been in close contact with
someone who has tested positive
7.8 A key requirement of the scheme is that the applicant has been instructed by the NHS Test and
Trace to stay at home and self- isolate either because:
• they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus); or
• have recently been in close contact with someone who has tested positive.
7.9 All applicants will be required to provide the 8-digit unique ID number which has been
provided to them by NHS Test and Trace.
7.10 For information, the NHS Test and Trace service uses the Contact Tracing and Advice
Service (CTAS) to record information about people who have tested positive for COVID19 and their contacts. The CTAS Account ID is an 8-character identifier unique to each
case (e.g. 3b1a315c). Most individuals who test positive for COVID-19 or are a contact
of someone who has had a positive test, will receive a digital invitation from the CTAS
system to undertake the contact tracing journey.
7.11 All cases and contacts who have completed the contact tracing journey (including
those who were ineligible for the digital invitation such as children or individuals with a
landline number only) will receive a citizen advice message upon completion of the
NHS Test and Trace questionnaire. The citizen message (sent either via a text
message/email or postal service for people with no access to mobile phone or email)
contains the 8-character Account ID.
7.12 The Council will check that the applicant has a valid Account ID produced by the
Contact Tracing and Advice Service. Only this number will allow an application to be
processed.
7.13 The Council will not make payment to anyone who does not have a valid
notification (Account ID) from NHS Test and Trace. It should be noted that there is a
legal duty to self-isolate which only applies to people who have been told to self isolate
by NHS Test and Trace.

Page 177

7.14 The Council will not accept a notification from the NHS Isolation Note service.
Where the applicant has provided this only, they will be given an opportunity to
provide a valid NHS Test and Trace notification if they have one.
7.15 This scheme does not cover people who are self-isolating after returning to the UK
from abroad, unless they have tested positive for COVID-19 (coronavirus) or have been
instructed to self-isolate by NHS Test and Trace.

All applicants must be currently employed or self-employed
7.16 Only those applicants who are currently employed or currently self-employed will be entitled
to claim a Test and Trace Support Payment. For the sake of clarity, this scheme requires all
applicants to provide sufficient evidence of their current employment or self-employment status.
In the case of employed applicants, full details of their employer must be given on the application
form including contact numbers.
7.17

The Council will also require applicants to provide proof such as listed below:

Employed
• Current wages or salary slips;
• Employment contract; or
• Letter from the employer confirming current employment.
Self Employed
• Self-assessment form;
• Details of HMRC registration as self-employed;
• Current accounts; or
• Current accounts and trading statements
7.18

The above list is not exhaustive.

7.19 As this is an essential requirement in order for a Test and Trace Discretionary
Payment to be made, the applicant must satisfy the Council that they meet this
criterion.

Are NOT currently receiving any of the following benefits.

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

7.20 To receive a discretionary payment the applicant must not be in receipt of
one of the following benefits:
Universal Credit;
Working Tax Credit;
income-based Employment and Support Allowance;
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance;
Income Support;
Housing Benefit; or
Pension Credit.

Page 178

7.21 Where applicants are in receipt of any of the above benefits, then payments can
ONLY be made through the Standard Scheme. The Council has designed the application
process so that the same form can used to claim either payment (Standard Scheme or
Discretionary Scheme) and applicants who fail to qualify for a Standard Scheme payment
because they are not in receipt of one of those benefits, will automatically be directed to
the Discretionary Scheme.
7.22 Where an applicant has yet to apply for one of the benefits listed; is awaiting a
decision on a benefit; is currently appealing a negative decision; or is unable to apply for a
qualifying benefit, they may make an application under this Discretionary
Scheme.

Are unable to work from home and will lose income as a result and will face financial
hardship as a result of not being able to work while they are self-isolating
7.23

All applicants will have to certify on the application form that they are:
• Unable to work from home;
• Will lose income as a result; and
• Will face financial hardship as a result of not being able to work while they are selfisolating
7.24

The Council will need to be satisfied that any applicants meet these conditions in
full.

7.25 The Council will require applicants to give details about the nature of their work and
whether they can undertake this work from home.
7.26 Only those applicants that cannot work from home whilst self-isolating will meet the
criteria and therefore, each applicant will not only be required to verify the fact, but also
provide details of the reasons why this is the case, together with details of the type of
work that they would normally undertake.
7.27 The Council will also require all applicants making an application for a discretionary
payment to provide evidence of financial hardship. All applicants will be required to
demonstrate that the financial hardship is solely due to having to self-isolate.

Meet the Council’s additional criteria for discretionary payments
7.28 Given that the funding for the Discretionary Scheme is limited (see Section 14), Government
has stated that it will be up to each Council to determine additional criteria that have to be met if a
payment is to be made.
7.29

To qualify for a discretionary payment the applicant must meet the following conditions:
(a) Their household is on a low income. The Council will look at whether the level of
household income for the period of self-isolation would normally be eligible for state
benefits; and

Page 179

(b) The applicant must have basic living costs that cannot be met such as rent, food, fuel
etc. and don't have savings or other income to meet these costs.

8.

How much discretionary payment will be paid, methods of payment
and timings.
8.1

Where an applicant meets all of the eligibility criteria for a discretionary payment, a
single payment of £500 shall be paid for each period of self-isolation. Payments will
be made direct to the applicant’s bank account within 3 working days, starting with
the date of application.

8.2

Where further information or evidence is required from the applicant, the Council
will look to make payment within 3 working days starting with the date when all of
the required information is received.

8.3

Full details of the applicant’s bank account must be supplied on the application form
and this will be cross checked with the copies of the bank statements provided as
part of the verification process.

8.4

As required by Government, payments can only be made to the applicant’s bank
account. No payments can be made to third parties whatsoever.

8.5

The Council is aware that in some cases, applicants may be overdrawn and may not
be able to gain access to the payment. In these cases, the applicant may apply for
protection. This protection is called a 'first right of appropriation of funds order'.
More details of this can be obtained from the Councils website:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/ or from Citizens Advice.

9. Notification of Decisions
9.1 Applications for discretionary payments will be considered by officers of the Council and all
decisions made by the Council shall be notified to the applicant either in writing or by email.

10. Implications for other benefits and reductions
10.1 The Council has been advised by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) that all Test
and Trace Support Payments (of any type) will be disregarded for the purposes of all means-tested
benefits.
10.2 The Council has decided that any payment made under this scheme shall not affect
entitlement to Council Tax Reduction.

11. Review of Decisions
11.1 Whilst there is no statutory appeal process, the Council will operate an internal review
process and will accept an applicant’s request for an appeal of its decision by a senior officer.

Page 180

11.2 All such requests must be made in writing to the Council, within 3 days of the Council’s
decision, and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with the decision of the
Council. New information may be submitted at this stage to support the applicant’s appeal. The
application will be reconsidered as soon as practicable, and the applicant informed in writing or by
email of the decision.

12. Complaints
12.1 The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Councils website) will be applied in the
event of any complaint received about this scheme.

13. The Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme and its
relationship with the Standard Scheme
Standard Scheme
13.1 This ‘Standard Scheme’ has been determined by criteria set down by Government and is
primarily aimed at all applicants who are working or self-employed; are unable to work from
home and will therefore have a reduction in income and are in receipt of certain qualifying
benefits (Universal Credit; Working Tax Credit; Income-based Employment and Support Allowance;
income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance; Income Support; Housing Benefit; or Pension Credit).
13.2

The receipt of one of those benefits is essential in order for a payment to be made.

13.3

Details of the Standard Scheme can be found at
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/council-tax-and-housing-benefit/benefits/testand-tracesupport-payment/

Discretionary Scheme
13.4 The Council’s Test and Trace Discretionary Payments Scheme is for any individual who meets
all the required criteria (including the Council’s additional criteria) except that they are not
currently in receipt of a qualifying benefit and they would face financial hardship due to selfisolation. The reason for this could be, for example, that a claim for a benefit has not yet been
made or that the individual, whilst normally resident in the UK, is unable to gain access to public
funds.
Claiming from the schemes
13.5 Individuals who are entitled to a payment from the Standard Scheme are unable to make a
claim from the Council’s Discretionary Scheme.
13.6 However, an applicant who is refused a ‘Standard Scheme’ payment on the basis that they
meet all the criteria except that they are not in receipt of a qualifying benefit, will be directed to
make an application for a discretionary payment. It should be noted that in all cases, where an

Page 181

individual applies for a discretionary payment, they will have to satisfy not only the basic criteria
laid down by Government but also the additional criteria set by the Council.

14. Funding of the Discretionary Scheme
14.1 The Council will receive a fixed amount of funding from Government which will be for the
four months that the Discretionary Scheme is intended to last. Government has confirmed that no
additional monies will be given to the Council.
14.2 In view of this, and to ensure that discretionary payments are available throughout the period
to 31st January 2021, the Council reserves the right to change the Test and Trace Discretionary
Payments Scheme at any time to ensure funds go to those who face the most financial hardship.

15. Taxation and provision of information to HMRC
15.1 The Council has been informed by Government that all payments under this scheme are
taxable. However, the payments will not be subject to National Insurance contributions.
15.2 The Council does not accept any responsibility in relation to an applicant’s tax liabilities and
all applicants should make their own enquiries to establish any tax position.
15.3 All applicants should note that the Council is required to inform Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs (HMRC) of all payments made to individuals.

16. Managing the risk of fraud
16.1 Neither the Council, nor Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the scheme and
fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain payments will face prosecution and any
payment issued will be recovered from them and this may also include other recovery costs.
16.2 Applicants should note that, where a Test and Trace Discretionary Payment is paid by the
Council, details of each individual applicant will be passed to Government. Applicants should also
note that the Council utilises a number of databases and Government systems to verify
information in connection with any application submitted.

17. Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid
17.1 If it is established that any Test and Trace Discretionary Support Payment has been made
incorrectly due to misrepresentation or incorrect information provided to the Council by an
applicant or their representative(s), the Council will look to recover the amount in full.

18. The Council’s duties in relation to self-isolation
18.1 The duty to self-isolate is an important one. Ensuring infected individuals and their close
contacts isolate is one of our most powerful tools for controlling transmission.

Page 182

18.2 We know that someone with the virus can remain infectious to other people for up to 10 days
after developing symptoms. It can take up to 14 days for individuals to develop coronavirus
symptoms after they catch the virus, and in this time, they can unknowingly pass it on to others,
even if they don’t have symptoms.
18.3 Self-isolating helps prevent family, friends and the community from contracting coronavirus,
as well as helping to protect the health and care system.
18.4 The changes announced by Government on 20th September 2020 and brought into force on
28th September 2020 (as well as providing for the Test and Trace Support Payments Schemes):
•
introduce a new legal duty on individuals to self-isolate if someone tests positive or is
identified as a contact by NHS Test and Trace;
•
introduce penalties for those breaking the rules, including fines of at least £1,000 and
up to a maximum of £10,000 for repeated or very serious offences; and
•
place a new legal obligation on employers that they must not knowingly enable or
encourage their employees to break the law on self-isolation.
18.5 As part of this, the Council has a duty If it becomes aware, either through post
payment verification checks or through other means, that someone has not self isolated, to
refer the case to the police.
18.6 The Council has been informed by Government that, in order to ensure compliance
with the new legislation NHS Test and Trace call handlers will be increasing contact with
those self-isolating. Police resources will be used to check compliance in highest incidence
areas and in high-risk groups, based on local intelligence including acting on instances
where third parties have identified others who have tested positive, but are not selfisolating.
18.7 The Council will continue to focus on the principle of encouraging, educating and
supporting self-compliance.

19. Delegated Powers
19.1 The Council has implemented this Discretionary Scheme in line with Government
requirements and guidance.
19.2 Officers of the Council will administer the scheme and the Section 151 Officer is authorised to
make technical scheme amendments to ensure it continues to meet the criteria set by the Council
and, in line with Central Government guidance. 20.

Data Protection and use of data

20.1 All information and data provided by applicants shall be dealt with in accordance with the
Council’s Data Protection policy and Privacy Notices which are available on the Council’s website.

Page 183

Appendix 3

EIA Title:

1.0

Test and Trace Standard and Discretionary Policy

The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected
characteristics:
Age, disability, ethnicity, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the elimination
of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0).

1.1

SLDC includes “rurality” and “socio-economic disadvantage” as additional categories
in its equality impact assessments. Although socio-economic status and rurality are not
recognised protected characteristics under the Equality Act, people on low inco mes or in
rural isolation are highly likely to be affected by services th Tat are intended to support
vulnerable people.

2.0

The General Equality Duty.
SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.
c. Foster good relations between people who share
a protected characteristic and those who
do not.

Page 184

1

STEP 1

Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA.
The subject of this EIA is to identify any positive and disproportionally negative impacts
on any persons who hold one or more of the protected characteristics as defined by the
Equality Act 2010. Another expected outcome of this EIA is to identify any mitigating
actions to prevent to avoid negative impacts.

Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken (include
surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.).
The schemes are designed to support people on low incomes who have to self-isolate
because of Covid 19. The standard scheme has been designed by central government
and therefore there is not an option to engage as it is fixed.
The discretionary scheme has been subject to consultation with the Leader of the
Council and the Portfolio Holder for Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience.

2

Page 185

STEP 2

Equality Action Plan

Page 186

Positive
impacts

Negative
impacts

Mitigating actions (to
avoid negative impact):

Lead
Officer &
When

Complete
Y/N

Officers trained to take info over
phone for those who do not have
access to IT

Y

Age

Access to the
form is digital only
by design

G. Candlin

n/a

BAME

n/a

Access to the
form is digital only
by design

Access to translation will be
provided if necessary

G. Candlin

Y

Disabled

n/a

Access to the
form is digital only
by design

Form will meet all accessibility
requirements further support can
be provided

G.Candlin

Y

In providing this service, what are the
impacts for the following people?
1. Age (young and old)
2. Black and Minority Ethnic
3. Disabled
4. Faith/Belief
5. Sexual Orientation
6. Gender
7. Gender reassignment
8. Pregnancy and maternity
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership
10. Socio-economic disadvantage
(including rural deprivation,
‘rurality’)
(See glossary below for definitions)

3

Faith/belief

n/a

n/a

Sexual Orientation

n/a

n/a

Gender

n/a

n/a

Gender reassignment

n/a

n/a

Pregnancy and maternity

n/a

n/a

Page 187

Socio-economic disadvantage
Provides financial
support to those
in receipt of in
work benefits

Access to internet
connection
required

Comms campaign will include
information on how to access
scheme without IT equiptment.
Forms is mobile friendly

G.candlin

Y

4

STEP 3

Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues used are
accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments)
The form is accessible digitally but also officers are able to support applicants that do not have access to
IT.
Communications plan will target equality groups to ensure they have understanding and support to access
the scheme.
Voluntary/3rd sector partners will be briefed on the scheme to ensure they can support their client group
access the scheme.
The council has a list of equality contacts who can be contacted for consultation or to ask advice. The list is on the
intranet under Equality and Diversity. If you need any support when completing this Equality Impact Analysis, please
contact the Partnerships and Funding Officer.

Date:

07/10/2020

EIA Author(s):

G.candlin

Assistant Director:

N/a

Document version number:

1.0

Date for Review:

n/a

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer

Y

Glossary
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 yearolds).
Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples on a range of legal matters.
Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to carry out
normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning disability.
Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is undergoing or has undergone a
process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological or other attributes of sex.
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection against maternity
discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, Asian, Black and White minority
ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and philosophical beliefs including lack of
belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and non religious beliefs such as Humanism.
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.
Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues around rural and urban deprivation, such as access to services and
transport. Rurality should be specifically considered as South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural
settlements and larger market towns.

Page 188

Appendix 4
South Lakeland District Council
Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma
Project, policy or programme: Test and Trace Support Scheme
Health Impacts

Potential Impacts
Positive

No
impact

Negative

Not
sure

Comments

Recommendations

Supports people on
low income to selfisolate
Supports people on
low income to selfisolate

n/a

Assist people to keep
up with housing
payments if they are
not paid to isolate by
employer

n/a

Please tick the appropriate box

Environmental Conditions
Air quality

X

Water quality and
pollution

X

Built environment

X

Natural environment
and biodiversity

X

Energy
consumption/efficiency

X

Noise

X

Transport

X

Recycling

X

Food production

X

Social and Economic Factors
Employment

x

Income

X

Poverty

X

X

Education, skills and
training
Housing

Crime

n/a

X

X

Page 189

Project, policy or programme: Test and Trace Support Scheme
Health Impacts

Potential Impacts
Positive

No
impact

Negative

Not
sure

Comments

Recommendations

Please tick the appropriate box

Work environment

X

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing
Nutrition and diet

X

Physical activity

X

Alcohol

X

Drugs

X

Risk taking behaviour

X

Smoking

X

Loneliness and
isolation

X

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health
Communication
methods

X

Active travel

X

Access to leisure

X

Access to culture

X

Access to green
spaces

X

Page 190

Item No.13b
EMERGENCY DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISION
In accordance with the Leaders decision and noted by Cabinet on 25/03/2020 to delegate to the Chief
Executive any executive decision in this COVID 19 Global pandemic emergency or that is urgent or
that would be necessary or expedient, or which would otherwise protect the Council’s interests,
including key decisions.

South Lakeland District Council
Emergency Delegated Executive Decision

Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)
Date: 13/11/2020

Reference: 011

Reason for emergency
The Chief Executive received emergency delegated executive decision making powers on
the 25th March 2020. It is considered that this decision is necessary or arises from the
global COVID-19 pandemic.
The matter is urgent, necessary and expedient and is needed to protect the Council’s
interests.
The decision is required to be taken due to the Government’s recent announcement for a
new package of financial support grants for businesses that will be administered by local
authorities. Funding will be provided by the Government for the new support grants for
businesses due the announcement of a second national lockdown. The Government have
requested the grants are processed and paid as soon as possible, with the funding
expected to be paid to the Council by 13th November 2020. It is expected that the payment
of grants will ease financial pressures for eligible businesses.
Due to the timing of the receipt of the Government Guidance (announced 30th October
2020) and the date of the next Cabinet meeting being on 25th November 2020, we require
an emergency decision.
This is a Key Decision: Yes

Portfolio:

Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Decision Maker:

Chief Executive

Report Author:

Gareth Candlin – Operational Lead (Specialist Services)
Ruth Leahy – Specialist (Economy and Culture)

Wards:

All

Forward Plan:

Exemption from publication requirements / Forward Plan (key
decision) requirements and call in obtained

1.0

Reasons for Proposed Decision and Expected Outcome

1.1

Due to the second national lockdown announced on 30th October 2020 and planned
between 5th November 2020 and 2nd December 2020 with the possibility of the UK
Government extending the lockdown beyond this date dependent on the Coronavirus

Page 191

infection rate. We require a process and policy regarding the administration of the
grants.
1.2

Many businesses have been mandated to close which will have a severe impact on
businesses who will see a significant reduction in income as a result of new national
restrictions.

1.3

The Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed) LRSG (C) has been announced by
Government to businesses who have had to close or who will be significantly
impacted by the lockdown (supply chain businesses etc)

1.4

South Lakeland District Council has been granted £6,746,544 for Local Restrictions
Support Grants (Closed) from Government to distribute to eligible businesses under
this scheme.

1.5

The LRSG grant scheme follows the Government-funded Small Business Grant Fund
(SBGF) Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund, (RHLGF), Local Authority
Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF) that were administered by local authorities
following the first national lockdown in March 2020.

1.6

SLDC will distribute grant funding to eligible businesses through an online
application and validation process, used in the aforementioned grant schemes.
There will be a fasttrack process for businesses that applied last time.

1.7

It is expected that the payment of grants will ease financial pressures for eligible
businesses. This decision will contribute significantly in assisting businesses during
COVID-19, helping with job retention and business viability in difficult circumstances
and avoiding economic collapse by giving additional resources to businesses with
properties within the district.

2.0

Proposed Decision

2.1

It is recommended that the Chief Executive:(1)

Approve the Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed)

(2)
That a non-executive emergency decision is taken to confirm
appropriate budgets be established outside the approved budget and policy
framework to receive the grant funding and distribute funds as per
Government guidance; and
(3)
Agree to delegate the identification, determination and payment of the
grants in accordance with the scheme (see Appendix 1) to qualifying
businesses to the Operational Lead for Specialist Services.
(4)
Delegates to the Operational Lead for Specialist Services, in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources, authority to
make any amends to the LRSG(C) to reflect future changes in Government
guidance.

Review Date:

31 March 2021

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The government has announced Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed) LRSG
(C) to be targeted at businesses with rateable values that have been forced to close
for the duration of the national lockdown.
The grant levels apply to LRSG (Closed) as follows:

Page 192

•

•

•

Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on the date of the commencement
of the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment of £1,334 per
28-day qualifying restriction period.
Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value over £15,000 and less than £51,000 on the date of the
commencement of the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment
of £2,000 per 28-day qualifying restriction period.
Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £51,000 or above on the commencement date of the
widespread national restrictions, will receive £3,000 per 28-day qualifying
restriction period.

During the lockdown, a single grant to cover the four-week period will be paid to
each eligible business. The grant amounts will be fixed. Businesses with more
than one qualifying property will receive more than one grant.
3.2

Please see Appendix 1 for the South Lakeland LRSG(C)

4.0

Consultation

4.1

A common and consistent approach has been agreed by all District Councils in
Cumbria, allowing for specific references to business sectors within districts to
support their own local economic make up.

4.2

A working group of officers including specialists and case managers have agreed the
process for collecting information and administering payment of grants.

4.3

The Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources, the Leader of the Council and
Cabinet have been consulted on the detail of this decision and appended guidance.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

SLDC do not accept this funding: this would not comply with the request from
Government and would not give critical support to businesses operating within South
Lakeland, and therefore this is not a recommended option.

5.2

SLDC administer grants beyond the scheme set out by Government: this is not
affordable for the Council, and therefore is not the recommended option.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Supporting our Economy: To aid job retention and business viability in difficult
circumstances; avoiding economic collapse and enhancing the culture of the district
by giving additional resources to businesses, including eligible cultural organisations,
with properties within the district.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The Government has made it clear that Councils can recover the additional cost
incurred by the Council in administering this scheme.

7.2

The Government are funding the entirety of the scheme.

Human Resources
7.2

There are no direct human resources implications of this report. Staff from around the

Page 193

Council will assist in the processing of grant claims.
Legal
7.3

The Council has powers under the Localism Act 2011 to make these payments.
Legal advice has been provided on the grants application form and the state aid
implications. A separate non-executive decision will be taken to address the changes
to the Budget and Policy Framework.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4
Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No
7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
has not been deemed as necessary in this instance. The impact of the scheme
applies to businesses which are eligible within the district and is vital to prevent many
small businesses becoming insolvent following Government required closure.

7.6

Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: n/a

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
has not been deemed as necessary in this instance, this applies to all those with
businesses which are entitled within the district.

7.9

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: n/a

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Grants are not given in
accordance with Government
guidance

Government will not
reimburse the Council for
payments made outside
the Government schemes

Grant applications will be
verified to be compliant
with Government guidance
and business eligibility

Grants are given to fraudulent
claimants

Grants are given to
businesses or individuals
that are not eligible

Grants are not issued
promptly

Businesses will not receive
financial assistance as set
out by Government

Online application and
verification processes to
manage a multi-million pound
scheme in just a few days in
order to get grants paid to
businesses with minimal delay

Reputational impact to the
Council and delays to the
processing of payments

Verification has been built
into the grant process
including requesting
sufficient evidence and
using Government tools to
avoid fraudulent claims
Online portal developed
for efficient application of
grants, resource trained
and in place to review and
approve
Learning from previous
scheme will significantly
reduce risk. Robust
process in place to
expedite payments.

Contact Officers
Gareth Candlin, Operational Lead (Specialist Services)
01539 793382, gareth.candlin@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 194

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

SLDC Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) LRSG(C) Scheme

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Local Restrictions Support Grants
(Closed) (LRSG(C) guidance for
local authorities

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localrestrictions-support-grants-lrsg-and-additionalrestrictions-grant-arg-guidance-for-local-authorities

Approved by:
Chief Executive
Or such person as delegated by
the Chief Executive in writing
In consultation with
The Leader of the Council
And Relevant Portfolio Holder
CMT Directors
The following interests were
declared – disclosable pecuniary
interest or other or none

Signature and Date (or email confirmation)
13/11/2020
n/a

13/11/2020
13/11/2020
n/a

Due to COVID 19 and Government announcements, it has not been possible
for this Key decision to be included in a Forward Plan at least 28 clear days
before the decision was to be made. It is not possible to comply with the
General Exemption procedure.

13/11/2020

In accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution - Rules of Procedure – Access to
Information Rules – Paragraph 16, the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (Cllr Hughes) has agreed that the taking of the decision is urgent
and could not reasonably be deferred because for the reasons outlined in this
report and the timescales required to protect the public/business interest and
to comply with Government advice.
This being “special urgency”
In accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution – Rules of Procedure – Overview 13/11/2020
and Scrutiny Procedure Rules - paragraph 16(j), the Chairman of the Council
(Cllr Coleman) agrees that this decision is reasonable in all the circumstances
and that it is treated as urgent for the reasons outlined above and, therefore, the
decision is exempt from call-in.

Page 195

Appendix 1

South Lakeland District Council
Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed)
Scheme

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 196

1

Contents
Definitions......................................................................................................................... 3
1.0

Purpose of the Scheme and background ............................................................... 5

1.7

Grants under this scheme will be available for the 2020/21 financial year only ..... 5

2.0

Funding .................................................................................................................. 5

3.0

Eligibility criteria and awards .................................................................................. 6

Local restrictions awards and frequency of payment ..................................................... 6
National restrictions awards and frequency of payment ................................................ 7
Businesses that are not shown in the local rating list .................................................... 7
Excluded businesses – both local and national restrictions ........................................... 7
The Effective Date ......................................................................................................... 8
The Ratepayer .............................................................................................................. 8
4.0

How will grants be provided to Businesses? .......................................................... 9

5.0

EU State Aid requirements .................................................................................... 9

6.0

Scheme of Delegation............................................................................................ 9

7.0

Notification of Decisions ........................................................................................10

8.0

Reviews of Decisions ............................................................................................10

9.0

Complaints ............................................................................................................10

10.0 Taxation and the provision of information to Her Majesty’s Revenues and
Customs (HMRC)
10
11.0

Managing the risk of fraud ....................................................................................11

12.0

Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid ...................................................................11

13.0

Data Protection and use of data............................................................................11

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 197

2

Definitions
The following definitions are used within this document:
‘Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG)’ means the additional funding provided by
Government. Funding will be made available to eligible Local Authorities at the point that
national restrictions are imposed or at the point the Local Authority first entered LCAL 3
local restrictions;
‘COVID-19’ (coronavirus) means the infectious disease caused by the most recently
discovered coronavirus;
‘Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS)’ means the Government
department responsible for the scheme and guidance;
‘Effective date’ means, for eligibility of the grant, the date of the local restrictions or the
date of widespread national restrictions. For the purpose of this scheme the date cannot
be before 9th September 2020;
‘Hereditament(s)’ means the assessment defined within Section 64 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988;
‘In-person services’ means services which are wholly or mainly provided by the business
to their customers face to face and which cannot be provided by other means such as
online or remotely by telephone, email, video link, or written communication;
‘Local Covid Alert Level’ (LCAL) means the level of alert determined by Government and
Local Authorities for the area. LCALs have three Tiers. Tier 1 (Medium): Tier 2 (High) and
Tier 3 (Very High). For the purposes of these schemes the definitions used are LCAL1,
LCAL2 and LCAL3.
‘Local lockdown’ means the same as ‘Local restrictions’;
‘Local rating list’ means the list as defined by Section 41 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1988
‘Local restrictions’; and ‘Localised restrictions’ means legally binding restrictions imposed
on specific Local Authority areas or multiple Local Authority areas, where the Secretary of
State for Health and Social Care requires the closure of businesses in a local area under
regulations made using powers in Part 2A of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984
in response to the threat posed by coronavirus and commonly as part of a wider set of
measures;
‘Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed)’ means the grant scheme developed by
the Council in response to an announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 9th September 2020, amended on 9th October 2020
and which is applicable to businesses forced to close under either LCAL3 or where
national restrictions are in place;
‘Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed) Addendum’ means the changes made to
the Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed) due to widespread nationwide
restrictions;
Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Open)’ means the grant scheme developed by
the Council in response to an announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 22nd October 2020 and which is applicable to
businesses that are still open but severely impacted by the restrictions imposed by LCAL2
and LCAL3;
South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 198

3

Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Sector)’ means the grant scheme developed by
the Council in response to an announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy made on 9th October 2020 (effective from 1st November) and
which is applicable to businesses that have been required to close on a national basis
since 23rd March 2020 due to restrictions being put in place to manage coronavirus;
‘Rateable value’ means the rateable value for the hereditament shown in the Council’s
local rating list at the date of the local restrictions;
‘Ratepayer’ means the person who will receive the grant will be the person who,
according to the Council’s records, was the ratepayer liable for occupied rates in respect
of the hereditament at the date of the local restrictions;
‘State Aid Framework’ means the Temporary Framework for State aid measures to support
the economy in the current COVID-19 outbreak published on 19 March 2020; and
‘Temporary Framework for State aid’ means the same as the ‘State Aid Framework’.

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 199

4

1.0

Purpose of the Scheme and background.

1.1

The purpose of this document is to determine eligibility for a payment under the
Council’s Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed). It also includes
details of changes to that scheme where a widespread national lockdown is declared
(Local Restrictions Support Grant Scheme (Closed) Addendum).

1.2

The grant scheme has been developed by the Council in response to an
announcement made by the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial
Strategy made on 9th September 2020 (and subsequently amended in October 2020
and November 2020) which sets out circumstances whereby a grant payment may
be made by the Council to a business which has to close due to localised or
widespread national restrictions being put in place to manage coronavirus and save
lives.

1.3

Whilst the awarding of grants will be the Council’s responsibility, the Department
for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has set down criteria which must
be met by each business making an application. The Department has also indicated
the types of business which should be given the grant.

1.4

The scheme applies where local restrictions are put in place or where a widespread
national lockdown is announced.

1.5

Localised restrictions are legally binding restrictions imposed on specific Local
Authority areas or multiple Local Authority areas, where the Secretary of State for
Health and Social Care requires the closure of businesses in a local area under
regulations made using powers in Part 2A of the Public Health (Control of Disease)
Act 1984 in response to the threat posed by coronavirus and commonly as part of
a wider set of measures.

1.6

National restrictions are nationally binding restrictions imposed by Parliament under
legislation. The current national restrictions are made under the Health Protection
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 4) Regulations 2020.

1.7

Grants under this scheme will be available for the 2020/21 financial year only

1.8

No grant shall be paid for any period where the localised restrictions were in place
prior to 9th September 2020. Where there is no local restriction, grants shall only be
paid where there is a widespread national restriction.

1.9

Where any area enters either a localised restriction or where a widespread national
restriction applies, additional assistance may be given to businesses under the
Council’s Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) Scheme.

2.0

Funding

2.1

Local Authorities, subject to local eligibility, will receive funding to meet the cost of
payments to businesses within the business rates system based on an assessment
of the number of eligible business hereditaments.

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 200

5

3.0

Eligibility criteria and awards

3.1

Government, whilst wanting Councils to exercise their local knowledge and
discretion, has set national criteria for the funds. In all cases, the Council will only
consider businesses for grants where all of the criteria are met. Businesses will only
be eligible where they are trading on the date of the announcement of either the
local restriction or widespread national restrictions.

3.2

The Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has stated that
businesses that were open as usual and providing in-person services to customers
from their business premises and then required to close for a consecutive period of
no less than 14 days as a result of regulations made under the Public Health
(Control of Disease)
Act 1984 will be eligible for this funding.

3.3

Where there is a widespread national restriction, business premises will be required
to close for the entirety of the national restriction period.

3.4

Guidance from the Department states that this could include, non-essential retail,
leisure, personal care, sports facilities and hospitality businesses that operate
primarily as an in- person venue but have been forced to close these services.

Local restrictions awards and frequency of payment
3.5

Businesses which are forced to close in a localised restriction (LCAL3) that is
implemented for less than two weeks and businesses that are closed for less than
two weeks are not eligible for grant funding.

3.6

The amount of grant and the frequency of awards in respect of local restrictions are
fixed as follows:
(a) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on the date of the commencement of
the local restrictions will receive a payment of £667 per 14-day qualifying
restriction period;
(b) Businesses occupying hereditaments with a rateable value of over £15,000 and
less than £51,000 will receive a payment of £1,000 per 14-day qualifying
restriction period; and
(c) Businesses occupying hereditaments with a rateable value of £51,000 or over
will receive a payment of £1,500 per 14-day qualifying restriction period.

3.7

It should be noted that, in the case of local restrictions, grants will be paid every two
weeks.

3.8

Any business failing to meet the criteria will not be awarded a grant.

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 201

6

National restrictions awards and frequency of payment
3.9

Where there are widespread national restrictions, the Local Restrictions Support
Grant (Closed) scheme will move from a 14-day payment cycle to an alternative
payment cycle.

3.10

For the national restriction from 5th November 2020 to 2nd December 2020, a 28day payment cycle will be applied.

3.11

The amount of grant and the frequency of awards in respect of the national
restriction are fixed as follows:
(a) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £15,000 or under on the date of the commencement of
the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment of £1,334 per 28-day
qualifying restriction period;
(b) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value over £15,000 and less than £51,000 on the date of the
commencement of the widespread national restrictions will receive a payment of
£2,000 per 28-day qualifying restriction period; and
(c) Businesses occupying hereditaments appearing on the local rating list with a
rateable value of exactly £51,000 or above on the commencement date of the
widespread national restrictions, will receive £3,000 per 28-day qualifying
restriction period.

3.12

At the end of any widespread national restriction, businesses may qualify for further
grants depending on the LCAL that applies to the area at that time and the schemes
in operation by the Council.

Businesses that are not shown in the local rating list
3.13

Businesses which are not shown in the local rating list may be able to apply for an
award under the Council’s Additional Restrictions Grants (ARG) Scheme.

Excluded businesses – both local and national restrictions
3.14

The following businesses will not be eligible for an award:
(a) Businesses that are able to continue to trade because they do not depend on
providing direct in-person services from premises and can operate their
services effectively remotely (e.g. accountants, solicitors);
(b) Businesses in areas outside the scope of the localised restrictions, as defined
by Government (and not subject to a widespread national restriction);
(c) Businesses that have chosen to close but not been required to, will not be eligible;
(d) Businesses which have already received grant payments that equal the maximum
levels of State aid permitted under the de minimis and the COVID-19 Temporary
State Aid Framework;
(e) Businesses that were in administration, are insolvent or where a striking-off notice
has

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 202

7

been made at the date of the local restriction or national restriction; and
(f) Specific businesses subject to national closures since 23rd March 2020 will not
be eligible for this funding. They will be provided support through the strand of
the Local Restrictions Support Grant (Sector) for nationally mandated business
closures. However, In the event of renewed widespread national ‘lockdown’
restrictions being imposed, the Local Restrictions Support Grant (Sector) will
cease to apply, as relevant businesses will receive funding from the Local
Restriction Support Grant (Closed) Scheme.

The Effective Date
3.15

The effective date for eligibility is determined as follows:
(a) In the case of local restrictions, the date of the local restrictions; and
(b) In the case of widespread national restrictions, the date of the commencement
of the widespread national restrictions.

3.16

In all cases, the following must have existed at the effective date:
 The hereditament MUST be shown in the local rating list as at the effective date;
 Any changes to the local rating List (Rateable Value or to the hereditament)
after that date, including changes which have been backdated to this date, will
be ignored for the purposes of eligibility;
 The Council is not required to adjust, pay or recover grants where the local rating
list is subsequently amended retrospectively to the effective date;
 In cases where it was factually clear to the Council that, at the effective date, the
local rating List was inaccurate on that date, the Council may withhold the grant
and/or award the grant based on their view of who would have been entitled to
the grant had the list been accurate. (The Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) has stated that this provision is entirely at the
discretion of the Council and is only intended to prevent manifest errors. It is
not intended for ratepayers who subsequently challenge their Rateable Value);
and
 Where a hereditament is exempt from rating as at the effective date, no grant
shall be payable.

The Ratepayer
3.17

In all cases the following shall apply:
 The person who will receive the grant will be the person who, according to the
Council’s records, was the ratepayer in respect of the hereditament at the
effective date;
 The ratepayer must be liable to occupied property rates at that date. It should be
noted that grants will not be awarded where the hereditament is unoccupied;
 Where the Council has reason to believe that the information it holds about the
ratepayer at the effective date is inaccurate, it may withhold or recover the grant
and take reasonable steps to identify the correct ratepayer;
 Where, it is subsequently determined that the records held are incorrect, the
Council reserves the right to recover any grant incorrectly paid; and
 Where any ratepayer misrepresents information or contrives to take advantage
of the scheme, the Council will look to recover any grant paid and take
appropriate legal

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 203

8

action. Likewise, if any ratepayer is found to have falsified records in order to
obtain a grant.

4.0

How will grants be provided to Businesses?

4.1

The Council is fully aware of the importance of these grants to assist businesses
and support the local community and economy. The Local Restrictions Support
Grant (Closed) scheme together with the Council’s Additional Restrictions Grant
(ARG) scheme will offer a lifeline to businesses who are struggling to survive during
to the COVID-19 crisis.

4.2

Details of how to obtain grants are available on the Council’s website:
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/business-and-trade/business-supportcoronavirus- covid-19/

4.3

In all cases businesses will be required to confirm that they are eligible to receive
the grants. This includes where the Council already has bank details for the
business and are in a position to send out funding immediately. Businesses are
under an obligation to notify the Council should they no longer meet the eligibility
criteria for any additional grants.

4.4

The Council reserves the right request any supplementary information from
businesses, and they should look to provide this, where requested, as soon as
possible.

4.5

An application for a Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) is deemed to have
been made when a duly completed application form is received via the Council’s
online procedure.

4.6

All monies paid under this scheme will be funded by Government and paid to the
Council under S31 of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.0

EU State Aid requirements

5.1

All State aid requirements must be met and complied with under this grant scheme,
including, where required, compliance with all relevant conditions of the EU State
aid De-Minimis Regulation, the EU Commission Temporary Framework for State
aid measures to support the economy in the current COVID-19 outbreak, the
approved Covid-19 Temporary Framework for UK Authorities, and any relevant
reporting requirements to the EU Commission.

5.2

Recipients will be asked to complete a declaration to confirm the position in relation
to State Aid.

6.0 Scheme of Delegation
6.1

The Council has approved this scheme.

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 204

9

6.2

7.0
7.1

Officers of the Council will administer the scheme and the Operational Lead for
Specialist Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Assets
is authorised to make technical scheme amendments to ensure it meets the criteria
set by the Council and, in line with Government guidance.

Notification of Decisions
Applications will be considered on behalf of the Council by the Specialist Services
(Economy and Culture, and Revenues and Benefits)

.
7.2

8.0

All decisions made by the Council shall be notified to the applicant either in writing
or by email. A decision shall be made as soon as practicable after an application is
received.

Reviews of Decisions

8.1

The Council will operate an internal review process and will accept an applicant’s
request for a review of its decision.

8.2

All such, requests must be made in writing to the Council within 14 days of the
Council’s decision and should state the reasons why the applicant is aggrieved with
the decision of the Council. New information may be submitted at this stage to
support the applicant’s appeal.

8.3

The application will be reconsidered by a senior officer, as soon as practicable and
the applicant informed in writing or by email of the decision.

9.0
9.1

Complaints
The Council’s ‘Complaints Procedure’ (available on the Councils website) will be
applied in the event of any complaint received about this scheme.

10.0 Taxation and the provision of information to Her Majesty’s
Revenues and Customs (HMRC)
10.1

The Council has been informed by Government that all payments under the scheme
are taxable.

10.2

The Council does not accept any responsibility in relation to an applicant’s tax
liabilities and all applicants should make their own enquiries to establish any tax
position.

10.3

All applicants should note that the Council is required to inform Her Majesty’s
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) of all payments made to businesses.

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 205

10

11.0 Managing the risk of fraud
11.1 Neither the Council, nor Government will accept deliberate manipulation of the
schemes or fraud. Any applicant caught falsifying information to gain grant money or
failing to declare entitlement to any of the specified grants will face prosecution and
any funding issued will be recovered from them.
11.2 Applicants should note that, where a grant is paid by the Council, details of each
individual grant may be passed to Government.

12.0 Recovery of amounts incorrectly paid
12.1

If it is established that any award has been made incorrectly due to error,
misrepresentation or incorrect information provided to the Council by an applicant
or their representative(s), the Council will look to recover the amount in full.

13.0 Data Protection and use of data
13.1

All information and data provided by applicants shall be dealt with in accordance
with the Council’s Data Protection policy and Privacy Notices which are available
on the Council’s website.

South Lakeland District Council/Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Scheme 11112020

Page 206

11

